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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Management to study the state's public transportation funding for individuals with disabilities. 

Minutes: ttachment #1 

Chairman Laffen: Opened the hearing on SCR 4005. 

Senator Oley Larsen: See Attachment #1 for testimony in favor. Souris Basin Transportation 
is the one in Minot for disabled riders and other cities across the state. We are starting to 
access taxi cabs to see if they couldn't help out also. In Minot if you have 5 or more taxi cabs 
you have to have one for wheel chair access. It passed and is working out great. 

Senator Nelson: We do have public transportation for this. Cabs tend to be private. Do you 
want it for public and private? 

Senator Larsen: Yes. We need to make it easier for motorized wheelchairs to get around 
the city. 

Senator Rust: The way I am reading this, the bill is for the public, not public transportation. 

Senator Larsen: Yes, it is for the public to use. Cabs or other means. I did find out that if a 
cab does take a handicapped person to a clinic or doctor's appointment they will get 
reimbursed for that fare. 

Chairman Laffen: Any other testimony in favor of SCR 4005? 

Senator Larsen: Scott Burlingame will be coming to testify on the attachment I handed out. 
The roads were just too bad for him to get here. 

Senator Laffen: Any Opposition to SCR 4005? 

Chairman Laffen: We are going to close the hearing for today and will find a time to work 
with Senator Larsen and the people absent from today's hearing. 
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Senator Nelson: There are handicapped vans that people can access to get to 
appointments, but if there is a group then they have to wait for the whole group. There is a 
lot going on, just not communicated well. 

Chairman Laffen: Yes, it might be a fine line to work with the smaller towns to get it 
implemented compared to the bigger cities already using it, but it is just a study and not 
suggesting any action. Any other questions? If not, we are adjourned for the morning . 

• 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A concurrent resolution urging the Legislative Management to study the state's public 
transportation funding for individuals with disabilities. 

Minutes: No Attachments. 

Chairman Laffen: Called hearing of SCR 4005 to order. 

Senator Ole Larsen: Introduced Brandon Rowenhorst, who was instrumental in making sure 
that taxi cab drivers in Minot, if they have over five cabs, have to be able to get him to and 
from off the vine. 

Brandon Rowenhorst from Rowenhorst Law P .C.: When we look at disabled transit 
systems and disabled services in general, under ADA and under federal laws it calls for 
reasonable accommodations, and people, as in my situation, get confused between 
reasonable versus perfect accommodations. What you typically run into, for example in the 
city of Minot, you had disabled transit systems but they run under limited conditions and 
limited hours. In the case in Minot, they started services at 7:30 in the morning and ran until 
8 or 9 in the evening, depending upon how busy they were, but they would not go beyond 
that. However, the city would still license cab companies and they were free to operate 24 
hours a day for any individual. During the evening if you wanted to go to a late night movie 
or go to the state fair or a tree lighting ceremony you could not use disabled transit because 
they would not be able to pick you up, but yet non-disabled individuals could. Basically they 
could argue that they were running but after they were shut down there was nothing for the 
disabled. Sioux Falls, which is where I am from, is having such a problem with transit that 
they are now making disabled people have to be so far away from a bus stop before they 
can use a disabled service, and I am about to challenge that because we all know with this 
lovely weather we are having, is it really safe for individuals to ride in the street if the sidewalk 
is not clear. 

Chairman Laffen: Brandon if I could just ask a question. Disabled transit that you are talking 
about, is that city run in these towns? 
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Brandon Rowenhorst: Yes. Most of them have paid for individual management companies 
to run them. Some of them do tie them in with the transit authority directly itself. A good 
example to follow is St. Cloud , MN. They tied it directly in their transit system rather than 
contract out an independent manager. I see some benefits to that as it allows for quicker 
response time. Typically, in St. Cloud all you have to do is call an hour in advance. Under 
the model that St. Cloud is using and Minot was also until my ordinance, if you had to 
schedule a ride, you had to schedule 24 hours in advance. There is only one exception to 
that and that is medical appointments. You have a drop off at your appointment, and as 
Doctors typically do if they run behind, they wouldn't abandon you there but you go on what 
is called a call back status, whenever they have an opening during the day they would come 
pick you up. That sometimes meant you would sit and wait for hours. How many busy people 
can schedule rides 24 hours in advance? On Fridays you would have to schedule any rides 
for Monday. Now you're talking 72 hours. Another example is, when you are coming in on a 
plane and it lands in the evening, how are you supposed to get home? I went to Law school 
and did my trial techniques with a judge that held night classes after the class. I forced the 
University there to get a shuttle as I had no way to get to and from the class. This is where I 
have spent a large part of my life trying to help disabled with services, because I do strongly 
believe we have to find a middle ground and you can't be so one-sided. You have to 
acknowledge the opposition. In Minot the transit system gets their vehicles paid for by the 
federal government through federal subsidies. And the federal government pays for those 
conversions, which is nice as you can do a manual conversion or an electronic conversion if 
you want to get a little fancier. Those conversions can weigh in from a few thousand dollars 
to ten thousand dollars or more. Senator Larsen found out all the arguments against this. I 
had multiple hearings on this and heard, oh we can't afford this, this is cracking down on 
business, conversions cost too much, you can't force us; I said that's not true. The federal 
government already pays for the conversions, then because they are paid for by the 
government, you can't sell them for profit but eventually you have to replace them for public 
safety reasons, on so much mileage. What Minot typically does for a passenger vehicle , that 
holds less than 8 people, they put it out for public auction at about 75,000 miles. When you're 
putting a bus that holds more than 8 people up for auction, it is about 150,000 miles. A lot of 
those vehicles went between $3000. to $6000. And that included everything . High mileage 
isn't the greatest but they are functional. After the ordinance got passed we gave Minot 8 
months to prepare for it. 

Chairman Laffen: Brandon can you back up and tell us what happened in Minot? What did 
you have, what did you change, how are you operating now. 

Brandon Rowenhorst: Our system is called Basin transit. Before you had to schedule your 
rides 24 hours in advance and they had to be scheduled by 2:00. Now some of the drivers 
have retired so they only have so many routes. They need to make more routes. 

Chairman Laffen: So is this a bus service? 

Brandon Rowenhorst: You have the city buses and this is independent and parrell from the 
city buses. It's all part of the transit system but it is one that allows anybody that qualifies with 
a disability to ride it. What makes it distinguished from city buses is if you get on this system, 
because they are federally funded, they limit the cost per rider. It is $2.50 per way. That is 
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the big difference between public fare and that system. You have to meet the medical 
qualifications to get on which is the ADA 3-part test. 

Chairman Laffen: This is different than a regular city bus. Does Minot have a city bus system 
and can you ride on them? 

Brandon Rowenhorst: Yes, and yes you can but with the transit you have door to door 
service which is good with all the snow we have had this winter. The public buses do not 
provide this service and you have to get to the bus stops. It is only a matter of time before 
someone gets injured riding in the streets because of uncleaned sidewalks. 

Chairman Laffen: So Minot has a separate vehicle that you can dial ahead of time, 24 hours 
ahead of time. The issue is that ours won't work. 

Brandon Rowenhorst: Yes. That is the biggest part because it doesn't meet the reasonable 
commendation standards of federal law and it didn't because reasonable commendation in 
its simplest form says that there has to be some alternative. During the night hours there was 
no alternative at all. You could not go to any evening attraction . 

Chairman Laffen: Was that the same for everyone then? Did the city bus system shut down 
at that time or was it just the vehicle that you needed? 

Brandon Rowenhorst: I don't know what the bus system hours were but they were limited 
too. That would not solve the problem anyway as the bus service does not do door to door 
service and typically when you deal with disabled riders you will have medical issues. You 
may not have wheelchairs like myself but you will have mobility problems. You don't want to 
put them out a mile or two from where they have to go. Since you are allowing the businesses 
to get a disabled operating license, they can run 24 hours a day and it is public access to 
everybody. The old disability law said in access to cabs they got a partial exemption to the 
extent that they could not charge extra for picking up a disabled rider and what that meant 
was if you're in a wheelchair the driver had to provide assistance in folding up your chair and 
helping you get in the vehicle and you could not charge for that extra work to transfer as then 
you were taking advantage of the situation. My point on this is that technology has advanced 
and we want to encourage independence to people who belong in society. Why would you 
have an employee picking up wheelchairs and risking them getting injured or if they would 
break the chair. 

Chairman Laffen: So Brandon, you were able to make the change in Minot and it did 
something to the cab companies and what did you change. 

Brandon Rowenhorst: Any cab company that was licensed to the city, regardless of size, 
had to have one vehicle at all times that was available for power chair access. I said power 
chair because of the weight component. There is a big difference between a regular 
wheelchair and a power chair and you will need the ramp to get it loaded. There is also no 
proof in the cab companies that at all times all the cabs are fully loaded for each ride and the 
power chair takes up only two spots. So there would be no economic detriment to the cab 
company as they can't prove that. My biggest complaint right now is that even after the 8 
month grace period for the cabs to come into compliance, I ended up getting stranded at my 
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office one night. I had called 4 cab companies and not one had a trained personnel on duty. • 
Cab drivers have to be trained for tie downs. 

Chairman Latten: So Brandon, it got passed in Minot? 

Brandon Rowenhorst: Yes. 

Chairman Laffen: Now the cabs have a vehicle? How many cab companies are there in 
Minot? 

Brandon Rowenhorst: When I started this there were 8 or 9 and now I think they are down 
to 5 or 6. One of the things I think the record should reflect is with some of the cab companies 
doing some creative maneuvering, the city had passed an ordinance limiting the number of 
cabs for a company that could be at the airport. So what the bigger cab companies did was 
break apart and registered under their own taxi corporations so they could park another 
vehicle there. It was the same people but it was another way around the ordinance. 

Chairman Laffen: So there are 4 or 5 companies in Minot and did they all go and get a 
vehicle to comply with this? 

Brandon Rowenhorst: I have been working with Chief Olson on this and there are two 
places where you can rent for handicapped. My big concern is the training of personnel 
weather you are off duty or not. When we held the training sessions 10 signed up and 1 
showed up because they hadn't even considered it. It was slightly hurtful because as we all 
get older we are going to need those services and I am willing to help out anywhere I can so 
these people can learn this stuff. 

Chairman Laffen: Have any of the cabs talked about pooling together and having one 
vehicle handle that for everybody. 

Brandon Rowenhorst: I want more flexibility than that because the waiting time will increase 
if we just have one Cab handle all of it. I am already running into trouble in Minot as they 
don't want to run a vehicle without a direct call for it. I have had to wait up to 2 hours waiting 
for a cab after calling. I called for a cab 6 hours in advance and still had to wait 45 minutes 
past my scheduled pick up time. 

Chairman Laffen: So what happens when cabs are gone? 

Brandon Rowenhorst: Uber wants to move in but there have been insurance nightmares 
and how do you know what kind of a car are you getting into without some background checks 
done. 

Chairman Laffen: So the bill, SCR 4005, asks for the state study it's funding for 
transportation systems. That's all it does and then we report back to the next session . 
Obviously you would be in favor of having that done. 

Brandon Rowenhorst: I think you will find that it will work because of two reasons, 1. Minot 
was my example because I dealt directly with it. 2. It is only being done here in Bismarck 
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because the city has a contract with our cab company already here. It's already being done 
in Grand Forks. Fargo right now does not have it and I want it bad but we are going around 
there. If it is already in part of the cities there is a way to make it functional and compliant so 
why not just bring everybody on board? We are all 'citizens of the state and of the country 
and numerous studies have shown that dealing with the elderly, people with a medical 
impairment, and the disabled is a large workforce. 

Senator Laffen: So if you were king for the day what would you want the state to do? 

I have my own business and people often tell me I should sit home and collect the benefits. 
Why would I want to do that? I don't want to just sit home. I want to contribute and do 
something with my life. That's why I have gone on to law school, graduate school and would 
like to get a whole bunch more degrees that I can decorate my walls with. People often get 
fearful when they have to accommodate costs but I tell them the cost is not the concern and 
look at the creative thinking because one of the biggest concerns with the ADA when it first 
passed was cost. When you start looking around a lot of the costs are under $1000. if that 
on several things. What you really need is creative thinking in trying to find a solution that is 
effective for everyone. That is what it requires. I try to help people like you look at the options. 

Chairman Laffen: Any questions for Brandon? None. We will close the hearing on SCR 4005 
and discuss it further next week. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A concurrent resolution urging the Legislative Management to study the state's public 
transportation funding for individuals with disabilities. 

Minutes: Attachment #1 

Chairman Latten: Called hearing SCR 4005 to order. Attachment #1. This bill is asking for 
a study of the state's public transportation funding for individuals with disabilities. Most of the 
testimony we heard was about Minot and as I understand it, Minot has taxi cab companies, 
none of them provided service after hours. The public transportation was providing rides from 
8-5 or close to that. After that the disabled had no way to get around. It got resolved with City 
Council action. What this study is asking us to do is for the state to study this issue broadly 
across the whole state. I have no issue with the service but I am struggling with getting the 
state involved. I think it got handled correctly in Minot, with the City Council being the local 
governing body that would deal with this. 

Senator Nelson: I am reading this a little differently. He is asking them to study the state's 
funding and there is no funding . There is local funding. Putting a study in doesn't guarantee 
they will choose it anyway. It doesn't do any harm to pass this bill but I don't see what good 
it is going to do. 

Chairman Latten: That's kind of where I am at, too. You are correct, it is just a study. 

Senator Clemens: The beginning of the bill makes it look like we do have state funding. 

Senator Casper: Looking it up, it seems like there is a mechanism in place for funding. The 
DOT has a 48-page Transit study from 2015. 

Chairman Latten: Brady can you make a copy of that for us and we can read it. Thank you. 
We will read this and have counties come talk to us about it. Closed the hearing on SCR 
4005. 

Chairman Latten: The only other Senate bill we have left to discuss is the mud flap bill. SB 
2341. Discussion followed (10:55) through (14:20) making points on the debris on flat trailers, 
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which should be swept off, debris on the edges of the trailer, flying debris when the trucks 
drive over the bridge, Etc. Senator Casper and Campbell are opposed to this bill stating the 
tarps won't cover the debris flying around, and sometimes the tarps are not large enough to 
cover the whole load. 

Chairman Laffen: Back to SCR 4005. 

Terry Traynor, Association of Counties: On the SCR 4005, the Highway Distribution Fund 
has five recipients that 66% goes to the highway department and there are counties, 
townships, and then transportation that takes care of transit where the money goes to the 
transit authorities around the state. 

Chairman Laffen: So there is money going to those transportations. 

Terry Traynor: There is also a federal highway bill that through the highway department of 
transportation where the money is allocated out to those groups. DOT could tell you how it 
is divided out. Also, in addition, there is some support coming from the senior groups around 
the state. 

Chairman Laffen: The bill originally came from the Minot where they have solved it. But this 
bill says we are to look at the funding to see if this is an issue. 

Aaron Birst, Association of Counties: In the past they were thinking of changing out the 
percentage but nothing has been agreed upon. 

Chairman Laffen: We just didn't know if there was any money going into the funding of this 
and you have filled us in on that. Thank you. 

Senator Casper: I don't see myself supporting this but it will be very helpful for someone to 
get on the floor and carry a do not pass on this bill and to say; one, we don't need a study, 
we've already done that, two, we do have a system for the funding in place right now and 
three if the Senator who brought this legislation wants to change the funding, he should have 
brought a bill to put more money in it. 

Chairman Laffen: Let's get the study and we will work on this another time. Discussion 
closed. 

• 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A concurrent resolution urging the Legislative Management to study the state's public 
transportation funding for individuals with disabilities. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Latten: Opened the discussion on SCR 4005. Explained the bill to Steve Salwei 
and asked how often do they do a study, as we have one from 2015 and one from 2016, so 
we are interested in the kind of studies you have ongoing for this. 

Steve Salwei, Director of Transportation Programs for the Department of 
Transportation: The study you are referring to was actually a part of H B 1012 from the 54th 
Legislative Assembly. It had required that the DOT study the transportation and report back 
to Legislative Management. Basically what they were looking for was funding for public 
transportation providers across the state. We compiled all the information that we already 
have and presented it to Legislative Management. We don't always do a study, prior to that 
we did a mead study that we had Upper Great Plains Institute do for us to determine the 
needs of the transportation providers. Part of the study we did this past season does include 
some of the information you were looking for in SCR 4005. I do have some questions as to 
clarity as to what you would be looking for exactly for this Resolution. Are you looking at the 
public transportation or are you looking at the private providers? We only have the public 
transportation information for the elderly and disabled. 

Chairman Latten: I can fill you in on where the bill came from. A Senator from Minot or in 
that area turned it in. There was public transportation and they have accessible vehicles and 
operate between 7-7 or something like that, but after hours there are taxi cabs, the disabled 
have no way of getting around as the cabs do not provide for disabled. Minot fixed it, passing 
some sort of an ordinance, that said thou shalt meet the disability rule and the taxi cab 
companies are now getting vehicles to handle that. So he thought we should study this for 
state wide and we are struggling with what we can do, what is our role in this issue? 

Steve: After doing some research, the one thing public transportation doesn't do and I don't 
believe they can afford to do is a 24n ridership. Right now they are strapped for funds and a 
24/7 would strap them even more. I know in Minot they did run into some issues with that, 
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because you have to meet the ADA requirements, meaning that you not only need the vehicle 
you also need the driver to be trained in operating the equipment. I believe they ended up 
having a call in the evening and the vehicle was available but they had no driver available 
that evening that was trained, so therefore they weren't able to provide the ride in a timely 
matter. I am sure the taxi cabs are in the same situation and I don't know if there is a 
regulation out there that requires them to have accessible vehicles at all times. My concern 
with how this is written is I don't know how we would find that information from the private 
companies. We need to find out the needs of the community. 

Senator Casper: The heart of the issue is we have studied, specifically, public transportation 
for the disabled people? Can you provide me with specifics, this is the ridership we have and 
this is the ridership we need? 

Steve Salwei: We have done needs studies as far as financial wise. I don't know if we have 
gone down into the ADA needs to address the concern. We assume we are taking care of 
the needs during the core working hours but beyond those hours I don't know if we have 
studied for ADA needs. 

Senator Casper: Do you have any information on what is available in the private sector and 
what they are required to do and whether or not if they are complying with that? What we 
decide here as a committee is the issue that someone has to be looking at this and 
determining whether or not the communities are complying with that. 

Steve Salwei: I don 't know if all communities have an ordinance that the private cab 
companies have to have ADA vehicles. Minot took it one step further and implemented it to 
require their cab companies to provide at least one ADA vehicle 24/7 if they had a fleet of 
five or more. If you receive any federal aid you will comply with the ADA requirements . 
Unfortunately, there is no federal aid coming to the private companies, therefore I don't know 
if they are bound to the same ADA requirements . The thing that comes to my mind is Uber. 
It's not being used widely across the state but it is being used in the Fargo Metro area. I don't 
know if there are any requirements that requires them to have ADA vehicles 

Senator Clemens: The regulation is only asking for a study of public transportation; it is not 
asking for a study for private transportation. In my opinion we just decide if the last study 
done in the last session would be sufficient and I don't think we need to go into the private 
as the resolution is only asking for a public study. 

Chairman Laffen: We have public transportation systems around the state and they are 
publically funded. Do most of those public transportation vehicles have accessibility to 
disabled? 

Steve Salwei : Yes, they all have at least one accessible vehicle to accommodate the 
disabled. 

Chairman Laffen: So from a public transportation side, the only thing we could affect is if we 
could find more money and have them operate longer. 

Senator Nelson: Aren 't a number of these run by Social Services in different counties? 
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Steve Salwei: A lot of the transit providers in the state are non-profits. They qualify for the 
state and federal aid, pieces of it, because they are the non-profit and they are providing 
transportation for the general public. If they want to receive state and federal aid they have 
to work through our department and they have to follow all the federal and state rules and 
regulations. If they so choose not to take state or federal aid, they don't deal with us and are 
on their own , like a private cab company so to speak. 

Senator Nelson: Do the people that drive these smaller vehicles need a special driver's 
license. No Just the regular license. 

Chairman Latten : Any other questions? None. Thank you . Committee any thoughts? I am 
personally having a struggle as to understand what we could accomplish by studying this. 
There are a lot of the public transportations out there and they do provide accessibility for the 
disabled and I think the issue we are hearing is that they are not open 24/7. So then it defaults 
to taxi cabs and we don't regulate them. Where to go? 

Senator Casper: After a cursory view of the reports and the discussion with the Department 
of Transportation today, my thinking is that the resolution of the issue is that there should 
have been a bill introduced to the Legislature to increase the money so they could increase 
the hours of public transportation. Legislation should have been brought to do a study 
regarding whether the state should play a role in regulating our cab companies around the 
state and the services they should provide. I think this is the study they are asking for. 

Senator Nelson: Every county has a transportation system and seems to me if they were to 
get a memo saying , if they had handicapped they should be able to accommodate them, it 
would be enough. 

Chairman Latten: I agree. I think the real issue here is the hours. 

Senator Nelson: Motion for a Do Not Pass. 

Senator Casper: Seconded. 

Chairman Latten: Any other discussion? 

Senator Clemens: We have an extensive study here already so I don 't see the need for 
another one. 

Chairman Latten: Any other comments? Discussion done. 

Roll Call taken. Yeas-5, Nays-0, Absent-1. 

Chairman Latten: Motion passes 5 to 0. Senator Casper will carry the bill. Thank you! 
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Testimony 
Senate Concurrent Resolution No. 4005 
Study on Transportation Funding for Individuals with Disabilities 
Senator Lonnie J. Laffen, (Chairman) 
January 12, 2017 

Chairman Latten and members of the Transportation committee. My name is Scott 
Burlingame, and I am the Executive Director of Independence, Inc. in Minot. 
Independence, Inc. is a disability rights organization. Our mission is to advocate for the 
freedom of choice for people with disabilities to live independently through the removal 
of all barriers. 

Independence, Inc. supports efforts to increase transportation options for people with 
disabilities. This has traditionally included efforts to expand transit service areas and 
routes. We believe that transportation, along with housing and employment, are the 
keys to people with disabilities becoming active parts of our communities, and leaving a 
life of poverty, pity and dependence behind. 

Over the past few years, we have worked a lot with local advocates, taxi providers and 
the City of Minot to find a way to improve the availability of accessible transportation 
services. The primary reason we formed our group was because the options at that time 
did not work. The hours were too limited for the fixed route system, and the curb to curb 
service required a 24 hour notice and, as a result of staffing shortages was consistently 
stopping services early. 

The end result of our efforts was on November, 2nct 2015, Minot's City Council passed 
ordinance requiring every cab company to have at least one vehicle be accessible for a 
passenger who uses a power wheelchair. Though we are still working out some of the 
kinks in the system, the people in Minot are now able to request an accessible taxi by 
calling the local taxi company of their choice and paying the same fare as everybody 
else. 

I am not here to tell you if the Minot ordinance is the exact answer in every community 
in North Dakota. However, I do think it can be used as an example of changing the way 
we think about providing transportation for people with disabilities. 

Yesterday I spoke with a friend of mine who is very tuned into national transportation 
priorities. He feels the incoming Trump administration will be providing states with 
increased flexibility in how they spend federal transportation money. If this happens, my 

• hope is that we can use that new flexibility to change how we do things. For example, I 
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talked to a transportation provider who told me he provided rides to people to and from 
Medical appointments. He said his rides have to be scheduled 24 hours in advance, and 
people have to plan their pick up and leave time within a Yz hour. If they are late for pick 
up, they can be penalized for it, and possibility lose the right to ride. 

If they are given a prescription at the appointment, they need to schedule another ride , 
24 hrs later. 

There is a huge cost to this , both to the taxpayers who end up funding two trips, and to 
the person , who ends up blocking off a big part of two days for transportation. Not to 
mention he cannot start his meds for at least 24 hrs. 

Calling a taxicab would be so much easier. 

My hope is that by conducting this study, we can identify the barriers to accessible taxi 
cab service across the state, and seek out ways we can more creative in spending our 
limited public transportation dollars. 

We know people with disabilities need rides, and we know Taxi companies need fares. I 
hope this study can find a way to help both groups out. 

I would be glad to answer any questions you may have. 



39-04.2-01. Definitions. 

CHAPTER 39-04.2 
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

In this chapter, unless the context or subject matter otherwise requires : 
1. "Publ ic transportation" means the vehicular transportation of persons from place to 

place within this state, but does not include the provision of transportation facilities 
otherwise provided by public funds , such as roads, streets, highways, bridges, lighting 
equipment, or signs. 

2. "Ridership" means a one-way trip provided to any one person in a motorized vehicle 
designed to carry eight or more persons in an enclosed area with separate seating for 
each person . 

3. "Transportation provider" means a political subdivision, tribal agency, or any nonprofit 
corporation that provides transportation to the public, especially to elderly and 
handicapped citizens. 

39-04.2-02. Public transportation fund - Administration of the fund. 
The director shall administer the public transportation fund. Payments disbursed under this 

chapter must be paid from moneys deposited in the fund . The expenses arising from 
administration of the fund must be paid from the fund within the limits of legislative 
appropriations. 

39-04.2-03. Additional registration fee - Deposit in fund. 
Repealed by S.L. 2009, ch. 40, § 26. 

39-04.2-04. Distribution of funds - Continuing appropriation. 
1. Moneys in the public transportation fund must be disbursed under guidelines issued by 

the director. The funds must be used by transportation providers to establish and 
maintain public transportation , especially for the elderly and handicapped, and may be 
used to contract to provide public transportation , as matching funds to procure money 
from other sources for public transportation and for other expenditures authorized by 
the director. Moneys in the public transportation fund are appropriated to the 
department of transportation on a continuing basis for distributions authorized under 
this section. 

2. Each county shall receive a base amount of four-tenths of one percent of the 
appropriation for the program plus one dollar and fifty cents per capita of population in 
the county, based upon the latest regular or special official federal census. Each year 
the director shall increase or decrease the one dollar and fifty cents per capita amount 
in order to distribute all funds appropriated for the biennium. If there are multiple 
transportation providers in one county, then the base amount must be divided equally 
among the providers and the additional per capita amount must be based upon the 
percentage of elderly and handicapped ridership provided by each transportation 
provider within the county. Funds not expended by a county during a contract period , 
or previous contract periods, may be redistributed under guidelines established by the 
director. In addition , unexpended funds may also be used by the director for transit 
coordination purposes. 
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tNT.R<OIOUCf]ON 
The North Dakota Transit S:ate Management Ran (S\11 P) is a document which describes the state 
policies and procedures for administering the Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) ~ct ion 5311 
program of transit assistance for rural areas, ~ction 5311 (f) intercity bus program, RJral Transit 
Assistance A-ogram (RfAP), ~ction 5310 capital assistance program for 81hanced Mobility of S:lniors 
and Persons with Disabilities and ~ion 5339, Bus and Bus Facilities A-ogram. 

In addition, this document explains in detail the various transit funding programs available in North 
Dakota and will also serve as an information source for disseminating transit information to the 
general public and all other interested parties. 

This Transit S:ate Management Ran explains the policies and procedures used by the North Dakota 
Department of Transportation (hereafter referred to as NDD01) in administering the various federal 
and state transit program funds available for supporting and improving public transit services in 
North Dakota. 

It should be noted that the state transit program guidelines and regulations contained herein dosely 
parallel the Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) program guidelines and regulations with some 
variations to provide for state policies and procedures pursuant to North Dakota transit goals and 
objectives. S:ate requirements in the S\11 P may be more restrictive, but not less restrictive than 
Federal requirements. FTAregulationscan be found at Ff A's website at www.fta.gov, for more 
specific information dick on "legislation, regulations and guidance" or" Gants and Financing." 

F€-evaluation of policies will be considered on an ongoing basis. If you have comments or a request 
for revision, please forward it to the NDDOTTransit staff. The S\11 Pis intended to facilitate both state 
management and Ff A oversight by documenting the state's procedures and policies for administering 
these programs in a single reference. 

NDDOTis issuing its revised S\/IPfor the programs listed below in a single document. NDOOT 
administers the following Ff A grant programs with "older" funding appropriated under P.L 111-68 
~fe, Accountable and Flexible Hficient Transportation Equity Ad: a Legacy for Users (SA.FETFA-LU) as 
well as any crosscutting requirements under P.L 112-141, Moving Ahead for A-ogress in the 21 51 

Century (MAP-21): 

• Capital Assistance for the Bderly persons and Persons with Disability (49 us::;5310) - provides 
funding to states for the purpose of assisting non-profits and others in meeting the 
transportation needs of the elderly persons and persons with disabilities; 

• Formula Gant for RJral Areas (49 U3:;5311 )-provides funding to states for the purpose of 
supporting transportation in rural areas with a population of less than 50,000; 

• Formula Gant (49 U3:;5339)- provides capital funding to address capital replacement 
challenges for both rural and small urban areas. 
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J?iROGRAM ((JOALS 
The g:>al of the state traist programs (both federal and state funding programs) is to provide a safe, 
efficient, environmentally sound and fiscally responsible transportation system that promotes 
economic growth and enhanres the quality of life in North Dakota. By increasing the mobility of the 
transportation disadvantaged persons and the general population in all areas and localities of North 
Dakota, access to health care, shopping, education, recreation, publicserviresand employment is 
increased. This will be accomplished by establishing and supporting public and special needs 
transportation systems wherever needed and appropriate throughout the state. 

PROGRAM 013JECT'1VES ; . 

The N[)[X)T objectives are consistent with the Ff A program goals. The Ff A program goals and 
objectives of the individual programs are to continue growth in all areas of North Dakota by utilizing 
the available federal and state funding programs to: 

• A'ovide operating funds to support and maintain existing transit servires and als:> assist in 
establishing new servires, s:> that transportation disadvantaged pers:>nsand the general 

population in all areas of the state will have access to at least a minimum level of public or 
special needs transportation servires; 

• A'ovide capital funds to the existing public as well as special needs transportation systems to 
upgrade their buses and related transit equipment to ensure the continued viability of these 
systems and the transit servires they provide; 

• A'ovide grant funds to maintain and promote coordination of transportation systems and 
servires in the state; 

A'ovide technical assistanre to existing, special needs and new public transportation systems 
to increase the effectiveness and efficiency of their transit servires; 
Work with all state agencies involved in providing transportation servires to coordinate state 
and federal transportation programs. 

ROLES AND RJESPONSlBJLILfI'1filS 
In 1975, when the first annual apportionment of federal transit funds became available to the state of 
North Dakota under the FfASaction 5310 A'ogram (Transportation Assistanre for the elderly pers:>ns 
and persons with disability), the Governor of North Dakota designated the S:ate Department of 
Transportation to administer all other federal transit programs in North Dakota funded under the 
Urban Mass Transportation Assistanre Pd of 1964, as amended. ~affirmation of this designation for 
the Saction 5310 program was made on J:muary 28, 1985. 

In 1979, when the Saction 5311 Rlral Transit Assistanre A'ogram was implemented by FrA the 
Governor onre again designated the S:ate Department of Transportation to administer this program. 
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The designation of R.Jral Transit Assistance A-ogram was dated .Bnuary 5, 1979. Documentation of 
these designations is on file with the FfA~ion VIII office. 

~ecifically, the NDDOTTransit is responsible for: 

• Developing all administrative procedures, processing all financial documents for 
reimbursement of operative deficits and maintaining local financial accountability through 
standard audit practices; 

• Monitoring the expenditures of funds in all contracts that have been awarded to the 
providers; 

• Managing subrecipient selection process, notifying eligible subrecipients of the availability of 
programs, developing selection criteria, soliciting applications, reviewing and recommending 
projects for approval by NDDOT Management as part of a committee 

Managing grant agreements, amending grant agreements, developing and executing grant 
agreements with eligible subrecipients; 

Managing data, collecting financial reports, operating statistics and vehide data, maintaining 
databases, monitoring and evaluating transit system performance; 

Managing federal grants, program of projects, reporting and grant doseouts; 

• Monitoring subrecipient compliance with federal requirements; 
• Blgaging in planning and research activities, transit plans and studies; 

• A-oviding technical assistance, training and workshops for subrecipients; 

8.Jbmitting an annual report to the National Transit Database that contains the information 
required to be stated in all ~ction 5311 transit programs in North Dakota; 

• 8.Jbmitting a Federal Rnancial !=€port, final budget and final A-ogram of A-ejects through the 
FfA system, within 30 days of final expenditure of all funds in a federal grant; 

• Compliance reviews and site visits (facility and vehide inspections) to those transit providers 
in North Dakota that receive FfA ~ct ion 5310 and/ or 5311 funding for their programs. If the 
transit staff finds that a transit provider is non-compliant, the staff may implement more 
frequent reviews. 

Other divisions who assist the Transit section are; 

• Rnance Division -assists in grant management, subrecipient requested payments, Milestone 
A-ogressf€port (Mffis), Federal Rnancial F€ports(FFRs), etc.; 

• Ovil ~ghts Division - assists with 11tle VI, Limited Blglish A-oficiency (LEF), and 
Disadvantaged Business Blterprise (DBE}; 

Communication Division- assists with press releases, advertisement, and other public 
communications 

• A-ogramming Division - assistswith STIPand 11Pprograms. 
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~ROGRAM YEAR 
The progam year for S9ction 5310, 5311, 5339 and Sate Aid funding is the North Dakota state fiscal 
year (J.Jly 1 to J.Jne 30). The grant funds are available to the local transit providers from J.Jly 1st of 
the current year until J.Jne 30th of the following year. All grant applicants are due April 1st of each 
calendar year. 

S9ction 5310 indudes capital and operating funding, S9ction 5339 is capital funding only, and ~ion 
5311 includes capital, operating and administration funding. 

Al?'PJLICA'flON REVJiEW AND AP PROV AL SCJill€1DllLIE 
The Sat e's annual cnnouncements Siall provide a s:;hedule of dates for application submittalsand 
review by NDDOTsG"ant oommittee. 
The general application review and approval schedule for applications are: 

April 

April/May 

May 

~ipt of all applications; 

A-oposals reviewed by NDDOTs grant oommittee; 

G"ant Committee reoommendations are submitted to Director of afice of 
Transportation A"ogramsfor review; approved by Deputy Director 

J.Jne Contract preparation and notification. 

NORl'M JOAK<Crr A S''fA'rE AID FOR PU.131LJC TR.ANSrr 
PROGRAM 
In 1989, the North Dakota Sate Legislature enacted House Bill 1337 which initiated Sate Aid Funding 
for F\.Jblic Transit in North Dakota. This state legislation established a Sate F\.Jblic Transportation 
Fund to provide transportation aid payments to political subdivisions and nonprofit transit providers 
in each county for the purpose of establishing and supporting public transit services. The Sate Aid 
for F\.Jblic Transit program is listed in the North Dakota Century Code (NDCq in S9ction 39-04.2-04. 

In 2009, Smate Bill 2012 established a new formula for the public transportation fund and authorized 
the Director of the Sate Department of Transportation to administer this program. The Department 
of Transportation will disburse the funds according to specific guidelines established by the 
legislation. The funds must be used by transportation providers to establish and maintain public 
transportation, especially for the elderly persons and persons with disability. Funds may be used to 
oontract public transportation as matching funds in order to procure money from other sources for 
public transportation and for other expenditures authorized by the Director. 

R:lcipients for Sate Aid funding must oomply with the same regulations as required for S9ction 5311 
funding. 
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PLANNING ASSlS''Jr'ANC.E 
33ctions 5303 Metropolitan Ranning and 5304 S:atewide Flanning Funds and F€search grant funds 
are provided to the urbanized areas of the state for various transit related planning activities. 

J.F"TA SECTl<ON Sl©J3J AND Jt'Jf'A SECT']ON $3J©J4- S"lf'Al'.EW'lDE 
PLANNING AND ME'T'ROP<DlLfTAN PLANNING 
33ction 5304 is a companion progam to the Section 5303 program and provides an annual 
apportionment of federal transit planning funds to North Dakota for a variety of statewide planning 
activities. The state can use these funds for a variety of transit related purposes such as planning, 
technical studies and assistance, demonstrations, management training and cooperative research. 
UJrrently, these funds are combined with the 33ction 5303 funds and disbursed to the urbanized 
areas in the state for metropolitan planning activities. 

Funding for rural transit studies is generally funded with FHVVA S:ate Ranning and F€search funds 
(~. l=Equests for planning needs can be made to the NDOOT, Local Government Division at any 
time. 

33ction 5304 funds shifted to the metropolitan areas are rolled into the Consolidated Ranning Q-ant. • 
The combining of FfA and R-NVA planning funds allows flexibility in transportation, urban street and 
highway planning activities. Budget tracking and cost billing are also greatly simplified. ~ct ion 5304 
and 33ction 5303 funds are distributed to the three MFOs by means of a distribution formula 
developed by the MFOs. 

Two of North Dakota's urbanized areas (Fargo-West Fargo, and Q-and Forks' East Grand Forks) are 
located at the North Dakota state line with Minnesota and have neighboring state line cities of 
Moorhead, Minnesota and East Grand Forks, Minnesota respectively. Minnesota planning funds 
allocated annually to these two Minnesota cities by FfAand FHVVAare also pooled into the ~to 
facilitate administration of these funds to these state line urbanized areas. The NDOOT is the lead 
agency and administers the combined a:Gfunds for both state line urbanized areas. 

lheMFQs 

ubmits invoices for reimbursement monthly to NDOOT, Local Government Division. 
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lf"TA SEC1'10N Sl©J~ - URlaANlZRID ARICA .F'ORMULA 
J!!'.ROGRAM 
The section 5307 Urbanized hea Formula A"ogram, was initiated by the Congressional passage of the 
1974 Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) M and subsequent federal transit 
legislation. This program provides federal funds to the Q)vernors for transit capital, operating and 
planning assistance to urbanized areas having populations between 50,000 and 200,000 as 
designated by the U.S Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census. This program provides an 
annual apportionment of federal transit funds for North Dakota to support and improve public transit 
services in urbanized areas. The funds (which can be expended for capital, operating, administration 
and planning needs) are administered directly by FTA ~ion VIII and are made available to North 
Dakota's three urbanized areas of Bismarck-Mandan, Fargo-West Fargo and G-and Forks. 

NDDOTprovides limited oversight of this program. The Department has the option of moving or 
reassigning the program funds among the three urbanized areas, as well as between the other FfA 
transit programs. The funds lapse four years after the time of apportionment if not obligated by the 
urbanized areas within the time frame. 

METR.OP<O.Lfl'IAN AREA.PARTIClPA'Ji'l<DN 
Urban areas larger than 50,000 in population commonly form a Metropolitan Planning 0-ganization 
(MFD) with Fargo-West Fargo, Bismarck-Mandan and G-and Forks' East Qand Forks fitting this 
designation. NDDOThaspartnered with the MFOsthrough Memorandums of Understanding. The 
MFDisthe lead agency in transportation planning for their respective area. The MFDsolicitsreviews 
and prioritizes transit projects in each area. A"ojects are then submitted to NDDOT. 

Each M FD leads the ooordination efforts in their area and all projects must be oonsistent with the 
MFOs Long R:lnge Transportation Plan (LRTP), induded in their Transportation Improvement A"ogram 
(llP) and be oontained within the locally derived human services public transportation ooordination 
plan. The M FD also has private sector planning that must be followed within the M FD study area. 
Cllanges to each plan must be made thru the appropriate process in each area. 

Contact the M FD in your area for further details. 

Bismarck/Mandan M FO S:eve S:lunders ssaunder@bismarcknd.gov 

Fargo/Moorhead Metro CXJG William Cllristian christian@fmmetrooog.org 

Qand Forks' East Qand Forks M FD Earl Haugen earl .haugen@;heforksmpo.org 
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FTA Funding ~ion Number -
FTA Qrcular Number -

Bigible SJbrecipients 
Sate and local governments 
A.Jblic agencies 
R"ivate companies engaged in public 
transportation under governmental 
organization 
Non-profit organizations 
Governmental authorities in areas with 
no non-profit organizations 
Native American tribe 
Intercity bus service 

b'lJ· 1~1· tl Ir Ir;' U l!:Uf' I· ID Ir lr;'N'' II' S .r,:, . tV.1.0L..LJ ~~.IJ(' J!.tJ .1 ~, 

5339 
FTA 

CB300.1B 

x 
x 

x 

x 
x 
x 

5310 5311 
FTA FTA 

CB070.1G CB040.1F 

x x 

x x 

x x 
x x 
x x 

x 

Transportation service shall be for the general public. The geographical boundaries defined in the 
approved provider application will be the service area. This may indude regular or periodic trips into 
a regional center or urbanized area. Trips into urbanized areas shall not be for the purpose of 
providing transportation services to persons within the urbanized area. 

In order to be reimbursable, service must be open to the public. furvice must be advertised as open 
to the public in all advertising, brochures, websites and posters. 

J!i'TA SEC.TlON 5;l 1t©J - "fRANSPOKTA"Jf'ION FOR THE EILJDERL Y 
PERSONS AND Pfil~SONS wrrH DlSAIBlLll']JES 
fuction 5310 program funds may be used for capital and operating expenses in rural and urban areas 
to support transportation services to meet the special needs of the elderly persons and persons with 
disabilities. These funds are generally used to purchase vehides. 

R"ojectsselected for funding under ~ion 5310 must be derived from a locally developed, 
coordinated public transit/ human services transportation plan. These plans identify the 
transportation needs of persons with disabilities, elderly persons and people with low incomes and 
provide strategies for meeting these needs. Bigible subrecipients are private nonprofit organizations, 
governmental authorities where no non-profit organizations are available to provide service and 
intercity carriers, provided all federal qualifications are met. 

83ction 5310 grant funding is available for the year in which it is appropriated plus an additional two 
years (for a total of three years). 
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Examples of capital expenses indude, but are not limited to: 

• Buses and vans; 
• Ridios and oommunication equipment; 
• Vehide shelters; 
•Wheelchair lifts and restraints; 
• Vehide rehabilitation or overhaul; 
•Extended warranties which do not exceed the industry standard; 
• Computer hardware and software; 
• Initial oomponent installation oosts; 
•Introduction of new technology into public transportation; 
•Transit related intelligent transportation systems (ITS;); 
• SJpporting new mobility management and ooordination. 

S'1f'ATE OOORIDJfNAT]ON ANJD TECHNICAL ASS]S'TANCJE 
St\FEIFA-W requires projects under S3ction 5310 be derived from a locally developed, ooordinated 
public transit-human services transportation plan for all FTAprogramson behalf of underserved 
populations: Bderly Persons and Persons with Disabilities(~ction 5310). The provisions of SA.FETEA
LU aim to improve transportation services for persons with disabilities, elderly Americans and 
individuals with low inoomes. The provisions ensure that oommunities ooordinate transportation 
resources provided through multiple Federal programs. 

NDOOT is working together with multiple areas to develop ooordinated plans. Rans are to achieve 
the most oost-effective and efficient documents in delivering high quality transportation service. Each 
plan for ooordinating transportation services will need to be developed to each oommunity's needs, 
skills and resources. NDDOTwill help to provide the tools, support the plan in funding and give 
guidance throughout the planning stages. 

fa5 our population ages and increases in size, changes need to happen in A.Jblic and Human ~rvice 
Transportation to better service the changing oommunity needs. NDOOTis moving forward to 
ooordinate North Dakota's 53 oounties so to better serve the oommunities' transportation needs. 

4 (R>ur) Main Points of Ran 

• 

• 

• 

An assessment of available services that identifies current transportation providers; 

An assessment of transportation needs of individuals to be served with the funding 
sought, that is, personswith disabilities, elderlypersonsand people with low incomes; 

S:rategies, activities and/ or projects to address the identified gaps between current 
services and needs, as well as opportunities to improve efficiencies in service delivery; 
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A"iorities for implementation based on resources (from multiple program sources), 
time and feasibility for implementing specific strategies and/ or activities. 

A"ocess for R.Jblic Involvement 

•Identified Sakeholders; 
o Local Officials, C.Ommunity B:ised O"ganizations, A.Jblic Transit A"oviders, Sate & Local 

Human Eervice Agencies, Transportation C.Onsumers and Sate & Local Transportation 
Aanning Agencies 

•Initial Meeting; 
o Date and Oher Meeting(s) 

•Establish Commitments and Form Partnerships; 
o Formal Agreements among Participants 

• &>ecify Goals, Cl>jectives, C.Onstraintsand A"iorities; 
o For 5310 

• ..bintly Identify Oient Needs; 
o Bderly Persons, Persons with disability and ~rsons with low income/welfare 

recipients 
• Identify Transportation !=€sources (list shared resources); 
•Design Detailed Eervice and Rnancial QJtions; 
• Eelect and !=€commend a Flan of Action; 
•Describe Competitive Eelection A"ocess; 
•Documented C.Onfirm Agency and C.Ommunity Commitments; 
•Develop Implementation and R.mding Flan Eelected Alternative; 
• R:lnking/Funding Qiteria lnduded; 
• A"oject Budget lnduded; 
•Executed Flan Executed Date(s), Sgnature Page and Board/Committee; 

Through a coordinated planning effort NDDOThas implemented a uniform application and relection 
process for the Eect ion 5310 program. 

Olce NDDOT receives the coordinated plan and application they are reviewed for compliance with 
NDDOT/ FfA rules and regulations. After the review process is complete, the committee ranks all 
plans and applications. The committee will look at past performance measures, funding availability 
and long range feasibility and sustainability. This will ensure a fair and competitive process. 

Coordination between the grant programs is maintained by comparing the A"ogram of A"ojects (RJP) 
of all projects together and not as individual programs. Best ure of the funding is maintained by 
balancing the programs together and using appropriate funds for each grant request. 

lnteragency coordination is accomplished with regular meetings with the Department of l-lealth 
EervicesAging Eervices. C.Ontinual communication with this agency, subrecipientsand any other 
comments received by the NDDOT are actively pursued. 
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SJbrecipients actively communicate with the Human fervices agencies in their area to ensure service 
to those in need. 

lf('TA SEC'fl<ON Sl ll ]_ - RURAIL AND SMAJL1 URBAN AREAS 
fection 5311 provides an annual apportionment of federal transit funds to North Dakota to rupport 
and improve public transit service in the rural areas (areas and localities under 50,000 in population). 
The funds may be used for capital, operating and administrative assistance to local public bodies, 
Native American tribes, nonprofit organizations and operators of public transportation services. 
fection 5311 funds are administered by this lRpartment and are used to support public transit in the 
small cities and rural areas of the state. 

fection 5311 grant funding is available for the year in which it is appropriated plus an additional two 
years (for a total of three years). 

1. Qlerating Expenses are considered those costs directly related to system operations. M.. a 
minimum, the following items must be considered operating expenses: 

• Fuel/oil; 

• Vehide and building insurance; 

• Drivers' and maintenance salaries and fringe benefits; 
• R3nt and utilities; 

• Licenses and fees; 
• Maintenance, repairsand parts; 
• Advertising/marketing; 
• Training and lRvelopment; 

• Drug & Alcohol Testing; 

• Office SJpplies and postage. 

Net operating expenses are those expenses that remain after operating revenues are subtracted from 
eligible operating expenses. 

M. a minimum, operating revenues must indude fare box revenues. Fare box revenues do not indude 
payments made directly to the transit provider by human service agencies. 

A cost allocation plan must be submitted and approved before indirect costs can be reimbursed. This 
plan can be one prepared for a different federal agency or one prepared for the Ff A program. (OM B 
Orcular A-87, FfAC6100.1CPage IV-5, DHHSbrochureASVIBC-10 and A-87 are references you may 
use in preparing the cost allocation plan.) 

2. Administrative Expenses are those eligible project administrative expenses induding 
general administrative expenses such as: 
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• S:llaries and fringe benefits of the director, secretary and bookkeeper; 

• Audit expenses; 

• Legal; 

• Travel. 

3. Capital Bcpenses are the same as those listed under the ~ct ion 5310 program, with the 
addition of these capital items such as: 

• Paratransit vehides; 
• Vehide rehabilitation, remanufacture or overhaul. 

The above list is by no means comprehensive as additional small capital items are also eligible. 

4. Sate ,Administration is available to the state for use in transit administration such as 
consultant services. 

JFTA SECT'lON Sl ll lt{_.13) - RURAIL TRANSrr ASS]STANCE 
P'ROGRAM ~Rl'M) 
~ction 5311(b) (3) Rf AP is administered in conjunction with the ~ct ion 5311 program. It was 
established under the Federal Mass Transportation Pd. of 1987. RrAPprovidesan annual 
apportionment of federal funds to the state for transit training, technical assistance and other 
support activities to enhance transit operations and services in the state's rural areas. These are 
100%federal fundswith no local match required. 

Any subredpients receiving 5311 funds are eligible to request Rf AP funds. 

Rf AP funds may be used to support transit activities in the following categories: 

National, regional and state conferences and workshops; 

• Technical assistance; 

• Training; 

!=€search; 
• !=€lated support services; 

F\Jrchase of equipment to support any of the above activities 
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Jr'TA SE<C'l'tON ~l h h (}I') - !Nl'JgRCrr Y BlUS PROO.MM 
NDOOT administers 5311 (f) program funds in accordance with the federal Intercity B.Js A-ogram. 
According to the Intercity Bus Assist an re A-ogram, NDOOT may contract with private providers of the 
intercity bus service to support intercity bus routes for the provider, or make grants to political 
subdivisions to support intercity bus servire routes. Intercity bus service is defined as, "regularly 
scheduled publicbusservicesthat operateswith limited stops between two urbanized areasor 
connects rural areas to an urbanized area." 
Through this program, NDOOTconductsoutreach with the goal of obligating 15 perrent of all annual 
5311 funds for intercity bus projects. ~rvire is requested through a grant application process with 
the intent of funding projects that meet the following objectives: 

• The servire has meaningful intermodal connections; 

• The service project improves connectivity to or between major metropolitan areas that 
currently lack convenient or direct intercity busservire; 

• The contractor demonstrates that they have the technical capacity, financial stability, 
marketing plan and requisite experience to be recipients of federal funds. 

The reporting of financial information and reimbursement for services will be performed on a 
quarterly basis using the same provider controls and procedures as the 5311 program . 

• SERVl<CESANJO SJgRVlCJE AMA 
A.lblic transportation services to be provided under 5311 funding program shall be available to all 
persons within the service area. The transportation service may either be provided by the applicant, 
by a private-non-profit provider or private-for-profit provider under contract to the applicant. 

F\.Jblictransportation programs must: 

• Q:Jerate a minimum of 16-20 hours per week to rereive 5311 funding (effect ive J.Jly 1, 2015); 

• Olarge a set fare- minimum of $1 .00 per boarding in town to rereive 5311 funding (effective J.Jly 
1,2015); 

• Participate in shared rides defined as such that transit may transport two or more passengers in the 
same vehide who are otherwise not traveling together. 

NA'f!ONAIL 'l'RANSrr .IOA'r ABASE 
~ction 5311 subrecipientsare required to report revenues, expenses, service hours, servire miles, 
ridership, and accident data each quarter. Additional data (e.g., vehide and facility data) is collected 
directly from subrecipients. fas required by 49 CFR Part 630, National Transit Database (N1D) 
mandated reports, due each year, are comprised of all data gathered based on the Sate of North 
Dakota fiscal year which runs from J.Jly 1 through J.Jne 30. NDOOT reports the data on behalf of its 
subrecipients. Urban and Tribal subrecipients report their data directly to the NlD. 
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ON-Sft'E REVIEWS AND 00.MPtJANCJE .RJSV].IEWS 
NDOOTTransit feet ion conducts compliance and on-site reviews of feet ion 5310 and 5311 
subrecipients. Capital equipment purchased with FfA funds (primarily vehides and facilities) is 
inspected by the NDDOTat least once every two years. Thisoontinuesover the useful life of land, 
vehides, facilities, and equipment to ensure it is well-maintained and oontinues to be utilized for the 
purpose intended. A oopy of the vehide inspection form is induded (exhibit 8). 

In addition to the property and equipment inspections, the NDDOTTransit fection will oonduct 
oompliance reviews of each 5311 subrecipient in order to ensure the subrecipient is following FfA 
mandates. 

The oompliance review oonsists of monitoring the subrecipient's Drug & Aloohol policy, Vehide and 
Facilities maintenance plan, lit le VI and ~plans, fiscal management procedures, and general 
operation procedures for their transit program. 

If a subrecipient is determined to be nonoompliant with FfA regulations following the oompliance 
review, they will be notified and given a timeline to rectify all findings. Failure to resolve 
nonoompliance issues may result in diminished or elimination of federal funding. 

FTA SECTION $3J]~ - BlUS AND BUS FAClU!'TlES 
feet ion 5339 is a program used to provide capital assistance for new and replacement buses, related 
equipment and facilities. Federal funds under this program are annually apportioned to the states. 
The program requirements under the Capital Investment Gant (49U.SC5339) were not changed 
under the S\FETEA-LU legislation. 

fection 5339 grant funding is available for the year in which it is appropriated plus an additional two 
years (for a total of three years). 

fection 5339 program funds may be used for capital projects in both rural and urban areas of the 
state. Examples of capital expenses indude but are not limited to: 

•Acquisition of vehides for fleet and service expansion; 
• FEhabilitation of buses (requires bus to be kept in service for 24 additional months beyond 
renovation date); 
•Construction and renovation of bus maintenance and administrative facilities; 
·Transfer facilities, transportation centers, intermodal terminals and park-and-ride stations; 
• A.Jrchase of replacement vehides, vehide rebuilds and vehide preventive maintenance; 
• A.Jrchase of passenger amenities such as passenger shelters and bus stop signs; 
• A.Jrchase of accessories and miscellaneous equipment such as mobile radio units, fare boxes, 
oomputers, shop and garage equipment. 

16 

• 

• 



LOCAL S.IFIARE ANJO WCCAIL 'UN.O.tNG REQUlRJE!MICN't'S 
The local applicant will provide the required local matching Siare for capital and operating assistance 
projects. The local matching share shall be cash from sources other than the U.S D3partment of 
Transportation funds. All transit providers must provide proof that local match funds are from an 
allowable source to match federal funds and are not being obligated in another way. 

The matching share for project administration, capital and operating costs may be from a source that 
includes state, local government, unrestricted federal or private funds. ,Applicants eligible for public 
transportation assistance may receive state funds to match their federal funds up to 50%of the 
deficit after the allotted federal funds. ,Applicants not eligible to receive state funds may provide the 
local match with a combination of unrestricted federal funds and local cash funds. Examples of local 
match that may be used for the local share include local appropriations, other non-federal OOTfunds, 
dedicated tax revenues, private donations, revenue from human service contracts and the net 
income generated from advertising and donations. 

Note: The following sources may NOT be induded in local match funds: 

• Federal USJOTfunding; 

• Farebox revenue; 

• Other Federal R.mds 

METHOJO FOR DlSTRLBU1']NG FUNDS AND PROJECT 
1€V ALUA1flr<ON <C.rul'Eru.A 
Through the annual application process, due to the state on ,April 1 of every year, eligible 
subrecipients prepare and submit application materials. Annual applications are then reviewed by 
the NDOOT grant review committee. The committee reviews eligible applications with consideration 
given to the amount of funding available and the amount of requests received. The committee will 
also consider the following when reviewing and awarding funds: 

• ~cords' Oaims submitted on time; 
• Completeness and compliance with state and federal regulations' requirements; 

• Rnancial plan that demonstrates fiscal capacity and reasonableness; 
• Coordination relationships with other organizations and agencies; 

• D3monstrated needs, past performance, vehide maintenance, history of reliable service, cost 
per mile, technical capacity, technology and willingness to participate in training. 

Penalties may apply for tardy or incomplete applications. 

The grant committee is made up of 3 NDOOT employees and 4 non-NDOOT employees. The non
NDOOT committee members will serve a 3 year term and will be appointed by the transit staff. 
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Distribution of ~ction 5311 funds shall be allocated on the following basis: 

• Up to 10%of the total allocation may be used by the NDDOTtransit section for program 
administration and technical assistance; 

• Up to 10% of the funds may be retained for emergency purposes and contingencies; 

The balance will be available to existing systems for operating, administration, and capital 
assistance purposes. 

The division of funds between operating, administration and capital purposes will be discretionary on 
a year-by-year basis. In general, emphasis will be given to operating assistance. 

If necessary, preference in the allocation of funds shall be given to the transit provider that is best 
suited to serve areas which do not a..irrently have access to public transportation, as well as to 
providers serving the needs of the general public, seniors and persons with disabilities. NDOOT does 
not allocate ~ct ion 5311 funding for construction, renovation or similar projects due to the need for 
capital purchase of buses, vans and associated equipment. It is the intent of NDDOTto fund 
operating, administration, Intercity, RrAPand capital in the 5311 program. It is the intent of NDDOT 
to fund vehide purchases with the 5339 and 5310 grants. 

Capital Funds Distribution 

Capital fund requests are completed with the same annual application that is reviewed by the 
committee. The committee will review the capital requests with the same considerat ion for 5311 
operating and administration funds. 

FTA program funds for vehides are allocated based on need, with the following considerations 

• Vehide age, mileage and condition; 

Vehide replacement versus expansion; 

• ~rvice to new areas; 

• ~rvice on additional days; 

• ~rvice with increased hours. 

NDOOT maintains records in the transit database for vehides, facilities and other substantial assets 
purchased with FTA funds. The database is updated through the following: 

~If-certification - using forms provided by NDOOT, subrecipient verifies the presence and 
status of vehides, facilities and other substantial assets; 

01-site reviews and during compliance reviews. 

R:!quests for capital assistance are made available in the following order of priority: 

• Projects to replace vehides operated by existing systems; 

• Projects to initiate a public transit service; 

Projects to replace maintenance and storage facilities of existing systems; 
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• Projects to expand the number of vehides operated by existing systems; 

• Projects to expand and rehabilitate maintenance and storage facilities of existing 
systems; 

• Projects to purchase and install passenger amenities for existing systems such as 
shelters and bus stop signs. 

ANNUAIL PR<D@RAM 10EVE.LOPMEN't' ANJO PR<DJEC'l' 
APPRCDVAJLP.ROCESS 
The application submission and approval process for each of the grant programs results in approved 
subrecipient budgets and sub-grant agreements. This forms the basis for the program of projects. 

AA email announcing grant availability is sent to all current applicants as well as potential new 
applicants who have contacted NDDOTthroughout the year. S:llected projects and corresponding 
award amounts are based on criteria for S:lction 5310, 5311and5339 applications. Olce the awards 
are determined, the details of each award are induded in a program of projects that is submitted to 
the Ff Aas part of the TEAM/TAAMSapplication process. 

Further, the program of projects for each program is incorporated into the S:ate Transportation 
Improvement Program (STIP). My projects and awards that may take place within boundaries of a 
Metropolitan Ranning O'ganization (MFO) are incorporated into their respective Transportation 
Improvement Programs (llPs). llPs are further incorporated into the STIP by reference. A completed 
STIP is available on the NDDOTwebsite. 

The NDDOTannual grant cyde requires completed applicationsto be returned to the NDDOTtransit 
section no later than ,April 1st. The application is used for requesting federal operating, capital and 
administration assistance funds. 

The data from these applications is compiled and summarized into a summary sheet for the grant 
review committee. 

After Executive Management has approved the review committee recommendations, the annual 
A"ogram of Projects is started. The A"ogram of A"ojects (FOP) indudes: name of recipient, project 
description, total dollar amount of the project and the federal dollar share for both operating and 
capital assistance funds. The following major areas of concern are checked in the NDDOT review of 
individual applications: 

• Documented budget figures; 
• S:lrvice area; 

• Fare structure; 

• Coordination with other public, private-nonprofit and private-for-profit transportation 
organizations; 
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• No duplication of service; 
• Past service history; 

• Compliance; 

• Technology capacity; 

• R:!liable service and meeting attendance. 

ANNUAL PROGRAM OF PROJECTS (POP) DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL 

PROCESS 

The annual A-ogram of A-ojed:sfor each program is developed from the grants awarded. The 
A-ogram of A-ejects is then reviewed by the NDOOTtransit team. Upon agreement, the RJPis 
uploaded into TEAM/TRAM Sand uploaded onto the NDOOTTransit website. 

ANNUAIL S"f'ATEW1Dfil TRANSPOR"fA'l'ION IMPROVEMENT 
J?;R.OGRAM (S'TW) REQUlREMEN"f' 
All s.ibrecipients funded under the fuctions5310, 5311, RTAP(5311(b)) and S:ate Aid programs are 
induded in the NDDOTsannual S:atewide Transportation Improvement A-ogram (snP). 

All subrecipients funded with the fuctions 5307 and 5339 programs in the states three urbanized 
areas are induded in the local metropolitan area Transportation Improvement A-ogram (llP) and 
these also become a part of the STIP. 

~ct ions 5303 and 5304 planning projects under any funding program can be, but are not required to 
be, listed in the local 11Ps or STIP. 

My increase in funding during the program year must be induded in the snPby revision or 
amendment. Amendments in M FO areas may also need a 11 P amendment. Contact the local M FO 
for policies and procedures for amendment. 

FUNJOS "fRANS~\JER 
Although it is the intent that all funds remain in their original grants, NDDOT may transfer fuction 
5310, 5311 and R-fWA flexible funds to other programs as specified in the respective FTA cira.Jlars of 
these programs. Notice of the transfers is forwarded to FTA 
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MEAL r>JB:li_JV.te;R Y SfilRVlCE 
Meal delivery service mug be incidental to the transit service. It must not interfere with transit. Ff A 
must not pay for the meal delivery system. R:!porting number of trips and miles for meal delivery 
should be kept separate, but can be reported to the transit section each quarter as information only. 

ASS.Ell MANA@fil.M.tgNl\ 
NDOOT ensures that all equipment a::quired by subrecipients (for transit use) with federal funds is 
monitored as follows: 

• NDOOTTransit staff visit facilities and inspect vehides to confirm usage during on-site visits 
and compliance reviews; 

• NDOOTTransit staff review operations and ridership reports to look for changing patterns. 

Capital items are funded to provide general public transportation service in a specific area. If a 
subrecipient becomes unable or unwilling to continue the service, any equipment with useful life 
reverts back to NDOOT. 

8.Jbredpients are permitted to use vehides for administrative purposes under the following 
guidelines: 

• Federally funded vehides may be used for occasional travel of administrative staff trips where 
mileage would normally have been paid for the use of a personal vehide. Travel to and from 
work is prohibited and/ or weekend use for other than strictly business purposes is 
prohibited. 

• Federally funded vehides are not to be used by board members for their travel, unless they're 
on transit board business only. 

• Use of all vehides must be documented in a log that indudes: 
o Name of the user; 
o Date; 
o Destination; 
o Initial odometer reading; 
o Biding odometer reading; 
o Trip purpose. 

Inspection of vehide logs are part of NDOOT routine site-visits inspections' compliance reviews. 

Federally funded vehides for incidental use (meal delivery, etc.) must be documented and the wholly 
allocated costs associated with that incidental use must be recovered by the Section 5311 provider 
and cannot be charged as an operating assistance expense. 

NDDOT maintains a vehide inventory which indudes a detailed description of vehide information and 
history. The NDOOTtracks vehides by agency and per the following data: 

21 



• Vehicle year and year vehicle was first put in use; 
• Vin number; 

Miles and condition; 
o Updated throughout fiscal year 

• NDOOT as lien holder of vehicle; 
• License plate and unit number; 

• Make and model; 

• Capacity; 

• R.Jrdlase price; 

• Type of vehicle; 

• A"ogram and grant number; 

• If vehicle has a lift or ramp. 

The inventory is kept current through reports and periodic physical inspection. 

When other equipment is purchased locally, subrecipients are required to follow av1 Band FTA grant 
requirements, FfA Orcular 4220.1 F and state law. Transit staff will review subrecipients' 
procurement policies before the purchase is made locally. 

When a vehicle purdlased with federal funds is sold or disposed of for more than $5,000.00, the 
federal share of that amount must be returned to NDDOT either for future use in the program or 
returned to FTA 

All recipients are required to maintain an equipment file on each capital item having an original oost 
over $5,000.00. This file inventory records will include: 

• Description; 

• Acquisition Date; 

• Federal Participation Percentage; 
• C.Ondition; 

• Disposition; 
o Method 
o ~Hing A-ice 
o Date of S31e 

• ~rial Number; 

• litle; 

• S::>urce of R"operty; 

• Location; 

• NDOOT grant number; 
• C.Ost . 
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In JJly 2012, Moving Ahead for A-ogress in the 21st Century (MAP21) established that all Ff A grantees 
and their subrecipients will be required to develop transit asset management plans that indude, at a 
minimum: 

• Capital asset inventories and condition assessments; and 

• Investment prioritization 

With this in mind, the NDDOT applied for FTA funding to work with a software company to develop a 
Transit Asset Management (TAM) Ran and electronic program. The NDDOThasbegun workingwith 
RJuteMatch a>ftware on this program. This project is moving along and the NDDOT has established 
three pilot transit agencies to test the program and offer suggestions as it is being designed. 

Asa condition of receiving federal funds, transit agencies will be required to submit an asset 
management plan to the NDDOTfor review and approval. The plan must inventory all transportation 
system assets and provide a preservation plan based on lowest life c:.yde (LL~ methodologies. For 
the purposes of the TAM Ran LLOCis defined as: "Lowest life c:.yde cost methodology is 
demonstrated by a cost model that reflects each agency's policies and standards in a planned 
preventative/ preservation maintenance program resulting in the lowest maintenance costs over the 
life of the asset. This methodology ensures that an asset is maintained at an acceptable condition 
maximizing safety and useful life." 

This means that incremental preventative maintenance activities are conducted to preserve the life 
of the asset. In addition to preserving the assets life, this approach results in lower maintenance 
costs over the life of the asset. VVhen using LLOCmethodology, transit agencies assess the cost of an 
asset over its projected useful life and take the preventative maintenance measures needed to avoid 
more costly repairs. 

The NDDOT initial TAM Ran will address rolling stock and facilities, as follows: 

• All rolling stock (Buses, plus other state-owned/funded vehides) 

Facilities with a replacement value of $5,000 or greater 

• Other equipment with a replacement value of $5,000 or greater 

Oianges and adjustments will be made to the project as it is being designed to address FfAs, NDOOT, 
and the Transit .Afjency's needs. This project is on track to be completed in spring of 2016. 

MAtNl'ENANCE 
Consstent with Federal requirements and NDDOTsubrecipient'sagreement, each subrecipient must 
maintain its vehides and other substantial assets purchased with federal or state funds. Transit 
agencies are required to have a documented maintenance plan along with preventative forms and 
checklists on file. F€quirements in the plan include pre-trip inspections, wheelchair lift inspections 
and maintenance. Post-trip inspections are recommended but not required at this time. 
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3.Jbrecipients are required to develop a maintenance plan covering their federally funded vehides 
and to provide NDOOTwith a copy of their plan. NDDOTwill provide samples of plans upon request . 
Once adopted by the transit board, subrecipientsare requested to submit the plans to NDOOTfor 
approval. 

I 

3.Jbrecipients must maintain all federally-funded property in good operating order and maintain NJA 
accessibility features. All maintenance performed on these vehides must be documented and must 
be available for inspection by NDOOT or Ff A staff or their representatives. 

Each subrecipient is responsible for ensuring that each vehide is maintained in accordance with 
vehide manufacturers' standards and any neglect or misuse of equipment will be the responsibility of 
the local organization. 

All property purchased with FTA funds shall have a written maintenance policy. 

Vehide maintenance plans must be adopted by the agency and copies distributed to appropriate 
personnel. NJA features such as lifts, ramps and tie downs must be maintained as recommended by 
the manufacturer. D:>cumentation of maintenance must be maintained for 3 years beyond vehide 
disposition. 

Olanges to the maintenance plans and process may be revised as the NDOOTTAM Ran and s::iftware 
program is implemented statewide. 

US.ICP.\U.t LlF'E Of ' VEHlCUCS 
The state and federal vested interest in vans, buses, 2-way radios and other transportation related 
hardware and equipment purchased with government grant funds shall extend over the useful life of 
such property. However, regardless of useful life having been met, federal interest remains until the 
value of the vehide or equipment falls below $5,000. The useful life of the equipment is established 
by the department and is listed below. This useful life criterion is also used by the Department in 
determining eligibility of local transit agencies for replacement vehide and equipment grants. 

Duration of Useful Life: 

• For vans (up to 12 passenger and sold modified vans), the useful life is 100,000 miles or 4 
years; 

• For modified minis and light duty cutaway (up to 14 passenger and under 20 feet long), the 
useful life is4 years or 100,000 miles; 

• For medium size light duty cutaways (up to 16 passengers and under 25 feet long), the 
useful life is 5 years or 150,000 miles; 
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• For medium size medium duty transit cutaway (up to 30 passengers and under 30 feet long), 
the useful is 7 years or 200,000 miles. ClJtaways will not be replaced with less than 200,000 
miles; 

• For medium size heavy duty transit bus (up to 35 passengers and under 35 feet long), the 
useful is 10 years or 350,000 miles. Buseswill not be replaced with less than 350,000 miles. 

Vehides and equipment not covered by the above, the useful life will be established by the 
NDDOTTransit ~ct ion on a case-by-case basis at the time of purchase. 

There is a special provision to allow for replacement of a bus or van before its useful life is spent, 
if it can be documented that the vehide to be replaced is a lemon (i.e., has required 
extraordinary maintenance and repairs and has given service problems since being placed into 
service). In this case, the vehide is to be traded-in for a replacement vehide with the trade-in 
value deducted from the new bus grant. 

After the useful life of a vehide or related transit equipment is spent (as defined above), the 
Department will relinquish all interest and will no longer inspect such property nor require property 
insurance (collision/ damage) to protect the government's interest in the property. Liability insurance 
and other coverage as required by state law must still be maintained. The NDDOT reserves the right 
to deviate from or make exceptions to the above inspection and useful life policy as may be necessary 
or appropriate in special cases or circumstances. 

North Dakota DOT Category Approx. No. Approx. Useful Life 
CNNR.in S3ats Length Minimum 

lbs. 

A Large, Heavy-D..Jty Transit Bus 33,000- 35-40+ 35 ft. -40 12 years or 
40,000 ft. or 500,000 miles 

greater 

B. Medium-Sze, Heavy-D..Jty Transit Bus 26,000- 24-35 30 ft. - 35 10 years or 
·-·r-'\'l,;,!'ll 

~l 33,000 ft. 350,000 miles 

C Medium-Sze D..Jty OlassisOJtaway 10,000- 16-30 25 ft. - 30 7 years or 
26,000 ft. 200,000 miles 
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D. Medium-Sze Light D.lty Olassis OJtaway 

E 1. Snail OJtaway 
E 2. Modified Van 
E 3. Modified Minivan 

E 4. Vans 

E 5. Minivan 

10,000- 8-16 
16,000 

6,000-
14,000 

6,000-

14,000 

3-14 

3-12 

20 ft. - 25 5 years or 
ft. 150,000 miles 

E 1 20-22 4 years or 
ft. 100,000 miles 

E2 <20ft. 

E3 < 20ft. 

<12 4yearsor 
100,000 miles 

JDISPOSITION AND 'T'RANS.FlER OF EQUlPMEN"l' 

Vehicle Title and Salvage Ownership 

NDDOTwill have a lien on the title to all federally and state funded transit vehides until useful life is 
met. The Department reserves the right to protect the NDDOT, state and federal interest in the 
vehide for the duration of the vehide's useful life. The NDDOT arranges for regular inspection of 
vehides to ensure proper maintenance. 

SJbrecipients will be required to dispose of all FfA funded items under the conditions of the FfA 
grant contracts (49CFR18.32). NDDOTwill permit the transfer of used Ff A and Sate Aid funded 
vehides from one subrecipient to another. Transfer of vehides will be in accordance with FfA and 
S:ate policy on transferring capital equipment. 

SJbrecipients are required to submit a written request for disposal of the vehide(s) or equipment 
they wish to dispose of to the NDDOTtransit staff. The subrecipient must receive written 
authorization before disposing of the vehide(s) or equipment. 

A subrecipient may dispose of a vehide at the end of its useful life in either of three ways: 

• A vehide may be sold to a third party through a variety of approved processes, induding 
advertised sealed bids, auto auction or the average of two competent appraisals. 
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• A vehide may be sold by the subrecipient to itself. In this case the implicit price to be paid by 
the subrecipient will be the average wholesale value of the vehides as specified in the most 
recent National Automobile Dealers Association (NADA) Official Used C'ar GJide or The Bus 
Blue Book - Used Bus Values GJide. 

• ~location (transfer of vehide) - the preferred option is the used vehide or equipment be 
relocated to another similar, eligible organization for a maximum charge of 20 percent of the 
current market value. The 20 percent proceeds can be retained by the donor provider as a 
partial return on its initial 20 percent grant match. The new subrecipient organization shall 
pay the 20 percent and use the relocated vehide or equipment for the same purpose as 
specified in the original grant program. The NDDOTwill assist in finding subrecipient 
organizations for relocating used vehidesand equipment , as appropriate. 

If a vehide, having useful life, is sold to a third party, the subrecipient may retain the local share 
percentage contained in the agreement. 

If a subrecipient sells a vehide to itself, the subrecipient must pay 80%of the NADA wholesale value 
to NDDOTwithin 10 working days. VVhen the disposition of the funded vehide results in a gross sales 
proceeds exceeding $5,000.00, the federal interest must be returned to NDDOTthen FrA 

Satisfactory Continuing Control 

Federal interest in real property exists until the property is disposed of. The amount of real property 
received from disposal of property must be used for transit use. The NDDOTensureseffective 
inventory controls through the establishment of vehide useful life standards, a vehide and facility 
inspection process and a transit vehide inventory. Anytime a vehide has met its useful life and is 
ready for disposition, subrecipients must notify NDDOTto get written consent to proceed with the 
removal of Ff A property. 

Disposition or Change ofUse Property/ Change of use of vehicles, equipment 
or property 

NDDOT must be notified immediately of any vehide, equipment or property whose purpose has 
changed from its original intended purpose. Insurance proceeds collected from vehide damage will 
reduce the reimbursement allowable for repairs or a new vehide. If insurance proceeds were 
collected and the repairs or replacement were not made, the amount must be subtracted (similar to 
fares) on the next request for operating reimbursement. C.Ontact with NDDOTand FrAstaff is 
required for disposal of real property. 
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MAINl'.ENANCE ANJO lNSPE<C'!'lON 
Inspections on buildings and vehicles will be conducted every other year to assure that the vehicles 
and buildings are being used for their intended use. The inspection will include reviewing 
maintenance records of vehicles and buildings to ensure that they are being maintained and fulfill 
their useful life . 

.BUILDING MAINTENANCE IWQUIREMENTS 
,AJI buildings constructed with FTA grant funding must have and adhere to a written maintenance 
program. The goals and objectives of a maintenance program are to ensure that the facility is well
maintained, reducing the need for repairs that would be unnecessary if best practices for ongoing 
care and preventive maintenance had been acx:omplished on schedule. 

In addition to standard building features, particular care is to be taken to ensure that accessible 
features of the facility are maintained in good working order. For example, ramps must be cleared 
and de-iced during the winter, automatic doors must operate properly, handrails must be firmly 
affixed, etc. 

In addition, facilities constructed, renovated or remodeled using S3ction 5339 or other federal grant 
funds are required to record and enforce warranty claims for all components and equipment that are 
covered. This may include, but is not limited to, siding, 1-fVACcomponents, flooring, windows, 
countertops, plumbing fixtures, bus storage bay doors, etc. 

Facilities with state or FfA interest must have a building maintenance plan in place. All systems such 
as, but not limited to l-IVA~ roof, floor or plumbing shall be inspected acx:ording to manufacturer 
recommendations or monthly if there is no manufacturer recommendation. /4DA features must be 
maintained as recommended by the manufacturer. Building maintenance checklists should be 
posted in a conspicuous area of the building. 

Vfil:UCLE MAIN''J!'JENANCJE REQUlR.EMEN'T'S 
,AJI vehicles purchased using federal grant funding must have written maintenance procedures in 
place and these procedures must be followed. The purpose for this requirement is to ensure vehicles 
are in the best possible working order at all times and are safe for use in public transit service. 
Maintenance of /4DA features must be included in the maintenance policy. 

NDDOTrecommends rural transit agencies adopt a policy of adhering to each individual vehicle's 
respective maintenance manual within a reasonable mileage number for the transit agency. For 
instance, if a transit agency finds their vehicle 50 miles from base at the recommended service 
interval, they may consider "within 150 miles of the vehicle's recommended service interval" to be a 
reasonable policy for ease of compliance. 
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The "within [how many miles] of' number will vary, both from agency to agency and within a multi
county organization, depending on where vehides are based. Each transit agency must consider its 
own cirrumstances when developing a policy to ensure the policy is able to adhere to their vehide 
maintenance requirements once the policy is in place. 

FACltrrIES., 1NCLUD1Nv .ENV!RONM.1€N'TAL C.HECKJLl!S''f AND 
f'A<ClU''fY MAINTENANC£ PIAN 
All facilities that are purchased or constructed with federal assistance must follow the federal 
guidelines for prorurement in Orrular CA220.1 F (as amended). A feasibility study must be completed 
for all facility projects, whether they are funded through the S:'lction 5311 program or the S:'lction 
5339 Capital A"ogram. 

A feasibility study will evaluate the project cost effectivene$ and its effect on the environment, 
induding noise, water quality, impacts on wetlands, flooding, navigable waters, endangered species 
and ecologically sensitive areas. 

All new construction or rehabilitation of an existing structure must meet requirements for local land 
use planning and zoning, relocation, traffic and parking, energy conservation, consideration of 
historic properties and will place an emphasis on safety and serurity. All facilities must be 
constructed to meet rurrent ADAacx:essibility requirements. 

Transit Facility A"oce$: 

SJbrecipients contact NDOOTto determine if federal funding is available for transit facility 
projects; 

• If funding is available, the system determines the type of facility needs, based on feasibility 
study in environmental proce$; 

• Oice type of facility needs is determined, the system needs to determine whether to build 
(new building) or rehab (existing building), again based on feasibility study in environmental 
proce$; 

• A"ior to being able to indude a facility project in a Federal Transit Administration (FTA) grant, 
there is an environmental prOGe$ induding a feasibility study that needs to be completed. 
The system must complete that proGe$ and receive an environmental dearance 
(Dorumented Categorical Exdusion, or oc:E} from FTA Typically during this proce$, FTA 
makes a visit to the proposed facility location; 

• The amount of federal dollars being requested must be induded with this request; 
• NDOOTwill assign the project number for the facility project and indude it in a S:atewide 

Transportation Improvement A"ogram (snP) or snp revision; 

• Oice the environmental proGe$ has been completed and FTA i$UeS the DCEor other 
environmental dearance, NDOOT can submit a grant to FTA requesting federal funding or an 
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existing grant can be amended to request federal funding for the project. Otce the grant or 
grant amendment has been approved, the system can proceed with the project; 

• The system then proceeds with ~sand bids for architectural and engineering services and 
construction/rehab. 

JF'lNANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
The Nr::x:x>T transit section is responsible for maiaging grants, contracts and interagency agreements 

to ensure that expenditures comply with federal rules and regulations for all FfA grant programs. 
Rnancial management responsibilities indude: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Investigating and resolving accounting problems to ensure compliance with state and federal 
rules; 

Managing the doa.Jmentation entered into NDDOl's transit database relative to individual 
grants, contracts and interagency agreements; 

8.Jbmitting Milestone reports in TEAM/TRL\M$ 

~ctifying and dosing out FfA grants when projects are complete . 

The NDDOT Rnance Division is responsible for submitting federal financial reports in TEAM/TPAMS 
and manages the BJ-10 process between Ff A and NDDOT. This is done so that transact ions are 

processed in a timely manner and the accounts are balanced and well doa.Jmented. The Rnance 
Division is also responsible for receipt of FfA funds, for processing daims for payment (to reimburse 
subrecipients for expenses), for initiating grant draw downs and for disbursing funds to subrecipients. 
Most of these tasks are performed with the transit section. 

The NDDOT Audit Division may conduct and perform audits on all Sections5310, 5311and5339 
subrecipients. 

8.Jbrecipients expending more than $500,000 in a fiscal year from AU_ federal sources must file an A-
133 audit. All other agencies will be asked to provide a financial statement audit or a financial report, 

i.e. such as submitted to their governing board or internal auditor on a yearly basis. 

The NDDOT provides technical assistance to its subrecipients on an as, "needed basis" to ensure that 
they comply with federal and state financial management requirements. 

NDDOT does a random pull of subrecipients using an online generator to pick the appropriate 
number of subrecipientsto provide receipts for onequarter'sdaim for payment. This random 
generator will pull each subrecipient to provide receipts once in a fiscal year. If a subrecipient is not 
drawn for providing receipts in the quarter transit staff visits their agency, the transit staff will review 
two+/- various line item requests from a past quarterly reimbursement. ~ipts must match what 
the subrecipients requested on that reimbursement. When an error is detected by the transit staff, a 
full quarterly review of receipts may be conducted. If major errors are detected, NDDOT reserves the 
right to require receipt doa.Jmentation for additional quarters. Billing adjustments may occur. 
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The transit staff will also verify all sources of local match. This will ensure the agency is giving NDDOT 
accurate information. The transit staff will verify dose out procedures on grants when the final 
drawdown has been processed. The process will look at local match and earmark money to make 
sure it balances. 

UNEXPENnEJO GRANl' .FUNDS 
In general, any ~tion 5311 and/ or Sate Aid funds not expended by the local transit agency 
recipients during the current state fiscal year (J.Jly 1 to J.Jne 30) will revert to the respective grant 
program fund. S:lction 5311 funds are reallocated as needs arise during the next state fiscal year. 
Appropriate revisions are made to the annual A-ogram of A-ojects and budget revisions are made to 
the FOP to balance with the budget in TEAM/TRAM Sas needed for submission to FrA F€gion VIII. 

Sate Aid funds revert to the Sate Aid for Public Transportation fund and, at the OOT Director's 
discretion, can be funded for state coordination or to subredpients that have used all their current 
state aid funding in the previous year's disbursement and meet state and federal compliance 
standards. 

Unexpended grant funds from Sections5339, 5310 and/or programs that occur when a transit agency 
fails to implement a project or make a requested purchase require a written request for additional 
time before the contract expiration date and it must state the reason for requesting the action. If the 
contract period ends, without written request, the funds are forfeited. If the request is for additional 
time, the NDOOT may acoept or deny the request depending on the reason provided. Olce a transit 
agency has relinquished funds, the NDDOTis free to reallocate the funds for another purpose. 

Any grant funding remaining after a transit agency has fully completed implementation of a funded 
project or capital purchase, automatically reverts to the grant program for reallocation. 

OOS't' AILlL<DCAl'lON ~Ji.ANS 
Each transit provider that isa multi-service provider or a larger agency will be required to provide 
NDOOT- Transit S:lction with a cost allocation plan. V\/hen the plan is received by the Transit Section 
it will be reviewed by staff and forwarded to NDDOT audit division for review. The transit provider 
will receive a formal letter from the Transit S:lction approving or rejecting the cost allocation plan and 
may indude recommendations that would strengthen the transit provider plan. 
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ACOOUN'T~NG SYS'TEMS, AUJOrr AND CLOSfilOlLfl' 
The Transit Rscal plans is based on the Accrual Basis of Accounting, the accounting method where 
income is recognized when earned instead of when received and expenses are recognized when 
incurred instead of when paid. 

All recipients shall comply with the single Audit fad Amendments of 1996 and O"vlBOrcular A-133. 
Each recipient must submit a copy of an annual audit or an annual financial statement review to 
NDDOTeach year or thirty days after completion of the O"v'IBOrcular A-133 Audit or financial 
statement review. 

Gant projects are dosed at the end of the contract period. NDDOT staff will determine at what point 
a project is ready to dose. When a capital project has reached the end of the contract period and 
there is a balance of funds, those funds will be forfeited. In some instances capital contracts may be 
extended. If a capital project is not expected to be complete when the contract period ends, the 
subrecipient may request an extension in writing prior to the termination of the contract period. 

PROCtJ!tEMEN"l' 
All g-ant agreements require subrecipients to: 

• C.omply with all relevant federal and state procurement laws and regulations; 

• 8..Jbmit all third party contracts to NDDOTfor review. 

NDDOTand 5310, 5311 and 5339 subrecipients must comply with all federal and state laws, 
ordinances, regulations and policies regarding procurement. 8..Jbrecipients that are public entities 
will follow the requirements that apply to states, called the C.ommon RJle (CFR Part 18), plus will 

comply with the following requirements: 

• Follow the appropriate procurement requirements: For public agencies, comply with the 
C.ommon RJle (CFRPart 18), plus five basic federal requirements for procurements defined by 
FfAC4220.1F3. For private nonprofits, comply with the provisions of FfAC4220.1Fand 49 
CFRPart 19; 

• A"ovide for full and open competition; 

• Exdude the use of in-state or local geographic preference; 

• Do not enter into any contract for rolling stock with a period of performance exceeding five 
years, exdusive of options without FfAapproval; 

• C.ontracts executed using federal funds indudes all clauses required by statues, executive 
orders and implementing regulations; and 

• Use competitive procurement procedures based on the Brooks fad when contracting for 
architectural and engineering services if the state has not adopted a statute governing 
procurement of such services. 
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Orcular 4220.1 F applies to all subrecipientsthat are nonprofit agencies and that rontrad with 
outside sources under Ff A assistance programs. 

Additional requirements for the state and all subrecipients indude: 

• Have a CDst Analysis; 

• Have written selection procedures; 

• Use the appropriated method of procurement; 
• Make awards only to responsible rontractors who will perform the project under the defined 

terms and ronditions; 

• ~stem for Award Management (Sl\1\11)- Prior to award of any rontract $25,000 and over, the 
subreci pient must identify if the ront ract or/ vendor is debarred or suspended from 
participation in federally assisted transactions or procurements. A screen print with the 
results of the search M USf be induded in the procurement file kept in the subrecipients office 
and a ropy MUSfbe submitted to the Transit ~dion for approval prior to award of rontrad. 
To begin the search visit www.sams.gov; 

• Use rompetitive selection processes; 

• Cbndud and document an Independent CDst Estimate for each procurement; 
• Develop written procurement policies and procedures, induding a process for handling 

protests regarding procurements; 
• In dude all federally-required certifications, assurances and dauses for procurements as 

appropriate to the type of purchase and price; 
• CDntract will have sufficient provisions to ensure a romplete agreement. Provisions will 

indude a description of the use of the funds; a beginning and end date; termination and 
suspension dauses; other applicable requirements pertaining to the type of funds and 
purpose of project; and sanctions for failure to romply with the requirements of the 
agreement, induding and not limited to, withholding and repayment of funds for cause. All 
rontracts shall indude a dause allowing for inspection of rerords and projects; 

• Maintain a romplete rerord of procurement history. 

• All subrecipients must follow S:ate of North Dakota laws, regulations and procedures 
regarding procurements thresholds (dollar amounts) unless federal requirements are more 
restrictive when federal requirements would apply. 

o Up to $2,500- use adequate procedures to ensure the price is fair and reasonable (1 
quote) 

o $2,501 - $25,000 - obtain a minimum of 3 informal bids or proposals 
o $25,001 and over -you must solicit formal sealed bids or proposals 

• If subrecipients would like technical assistance, induding review of R=Ps prior to advertising, 
they may request help. 
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NDOOT~sponsibilities: 

• Comply with state and federal procurement requirements; 

• lndude in grant agreements all federally-required certifications, assurances and dausesfor 

procurements as appropriate to the type of purchase and price; 

• ~view subrecipient procurement procedures and spot check procurements during 
compliance reviews and review the ~stem for Award Management (Sl\M) procedures; 

• A-ovide tedmical assistance in the preparation of requests for proposals, vehide and 
construction specifications, bid documents, subcontracts, review ~stem for Award 

Management (Sl\M) results prior to award of any contract $25,000 and over. 

• ~spend within 30 days of request. 

To assist local grant projects in vehide procurement, the NDOOT provides specifications for the 

subrecipient to use in purchasing vehides and equipment funded with FTAor Sate Aid grant funds. 
The NDOOT provides technical assistance, reviews and approves the final bid specifications. They also 
oversee the procurement process in order to ensure compliance with state and federal procurement 

regulations. NDOOT has incorporated an instruction sheet along with a checklist that has the 
required documentation. 

The NDOOT as needed will procure vehides on a Sate Bid Contract complying with all the applicable 
requirements. The subrecipient must submit a written request to the Transit ~ct ion requesting 

approval to contact a vendor and order a vehide. The Sate Bid Contracts are all listed on the ND 
A-ocurement Office website at: 
https:// apps.nd.gov/ csJ/ spo/ services' bidder/ listOmentContracts.htm 

All procurement of vehides, other than unmodified vans, purchased with FTA funds through the 
NDOOT, will comply with applicable requirements of 49 U.S C. 323(m) and Ff A regulations that 

pertain to A-e-Award and Post Delivery Audits of rolling stock purchases set forth in 49 a=RPart 663 
induding any later revisions. 

"Ole dollar" contaminates" all" rule: V\lhen federal funds are used to maintain or improve a 

property, FTA automatically retains 80% of the value. If you use FTA funds to maintain a city building, 

FTAgains80%ownership. If you use FTAfundsto add a ramp to a city building, FTAgains80% 

ownership. 

Facilities 

The NDOOTwill approve funding to construct new or alter current facilities to be used in providing 

public transportation services. These facilities must meet the appropriate acres.5ibility requirements 

under ADAstandards49 a=RPart 37. In addition the NDOOTTransit ~ction will approve all 

procurement documents, DBE~ecial A-ovisions, FTAdausesand documentsinduded in the 

procurement. 
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• Sole Source 

In rural areas of North Dakota and in the case of certain specialized transit equipment, transit 
agencies are not always able to obtain competitive quotes. In cases where a single source is all that is 
available, the transit agency director must submit a letter or email to the NDDOTthat dorumentsall 
efforts made to obtain competitive quotes or, in cases where the sole source is apparent, provide 
rationale that validates the use of the sole source. 

NDDOTreview and notice to proceed is required for all cases where purchase from a sole source is 
requested. Onission of information, provision of false information, or other intentional inaccuracies 
designed to allow purchase from a preferred vendor while bypassing the competitive purchase 
process is grounds for the NDDOTto cease distribution of federal and state grant funding. 

PROCUREMENl' P.ROl'EST .PROCEDURES 
The ND!X)T encourages local transportation providers to have their own transit prorurement protest 
procedures for resolving prorurement disputes at the local level. 

FrA's policy is not to consider grievances, complaints, protests or appeals until after settlement 
attempts have been submitted through local and state dispute resolution processes. According to 
FrA Orrular C4220.1 F Bid A"otest, FrA will only review protests regarding the alleged failure of the 
grantee (state or local grant recipient) to have written protest procedures or alleged failure to follow 
such procedures. Alleged violations on other grounds are under the jurisdiction of the state or local 
administrative or judicial authorities. 

The FrA Disputes Oause is induded by reference in all bid specification packages. The full text of the 
dause is available upon request (as noted in the bid specification packages) and it is also available to 
view online or download from the NDDOTwebsite. 

3.Jbrecipients ~sponsibilities: 

~view the manufacturer's Buy America certification and supporting dorumentation before a 
contract is awarded to purchase vehides (pre-award audit). The dorumentation review should 
indude vehide sub-components (place of origin, cost and place of final assembly); 

3.Jbrecipients must determine to their own satisfaction that the manufacturer can meet the 
Buy America requirements; 

Perform a post-delivery audit after vehides have been delivered. This post-delivery audit 
ensures that the manufacturer complied with Buy America, the Federal Motor Vehide S:ifety 
S:andardsand the subrecipients' specifications. The transit provider must complete the post
delivery audits before they accept the vehides and pay the vendor; 

• 3.Jbmit all dorumentation and certifications to NDDOT. Documentation must be received by 
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the Transit S:!ction at DOT prior to final payment to the grantee; 

• C.ontact the Transit S:!ction for technical assistanre if needed. 

R:limbursement for capital items will not be made until all required documentation is submitted to 
NDDOTTransit S:!ction and has been reviewed and approved by staff. 

LOCAL OOORD1NAT]<ON ANJO PU.BLlC 1NPUT 
NDOOT suggests public involvement in conformance with federal reg .. dations. Long-range and 
statewide planning associated with the development of the STIP is managed by the R"ogramming 
Division. The Transit S:!ction submits program and funding information to the R"ogramming Division 
for indusion in the STIP. 

When public involvement is needed it will be proactive and provide complete information, timely 
public notice, full public access to key decisions and opportunities for early and continuing 
involvement. 

NDDOTactivelyencouragesagencieswho are, or who represent, minorities; people with low income; 
and people with limited Blglish proficiencyto participate. 

PRLVA'l\E SEC'Jf'lO..N ~AR'flCJJ?;At'lON 
It is the Department's policy when a newly proposed transportation service (or substantially altered 
service) is planned for an area that is presently served by an operator, the private operator will be 
contacted and encouraged to participate in providing the new service under a service agreement with 
the sponsoring non-profit transit agency or the government agency in the county or area that is a 
current grant recipient. 

In the event of two existing providers, one private for-profit and one nonprofit organization; the 
private for-profit operator will be encouraged to participate in providing the new transportation 
service that is being proposed. In all cases, reasonable efforts will be made to minimize the adverse 
effects that government subsidized transportation projects may have on private transit operations. 

In keeping with FTA's continued emphasis on participation of private, for-profit transportation 
providers in the planning and delivery of federally funded transit services (privatization), the NDDOT 
encourages joint participation with transit services. C.oordination and consolidation in the state is 
requested if new eligible providers/ applicants request funds. E3efore new funds are approved the 
new service must be administered through the existing funded subrecipient. 
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Section 5 3 11 

Ffivate operators, both for-profit and non-profit, are involved in public transit in several ways: 

• \/\/hen a subrecipient chooses to engage a third party operator to provide public transit 
service there is full and open competition. The qualified private bidder is chosen and a 
contract isexecuted; 

• A"ivate operators are able to participate on local transit advisory committees; 

• The private sector is encouraged to participate on other NDDOTefforts (e.g., statewide 
plans, local transit development plans and technical assistance to subrecipients). 

Section 5 310 

FTA requires that applicants afford private, for-profit, transit and paratransit operators a fair and 
timely opportunity to participate to the maximum extent feasible in the planning and provision of 
proposed transportation services. Accordingly, each applicant for Section 5310 funds must comply 
with this policy and document such efforts in its application. 

The NDDOTwill publish a notice in the major newspapers serving the state and proposed service 
area, describing the project and soliciting interest from private parties to provide the service. The 
notice must provide 30 days for response and provide a publisher affidavit with its grant package for 
review to FTA Further, Section 5310 applicants must send notification letters to all known 
transportation providers in their area and provide at least ten days for response. If public hearings 
are held they must take place in an accessible location. 

Non-profit corporations are eligible applicants under 5310. All eligible applicants are invited to apply 
for Sect ion 5310 funds and awards are made based on fair evaluation of project merits. Potential 
applicants are informed of program solicitations through both email notifications to past and current 
awardees and website postings. 

Lists of private transportation providers are used to inform public agencies and non-profit 
organizations about the statewide coordination planning process. 

PERSON WITH .IDlSAB!LlTY ]N.PU"r {SECJ'l<ON 5;@4-~AIOA) 
The annual Federal Certification and As&Jrances for Ff A Assistance, which is signed by all 
subrecipients, contains the ADA certification. Qty of Mi not Busing is the only Sect ion 5311 
subrecipient operating fixed route and contracting for complementary paratransit service. Their 
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respective paratransit plans are reviewed by NDDOTTransit S:aff to conform to 49 a=R Part 37 
3.Jbpart F. 

Tl'l'LE VJi 
NDOOTannually signs the FTAAnnual List of c.ertificationsand Assurances for Federal Transit 
,Administration Q-antsand O:>operativeAgreements, which bindsNDDOTto all civil rights 
requirements. 

NDDOTprepares a Transit lit le VI Program ~port, for submission to the FTA every three years. This 
report is approved by the NDDOT Director. The elements of the program are determined by FTA 
Orcular 4702.1 Band indude, but are limited to: 

• A copy of NDDOTlitle VI notice to the public that indicated that NDDOT complies with lit le VI 
and informs members of the public of the protections against discrimination afforded to them 
by litle VI as well asa list of the locations where the notice is posted; 

• A copy of NDDOTinstructionsto the public regarding how to file a litle VI discrimination 
complaint, induding a copy of the complaint form; 

• A list of any public transportation-related litle VI investigations, complaints, or lawsuits filed 
with the NDDOTsincethe time of the last litle VI Program submission; 

• A public participation plan that indudes an outreach plan to engage minority and limited 
Ehglish proficient populations, as well as a summary of outreach efforts made since the last 
lit le VI program submission; 

• A copy of the NDDOTs plan for providing language assistance to persons with limited English 
proficiency (LH7), based on the U.S Department of Transportation's L.EPguidance; 

• A narrative or description of efforts that NDDOT, as the primary recipient, used to ensure 
subrecipients are complying with litle VI, as well as a schedule of subrecipient lit le VI 
program submissions. 

Program Administration 

NDDOT maintains the following: 

• A record of funding requests received from private non-profit organizations, state or local 
governmental authorities and Native American tribes. The record shall identify those 
applicants that would use grant program funds to provide assistance to predominantly 
minority populations. The record shall also indicate which applications were rejected and 
accepted for funding; 
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• Description of NDDOT'scriteria for selecting entities to participate in an FTAgrant program, 
which are found in current grant applications. This description shall emphasize the method 
used to ensure the equitable distribution of funds to subrecipients that serve predominantly 
minority populations, induding Native American tribes, where present. 

Su brecipients 

Through annual grant agreements, subrecipients agree to oomply with all applicable civil rights 
statutes and regulations. These indude lit le VI of the Ovil Rghts Act, Equal Employment q:>portunity 
and Americans with Disabilities Act. ~ion 5310, 5311and5339 subrecipientsannually sign FTA's 
Certifications and Assurances in their grant agreements with the S:ate. ~ion 5310, 5311 and 5339 
subrecipients must submit their litle VI programs to NDDOT. NDDOTwill develop a schedule that 
outlines the frequency with whidl subrecipients must submit their lit le VI programs. Asubredpients 
litle VI program must be approved by the subrecipient's appropriate governing entity or official 
responsible for policy decision body (e.g., board of directors, mayor, tribal executive, city 
administrator, etc.). 8.Jbrecipients must submit a oopy of the board resolution, meeting minutes or 
similar documentation as evidence of approval. The oontents of the subrecipients' lit le VI program 
are also determined by FTA Orcular 4702.1 B. It indudes all of the following elements: 

• Aoopy of the litle VI notice to the public that indicates the subrecipient oomplieswith lit le VI 
and informs members of the public of the protections against discrimination afforded to them 
by lit le VI as well as a list of the locations where the notice is posted; 

• A oopy of instructions to the public regarding how to file a lit le VI discrimination oomplaint, 
induding a oopy of the oomplaint form; 

• A list of any public transportation-related lit le VI investigations, oomplaints, or lawsuits filed 
with the NDDOT since the time of the last litle VI Program submission; 

• A public participation plan that indudesan outreadl plan to engage minority and limited 
English proficient populations, as well as a summary of outreadl efforts made since the last 
litle VI program submission; 

• Aoopy of the NDDOT's plan for providing language assistance to persons with limited 8iglish 
proficiency (l.ffl), based on the U.S Department of Transportation's IH>guidance; 
8.Jbrecipients that have transit-related, non-elected planning boards, advisory councils or 
oommittees, or similar bodies, must provide a table depicting the racial breakdown of the 
membership of those oommittees and a description of efforts made to enoourage the 
participation of minorities on sudl committees or oouncils; 

• .Additional information is required depending on whether or not the subrecipient isa fixed 
route transit provider or has received funding to construct a facility. 
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NDDOT Oversight 

NDDOTtransit section overseessubrecipient compliance with litle VI as follows: 

• Grant Agreements- Through annual grant agreements, subrecipient agrees to complywith 
applicable civil rights statutes and regulations, induding, lit le VI of the Ovil ~ghts Ad, Equal 
Bnployment Q:>portunity (EEO) and Disadvantaged Business Biterprise (DBE). The annual 
Federal Certifications and Assurances for Federal Transit Administration Assistance signed by 
all subrecipients contain the litle VI, EEO and DBEcertification; 

• ~view of SJbrecipients lit le VI A"ogram - NDDOT reviews the contents of litle VI programs 
materials as submitted by subrecipients, induding public notification language, LEP, complaint 
procedures and complaint forms and public participation and outreach. NDDOT provides 
sample materials and technical assistance to subrecipients in developing a compliant lit le VI 
program; 

• Investigation/ Monitoring of lit le VI Complaints- (or potential complaints and/ or lawsuits)
f:i.s part of their annual applications, NDDOT requires subrecipients to report on any lit le VI 
complaints or lawsuits. SJbrecipients may contact NDDOT at any time during the year to 
report litle VI complaints, potential complaints and/ or lawsuits. NDOOTmay also receive 
complaints regarding subrecipients or their contractors directly from the public. When a 
complaint is deemed a civil rights issue, NDDOTtransit staff will consult with the NDDOTlitle 
VI Coordinator as appropriate; 

• ~view of fervice 3andardsfor Rxed R>ute ${stems and ~uity Analysis-NDOOTreviewsthe 
service standards for fixed route systems. In addition, in the case of the construction of a 
transit facility, NDOOTwill review the equity analysis; 

• Annual Ppplication/ Qi-Ste Compliance Visit - During the compliance reviews or the 
application review, NDDOT staff will verify the physical location of the public notification 
language (and/ or web site, promotional materials, etc.) as stated in the subrecipients lit le VI 
program. D..Jring this time, NDOOT also discusses with the subrecipient any new or potential 
opportunitiesfor public participation and publicoutreach that may present themselvessince 
the previous submission of the sub recipient's litle VI program. Many transit systems have 
transportation advisory committees consisting of seniors, persons with disability, general 
users and organizations that work with people who are transit depended. County boards, 
village, town and city councils also address transit issues. 

NDDOT assists subrecipients with compliance as follows: 

• NDDOTprovidessample notification language, sample litle VI compliant form and sample 
litle VI complaint procedures to subrecipients; 

• NDDOThelps provide demographic data to assist subrecipients in conducting their four-factor 
analysis and subsequently developing their Ls=> plan. 
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Contractors and suboontractors are not required to submit a litle VI report. However, they are 
responsible for oomplying with the lit le VI program of the recipient with whom they are oontracting. 
R3cipients and subrecipients are responsible for ensuring that their oontractors are oomplying with 
their lit le VI program and lit le VI regulations. 

JDISAJDV AN"l'AGJED BUSINESS ENT~RISE «:D.131€) 
The objective of the US Department of Traisportation's(D01) DBE regulations, as specified in 49 GR 
Part 26, are to, 

• Blsure nondiscrimination in the award and the administration of DOT-assisted oontracts in 
the Department's transit financial assistance program; 

0-eate a level playing field on which DBEs can oompete fairly for DOT-assisted oontracts; 

• Blsure that the Department's DBE program is narrowly tailored in acmrdance with applicable 
law; 

• Blsure that only firms that fully meet this part's eligibility standards are permitted to 
participate as DBEs; 

• Help remove barriers to the participation of DBEs in DOT-assisted oontracts; 
• Assist the development of firms that can oompete succes.5fully in the marketplace outside the 

DBE program; 

• A"ovide appropriate flexibility to recipients of federal financial assistance in establishing and 
providing opportunities for DBEs. 

A DBE is defined by 49 CFR Part 26 as a for-profit business that is at least 51 percent owned by one or 
more individuals who are in a group that is considered to be socially and eoonomically disadvantaged 
and whose management and daily operations are controlled by one or more of the socially and 
economically disadvantaged individuals who own it. 

The NDDOT Ovil Rghts Division (CRJ) has the primary responsibility to administer the DBE program 
for NDDOT. This indudes the development of the department-wide DBEA"ogram Plan and 
formulation and distribution of the DBEFblicy. In addition, the rn:>workswith the Transit ~ction to 
develop the FfA tri-annual goal. 

NDOOTTransit ~ct ion regularly receives FTA funds which generate in excess of $250,000 in 
contracting opportunities in a federal fiscal year. This obligates NDOOTTransit ~ct ion to develop 
and submit transit-specific overall three-year agency goals to FTA NDOOTTransit assists NDOOTCRJ 
in the administration of the program of FTA funded projects. The primary activities oonducted by 
NDOOTTransit staff indude assistance with transit goal setting and oontract monitoring and 
reporting. 

NDOOTTransit staff work dosely with subrecipients in addressing DBE requirements. In goal 93tting, 
three-year goals are established based on anticipated FTA oontracting opportunities by both 
subrecipients and NDDOTTransit. Contract-specific goals may also be established and require a 
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greater amount of subrecipient technical assistance from NDOOTTransit S:!ction. Work with 
subrecipients also indudes the ongoing collection of data for contract monitoring and reporting on 
Ff A funded contracts. 

NDOOTTransit S:!ction completes a non-discrimination assurance for DBEwith each FfAgrant 
application. /ls with other civil rights areas, subrecipients agree to comply with all applicable civil 
rights statutes and regulations in annual grant agreements. S:!ction 5310, 5311 and 5339 
subrecipients annually sign FfA's Certifications and Assurances in their grant agreements with the 
state. In addition, each contract signed with a contractor (and each subcontract the prime contractor 
signs with a subcontractor) indudes a similar assurance of non-discrimination. 

During compliance reviews, subrecipientsare asked to identify potential contracting opportunities. 
NDOOTTransit staff work with subrecipients to identify potential DBE participation for those 
contracting opportunities. NDOOTTransit staff also ensures that subrecipients use appropriate DBE 
contract language in their solicitations. OOTsOvil Rghts Division provides assistance to potential 
DBEs to become certified and maintains the Unified Certification A-ogram Directory. 

The S:!ction 5311 quarterly reimbursement request indudes a form for transit agencies to list DBE 
expenditures made during the quarter. The information listed on this form is collected by the NDOOT 
to use in its annual DBE goal setting process. This form may be revised as Transit related DBEs are 
added or removed from the list of certified companies. This list is managed by the GD of the 
NDOOT. 

Uniform Report ofDBE Commitments/ Awards and Payments 

The Uniform !=€port of DBE Commitments' Awards and Payments report must be submitted in TEAM
Web DBEF€porting Module on i::ecember 1 and J.me 30 of every year. The information is collected 
from each transit agency on a quarterly basis. The transit agency must list all expenditures they made 
to a DBE during that quarter. The Transit S:!ction tracks the contract and payment data for the 
reporting period in the NDOOTs Contract Management software. 

EQUAIL EMPLOYMEN".r OPPOR'fUNll'Y 
The state must ensure that no person in the United Sates Siall on the grounds of race, color, religion, 
national origin, sex, age, or disability be exduded from participating in, or denied the benefits, or be 
subject to discrimination in employment under any project, program, or activity receiving Federal 
financial assistance under the Federal transit law. The NDOOT EEO program is administered by 
NDOOTGDwho also maintains the EEO program plan. 

Snee NDOOT does not operate a mass transit system or meet the threshold or employ 50 or more 
transit related employees, it is not required to submit an EEO A-ogram Ran to FrA 
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O.mently, none of NDD0Ts5310, 5311and5339 subrecipients receive capital or operating 
assistance in excess of $1 million or planning assistance greater than $250,000 and also employ 50 or 
more transit related employees. 

~ction 5307 NDDOTsubrecipientswho are also direct recipients of FTA funding (i.e., urban bus 
systems) that receive capital or operating assistance in excess of $1 million or planning assistance 
greater than $250,000 and also employ 50 or more transit related employees submit their EEO plans 
directly to FTA for review and approval. 

NDDOT annually signs the FTA List of C'Brtifications and Assurances for FTA grants and oooperative 
agreements, which binds NDDOTto EEO regulations. 

Subrecipient Oversight 

3.Jbrecipients sign and return, as part of their application for federally-assisted funding, the current 
nondiscrimination assurance form(s) provided as part of their application or oontacting materials. If 
the form is not currently on file at NDDOT, the subrecipient shall, upon request , sign and return such 
a form on a timely basis. 3.Jbrecipients shall also maintain a oopy of this form in their civil rights file 
kept at their place of business that will be available for inspection. 

Each oontrad between NDDOT and subrecipients for the provision of FTA funding shall oontain 
language that requires the subrecipient to oomply with FTA regulations related to EEO. In addition, 
private providers under contract with a subrecipient are required to comply with these regulations. 

The only NDDOT subrecipients that meet or exceed the receive capital and operating threshold for 
assistance above are 5311 subrecipients. fts part of annual application review of 5311 applicants, 
NDDOT reviews the list of transit employees of each applicant by job type induding a total number of 
transit-related employees. OJrrently none of NDDOTs current subrecipients have more than 50 
transit-related employees. If upon this annual review, the number of transit related staff reached 50 
or more and the dollar threshold for capital , operating or planning assistance was met, NDDOTwould 
require the subrecipient to submit a formal EEO program to NDDOTfor review and approval. NDDOT 
would withhold the approval of future grants until such time as it receives the required EEO plan form 
the subrecipient. The 6lual Employment Q:>portunity fad by definition explicitly exempts Native 
American tribes from its provisions. 

LOBJSYJNG 
3.Jbrecipients that submit, or intend to submit, an application for Federal assistance exceeding 
$100,000 must provide the following certification. 

• As required by U.S DOTregulations, "New ~stridionson Lobbying," at 49 a=R20.110, 
Applicant's authorized representative certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief 
that for each application for a Federal assistance exceeding $100,000: (1) No Federal 
appropriated funds have been or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Applicant, to any person 
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for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress 
pertaining to the award of any Federal assistance, or the extension, continuation, renewal, 
amendment, or modification of any Federal assistance agreement; and (2) if any funds other 
than Federal appropriated funds have been or will be paid to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with any application to FfA for Federal assistance, the Applicant assures that it will 
complete and submit 3andard Form-ill., 11 Disclosure Form to Raport Lobbying," induding the 
information required by the form's instructions, which may be amended to omit such 
information as permitted by31U.SC.1352; 

• The Applicant understands that this certification is a material representation of fad upon 
which reliance is placed and that submission of this certification is a prerequisite for providing 
Federal assistance for a transaction covered by 31 U.SC 1352. The Applicant also 
understands that any person who fails to file a required certification shall be subject to a civil 
penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

CHARTER 
49 CFRPart 604 (applies to all programs) places limits on the charter services that Federally-funded 
public transportation operators may provide. (FfA C9040.1 G page Xl-1 (2)) 
http:/ I www .ft a.dot .gov/ documents' Ff A C 9040.1 F.pdf 

The annual Federal Certification and Assurances for FfA assistance signed by all subredpients 
contains the charter certification. NDDOT assists subredpients with use of the FfA charter 
registration web site as requested. NDDOTtransit staff verifies compliance with charter regulations 
while conducting annual compliance reviews and receiving quarterly reports of charter service. 

11 Olarter service" means, (but does not indude demand response service to individuals): 

• Transportation provided by a recipient at the request of a third party for the exclusive use of a 
bus or van for a negotiated price. The following features may be characteristic of charter 
service: 
o A third party pays the transit provider a negotiated price for the group; 
o Any fares charged to members of the group are collected by a third party; 
o The service is not part of the transit provider's regularly scheduled service, or is offered for 

a limited period of time; or 
o A third party determines the origin and destination of the trip as well as scheduling; or 

• Transportation provided by a recipient to the public for events or functions that occur on an 
irregular basis or for a limited duration and: 

o A premium fare is charged that is greater than the usual or customary fixed route fare; 
o The service is paid for in whole or in part by a third party. 
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There are charter service exemptions that allow recipients to provide community-based charter 
services under these limited exceptions: 

• GJvernment officials on official government business; 

• Qualified Human ~rvice 0-ganizations (QHSJ); 

• Leasing FfA funded equipment and drivers; 

• V\lhen no registered charter provider responds to notice from a recipient; 

• .AQreement with registered charter provider, petition to administrator. 

If one or more of these exceptions are performed by any of our subrecipients you must report the 
charter service to NDDOT and FfA through TEAM/TRAMS There is a spreadsheet available to assist 
when reporting charter service that can be found on the NDDOTwebsite. 

Olarter service may be offered when the following conditions are met: 

• Olarter service is any of the 5 exemptions listed above; or attain the list of eligible charter 
providers from http:/Iwww.fta.dot.gov/ charterregist rat ion .com; 

• .Advertise to everyone off the email list from the FfA's website and email bhanson@Jd.gov 
at least 60 days prior to the trip; 

• If 110 response is received back from any willing or able charter provider the service can be 
provided; 

• Expenses related to the trip are paid for by independent funds. FfA must not be billed for 
charter related expenses. 

SCHOOL 1'.RANSPOR'fATH0N (FfAC9040.1G) 

~ct ion 5323(f) prohibits the use of FfA funds for exdusive school bus transportation for school . 
students and school personnel. ~ulation, 49 CFR Part 605 does permit regular service to be 
modified to accommodate school students along with the general public and does apply to all 
programs. 

NDDOT oversees compliance with the prohibition by monitoring route schedules submitted with 
application materials, web sites and/or promotional materials with route schedules. R.Jrther, during 
vehide inspections and compliance reviews, Transit 3aff look for signs and discuss indications that 
exdusive school bus service has been offered (e.g., S:hool route only). 
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Ff A requires the testing of employees performing safety sensitive functions as defined in 49 CFR 
655.4. The following six types of testing are required: pre-employment, random, post-accident, 
return to duty, reasonable suspicion testing and follow-up. All subrecipients test for marijuana, 
cocaine, opiates, phencydidine, amphetamines and alcohol. G.Jrrently, testing is required at a 
minimum rate of 25 percent of the safety sensitive pool for drugs and 10 percent for alcohol. 

3.Jbrecipients that receive 83ction 5311 funds are required to have a drug and alcohol testing 
program for safety-sensitive employees. 

3.Jbrecipients that receive only 83ction 5310 are not subject to FTA's drug and alcohol testing rules, 
but must comply with the Federal Motor Carrier S:lfety Administration (FMCSl\) rule for employees 
who hold commercial driver's license (49 a=R.Part 382). 

3.Jbrecipients that also receive funding from one of the covered FTA programs (i.e. , 83ction 5311) 
should indude any safety sensitive employees funded under 83ction 5310 projects in their testing 
program. 

Program Oversight 

NDOOT annually signs FTAAnnual List of Certifications and Assurances for FTA grants and cooperative 
agreements which binds NDOOTto all drug and alcohol regulations per 49 a=R. Part 655. 

NDOOT requires that all sub recipients must formally adopt a substance abuse policy. A signed and 
dated copy of the adoption must be a part of the transit system's file, noting drug and alcohol 
program compliance. NDOOT oversight is ensured through monitoring of reports. The reports 
require compliance based on elements mandated by USOOTand FTAdrug and alcohol regulations. 

Failure to comply with a drug and alcohol policy by a subrecipient could find their transit agency non
compliant with federal regulation and may result in suspension of federal transit funding. 

Subrecipient Oversight 

With each application for FTA funding for transit services assistance, subrecipients are required to 
certify that their proposed service will comply with regulations regarding 49 a=R. Part 655, A-event ion 
of Alcohol Misuse and R"ohibited Drug use in Transit Q:>erations. 

Each contract between NDOOT and subrecipient for the provision of FTA funding shall contain 
language that requires the subrecipient to comply with FTA regulations related to drug and alcohol 
testing. In addition, private providers under contract with subrecipients are required to comply with 
these regulations. 

NDOOT reviews and approves the written drug and alcohol policy of subrecipients operating transit 
service. Each policy details the procedures and provisions of a drug and alcohol testing program. M a 
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minimum, all policies will in dude the policy content requirements of 49 CFR Part 655 8.Jbpart E 
NDDOTsdrug and alcohol consultant will review these policies. 

Reporting 

Drug and Alcohol Management Information ~stem Feport: The submittal of annual FTA Drug and 
Alcohol Management Information ~stem (DAfv'I I~ reports is a requirement of acceptance of FTA 
grant funding. MIS reports are filed electronically by March 15th of each year through FTA Drug and 
Alcohol Management ~stem (DAfv'I I~ reporting system administered by the M ISA'oject Office at the 
Volpe National Transportation ~stems Center. 

NDDOT requires mandatory training courses for subrecipients and their employees. The required 
training is a minimum of one time 60 minutes of driving training and 2 hours of supervisor training 
(reasonable suspension). 

SUBRECTPIENT MONITORING 

NDDOTTransit 83ction uses the annual applications, budget review cyde and compliance review asa 
basis for monitoring financial and operational performance. A'oposed changes from the previous 
year, for example, change of service hours or routes, should be brought to the attention of the transit 
program manager. NDDOTTransit approves all annual estimated budgets. 

Subrecipient monitoring and reporting requirements 

8.Jbredpient monitoring is an ongoing proces.5 undertaken by NDDOTTransit staff. 8.Jbrecipients are 
required to report expenses, revenues and operating via quarterly reports. Fequested data indudes: 

• Expenses; 

• Fevenues; 

• Number of passenger trips; 
• Number of miles; 
• Number of hours; 

• A.lei consumption. 

The agency directors use the information contained in the quarterly reports to monitor subrecipients' 
fiscal and operational activities. Fequests for reimbursement are approved by the NDDOTTransit 
program managers before payment can be processed. 
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s··rATE PROGRAM MANA@EMBN"t'f DES!GNAl~ED RECll~l.IENl' 

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT 
NDOOTis the designated recipient for all Ff A funding. 

S:lction 5310 

NDDOT uses subrecipients applications (induding budgets), quarterly and annual reports to monitor 
and evaluate performanre. Quarterly reports quantify- on a vehide specific basis- one way trips 
provided by passenger type, expenses, trip miles and servire time. Annual reports indicate - on a 
fleet aggregated basis, number of one-way trips, number of eligible riders in the awardees servire 
area and county(s) served. 

The federal program year is O::tober 1st_S:lptember 31. Feportsare due O::l:ober 15. 

The two measures established for the S:lction 5310 (per FfAC9070.1Gpage 11-2), program are: 

• C?eps in S:lrvire Riied. A-ovisions of transportation options that would not otherwise be 
available for the elderly persons and persons with disabilities. Measured in numbers of the 
elderly persons and persons with disabilities afforded mobility they would not have without 
program support; 

• Rdership. Actual or estimated number of rides (as measured by one way trips) provided 
annually for persons with disabilities and the elderly persons on S:lction 5310- supported 
vehides and servires and number of rides provided during the I if et ime of all 5310 vehides 
rurrently in servire. 

A"ogram managers use these reports to perform operational management over subredpients and to 
satisfy federal reporting requirements. 

A"ogram managers schedule complianre reviews with subredpients on an annual basis to review 
operations and maintenanre records. A-ogram managers may request and review records and 
dorumentation if the initial review uncovers any conrernsor unresolved questions. NDDOTinspector 
will call and schedule on-site inspections of all FfA funded vehides and FTA funded facilities. This on
site inspection ocrurs every other year. 

All documentation relating to federal or state contracts must be retained according to federal and 
state regulations. This generally means 6 years beyond the dose of the cont rad, or 3 years past the 
vehide disposal date, whichever is longest. This indudes pre-trip inspection reports. Dorumentation 
retention for buildings is 35 years of useful life and permanent retention for dorumentation of land 

property. 
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North Dakota Department of Transportation 

Executive Summary 
House Bill No. 1012, as enacted by the 2015 North Dakota Legislature, directed that the North Dakota 
Department of Transportation (NDDOT) shall study state funding distributions and allocations to public 
transportation providers. The study must include a review of distributions and allocations, including con
tingent funding provided, a review of distributions and allocation formulas, and the public transportation 
providers use of the funds received from the distributions, allocations, and contingent funding, including 
uses for operating costs and capital asset purchases. The NDDOT shall report to legislative manage
ment regarding the results of its study by June 30, 2016. 

There are currently 34 public transportation providers statewide, including rural, urban, tribal, and 
intercity services. NDDOT currently supports transit agencies that provide service to the general public, 
elderly, and individuals with a disability in all 53 counties within North Dakota. 

The NDDOT collected the enclosed study data for two bienniums, FY 2011-2013 and FY 2013-2015. 
In FY 2011-2013 the NDDOT received approximately $16,493,000 in federal funds and $6,300,000 
in state funds, and in FY 2013-2015 approximately $14,991 ,000 in federal funds and $11 ,746,000 in 
state funds. In FY 2011-2013, public transportation provided 7, 140,838 rides, and in FY 2013-2015, 
6,325,653 rides were provided. 

Qualifying public transportation providers receive federal funding annually through an application 
process. Eligible applications are reviewed by a committee based on availability of funding, the number 
of requests received and other established criteria outlined under the Federal Transit Funding Program 
in this report (page 6) . Any federal funds not expended during the contract period are returned and 
redistributed the following year through the same process. 

State funding is provided to NDDOT for administration of the Public Transportation Fund 39-04.2-
02 . The director of the NDDOT administers these funds and distributes funding to qualifying public 
transportation providers based on 39-04.2-04 Distribution of funds (page 4) . The distribution formula 
(according to Chapter 39-04.2 NDCC 2007 Legislative Session and October 1, 2007 letter from ND 
Legislative Council's office) is as follows: Each county shall receive a base amount of four-tenths of one 
percent of the appropriation for the program plus one dollar and fifty cents per capita of population in 
the county, based upon the latest regular or special official federal census. Each year the director shall 
increase or decrease the one dollar and fifty cents per capita amount in order to distribute all funds 
appropriated for the biennium. If there are multiple transportation providers in one county, then the base 
amount must be divided equally among the providers and the additional per capita amount must be 
based upon the percentage of elderly and handicapped ridership provided by each transportation pro
vider within the county. Funds not expended by a county during a contract period, or previous contract 
periods, may be redistributed under guidelines established by the director. In addition, unexpended 
funds may also be used by the director for transit coordination purposes. 

Public transportation providers use the federal and state funds they receive for operating costs, 
(Examples: salary, fuel, insurance, maintenance, and training), and capital costs (Examples: vans, 
cutaway buses, and large urban buses). Over the last two bienniums (FY 2011-2013 and FY 2013-
2015) $40,304,369 was reimbursed to transit providers ($19,499,415 State Aid and $20,804,954 
ederal funding) . A total of $34,666,368 or 86% of the funding received is used for costs associated with 
operating expenses ($18,328,113 State Aid and $16,338,255 Federal funding}, see Table 12-14 (pages 
28-31) . The remaining $5,638,001or14% of funding received is used for costs associated with capital 
purchases ($1, 171 ,302 State Aid and $4,466,699 Federal funding). The NDDOT reimburses transporta
tion providers on a quarterly basis for operating and capital expenses incurred. 
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Introduction 
NDDOT oversees the Transit Program within 
North Dakota and has been designated by the 
Governor of North Dakota to administer federal 
and state funded transit programs in the state. 
There are 34 transit providers statewide, includ
ing rural, urban, tribal, and intercity services. 
NDDOT currently supports transit agencies that 
provide service to the general public, elderly, 
and individuals with a disability in all 53 counties 
within North Dakota. North Dakota public transit 
providers, both rural and urban, provided over 3.1 
million rides in 2015. Collectively, these systems 
operate approximately 316 buses and vans. 

North Dakota covers 69,000 square miles and is 
mostly a rural state. There are three urban areas 
that have the largest concentration of the popula
tion : Bismarck-Mandan, Fargo-West Fargo, and 
Grand Forks-East Grand Forks. The population 
of North Dakota, as of the 201 O Census, was 
672,591 people. 

Of NDDOT's Federal Transit Administration 
(FTA) funded subrecipients, twenty-eight provide 
demand response services in rural areas, one 
provides fixed route service in a rural area, three 
provide fixed route and paratransit services in 
urban areas, and two provide intercity service. 
See Appendix A: Public Transit Provider Services 
Areas 2016 (page 12) . 

Transit Services in rural and urban areas is 
defined as: 

• Fixed-Route System. Public transportation 
service provided in vehicles operated along 
predetermined routes according to a fixed 
schedule. 

• Paratransit. All public entities who operate 
a fixed route system are required to provide 
paratransit service that is both comparable and 
complementary to the fixed route services. This 
is a curb-to-curb or door-to-door accessible 
service for qualifying individuals who cannot 
use the fixed route system. 

• Demand/Response. Any non-fixed route 
system of transporting individuals that requires 
advanced scheduling by the customer, 
including services provided by public entities, 
nonprofits, and private providers. (Generally is 
curb-to-destination service). 

Intercity. Is a regularly scheduled bus service 
for the general public which operates with limit
ed stops over fixed routes connecting two or 
more urban areas not close in proximity, which 
has the capacity for transporting baggage car
ried by passengers, and which makes mean
ingful connections with scheduled intercity bus 
service to more distant points, if such service is 
available. 

Program Goals 
The goal of the state transit programs (both 
federal and state funded programs) is to provide 
a safe, efficient, and environmentally sound 
transportation system that promotes economic 
growth and enhances the quality of life in North 
Dakota. Through transportation, an individual 
with a disability, the elderly, and the general 
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population in all areas and localities of North 
Dakota, are able to have access to health care, 
shopping, education, recreation , public services, 
and employment. This is accomplished by estab
lishing and supporting public and special needs 
transportation systems wherever needed and 
appropriate throughout the state. 

• 

• 

• 
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Program Objectives 
NDDOT objectives are consistent with the FTA 
program goals. The FTA program goals and 
objectives of the individual programs are to 
continue growth in all areas of North Dakota by 
utilizing the available federal and state funding 
programs to: 

• Provide operating funds to support and main
tain existing transit services. 

• Assist in establishing new services, so that 
transportation disadvantaged persons and the 
general population in all areas of the state will 
have access to at least a minimum level of 
public or special needs transportation services. 

• Provide capital funds to the existing public 
transportation systems as well as special 
needs transportation systems to upgrade or 
replace their buses and related transit equip
ment to ensure the continued viability of these 
systems and the transit services they provide. 

• Provide grant funds to maintain and promote 
coordination of transportation systems and 

services in the state. 

• Provide technical assistance to existing, special 
needs, and new public transportation systems 
to increase the effectiveness and efficiency of 
their transit services. 

• Work with all state agencies involved in provid
ing transportation services to coordinate state 
and federal transportation programs. 

Roles and Responsibilities 
NDDOT is responsible for: 

• Developing all administrative procedures, pro
cessing all financial documents for reimburse
ment of operative deficits and maintaining local 
financial accountability through standard audit 
practices. 

• Monitoring the expenditures of funds in all con
tracts that have been awarded to the providers. 

• Managing subrecipient selection process, noti
fying eligible subrecipients of the availability of 
programs, developing selection criteria, solicit
ing applications, reviewing, and recommending 
projects for approval by NDDOT management 
as part of a committee. 

• Managing grant agreements, amending grant 
agreements, developing, and executing grant 
agreements with eligible subrecipients. 

• Managing data, collecting financial reports, op
erating statistics, and vehicle data, maintaining 
databases, monitoring and evaluating transit 
system performance. 

• Managing federal grants, program of projects, 

reporting, and grant closeouts. 

• Monitoring subrecipient compliance with fed
eral requirements. 

• Engaging in planning and research activities, 
transit plans, and studies. 

• Providing technical assistance, training and 
workshops for subrecipients. 

• Submitting an annual report to the National 
Transit Database (NTD) that contains the 
information required to be stated in all Section 
5311 transit programs in North Dakota. 

• Submitting a Federal Financial Report, final 
budget and final Program of Projects through 
the FTA system within 30 days of final expendi
ture of all funds in a federal grant. 

• Compliance reviews and site visits (facility and 
vehicle inspections) to those transit providers in 
North Dakota that receive State Aid, FTA Sec
tion 5310, 5311, and/or 5339 funding for their 
programs. 

Other divisions who assist the Transit section are: 
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• Financial Management Division assists in 
grant management, subrecipient requested 
payments, Milestone Progress Report (MPR's) , 
Federal Financial Reports (FFR's), etc. 

• Civil Rights Division assists with Title VI, 
Limited English Proficiency (LEP), and Disad
vantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) . 

• Communication Division assists with press 

releases, advertisement, and other public 
communications. 

• Planning Division assists with Statewide 
transit maps. 

• Programming Division assists with State 
Transportation Improvement Plan (STIP) 
and Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP) 
programs. 

Ridership 
Over the past three years, 33 to 35 transit agen
cies have been operating in the state. Ridership 

is shown by agency in Table 1 (pages 14-15) and 
by county in Table 2 (pages 16-17). 

North Dakota State Aid for Public Transit Program 
In 1989, the North Dakota State Legislature 
enacted House Bill 1337 which initiated State 
Aid Funding for Public Transit in North Dakota. 
This state legislation established a State Public 
Transportation Fund to provide transportation aid 
payments to political subdivisions and nonprofit 
transit providers in each county for the purpose 
of establishing and supporting public transit 
services. 

The State Aid for Public Transit program is listed 
in the North Dakota Century Code (NDCC) in 
Section 39-04.2. 

39-04.2-01. Definitions. In this chapter, unless 
the context or subject matter otherwise requires: 

1. "Public transportation" means the vehicular 
transportation of persons from place to place 
within this state, but does not include the 
provision of transportation facilities otherwise 
provided by public funds, such as roads , 
streets, highways, bridges, lighting equipment, 
or signs. 

2. "Ridership" means a one-way trip provided 
to any one person in a motorized vehicle 
designed to carry eight or more persons in an 
enclosed area with separate seating for each 
person . 

3. "Transportation provider" means a political 
subdivision , tribal agency, or any nonprofit 
corporation that provides transportation to the 
public, especially to elderly and handicapped 
citizens. 
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39-04.2-02. Public Transportation Fund - Ad
ministration of the fund. The director shall ad
minister the public transportation fund . Payments 
disbursed under this chapter must be paid from 
moneys deposited in the fund . The expenses 
arising from administration of the fund must be 
paid from the fund within the limits of legislative 
appropriations. 

39-04.2-03. Additional registration fee -
Deposit in fund. Repealed by S.L. 2009, ch . 40, 
§ 26. 

39-04.2-04. Distribution of funds - Continuing 
appropriation. 

1. Moneys appropriated by legislative assembly 
to the public transportation fund must be dis
bursed under guidelines issued by the direc
tor. The funds must be used by transportation 
providers to establish and maintain public 
transportation , especially for the elderly and 
handicapped, and may be used to contract 
to provide public transportation , as matching 
funds to procure money from other sources 
for public transportation and for other expen
ditures authorized by the director. Moneys in 
the public transportation fund are appropriate 
to the Department of Transportation on a con
tinuing basis for distributions authorized under 
this section . 

2. Each county shall receive a base amount of 
four-tenths of one percent of the appropriation 
for the program plus one dollar and fifty cents 
per capita of population in the county, based 

• 



upon the latest regular or special official 
federal census. Each year the director shall 
increase or decrease the one dollar and fifty 
cents per capita amount in order to distribute 
all funds appropriated for the biennium. If 
there are multiple transportation providers 
in one county, then the base amount must 
be divided equally among the providers and 
the additional per capita amount must be 
based upon the percentage of elderly and 
handicapped ridership provided by each trans
portation provider within the county. Funds 
not expended by a county during a contract 
period or previous contract periods, may be 
redistributed under guidelines established by 
the director. In addition, unexpended funds 
may also be used by the director for transit 
coordination purposes. 

NOTE: The county does not receive the 
funding for distribution for transit services. The 
funding is awarded to the Transit Agency(s) 
who provide services in that county. 

In 2009, Senate Bill 2012, established a new 
formula for the public transportation fund and 
authorized the director of the State Department 
of Transportation to administer this program. The 
Department of Transportation will disburse the 
funds according to specific guidelines established 
by the legislation. The funds must be used by 
transportation providers to establish and maintain 
public transportation, especially for the elderly 
persons and individuals with disability. Funds 
may be used to contract public transportation as 
matching funds in order to procure money from 
other sources for public transportation and for 
other expenditures authorized by the director. 

In 2013, Senate Bill No. 2012, the department's 
distribution was given continuing appropriation of 
the Transit Funding. The department has a base 
amount in its budget for each biennium and that 
budgeted amount will be used to calculate the 
base amount for each transit provider. 

Recipients for State Aid funding must comply 
with the same regulations as required for federal 
funding. For a list of State Aid awarded see Table 
3 (pages 18-19) and Table 4 (pages 20-21) . 

Unexpended State Aid by Agency 

Each year all transit agencies are required to 
submit quarterly reimbursement requests. The 
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State Aid not spent is calculated and kept to be 
redistributed. Any transit agency that has used 
all their available State Aid in the current year is 
eligible to apply for the Unexpended State Aid. 
In Table 5 (page 22), it shows the State Aid not 
spent for each year by agency. 

Disbursement of Unspent State Aid 

In 2012, the unspent State Aid was not dis
persed. In 2013, all to-date unspent State Aid 
was distributed using the State Aid formula to 
eligible Transit Agencies who were in operation 
the previous year. The unspent State Aid funds 
from 2014 and 2015 were distributed to eligible 
transit agencies who were compliant with federal 
and state requirements, completed an applica
tion, and had expended all their State Aid funding 
that year. Those qualifying transit agencies were 
funded through a modified calculation of the 
State Aid funds. Table 6 (pages 23-24) shows the 
distribution of funds. 
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Federal Transit Funding Program 
Federal Funding Amounts 

The Transit Section receives federal funds annu
ally from FTA to distribute through an application 
process to qualifying Transit Agencies. The total 
amounts of federal funding received from FY 
2012-2015 are shown in Table 7, Transit Federal 
Funding Breakdown (page 25). 

Method for Distributing Funds and 
Committee Evaluation 

Through the annual application process due 
to the state on April 1 of every year, eligible 
subrecipients prepare and submit application 
materials. Annual applications are then reviewed 
by the NDDOT grant review committee. The 
grant committee is made up of three NDDOT 
employees and three non-NDDOT employees, 
currently a representative from Aging Services, 
Veterans Affairs, and Medicaid Services. 

The committee reviews eligible applications with 
consideration given to the amount of funding 
available and the amount of requests received. 
The committee will also consider the following 
when reviewing and awarding funds: 

• Records/Claims submitted on time. 

• Completeness and compliance with state and 
federal regulations/requirements. 

• Financial plan that demonstrates fiscal capacity 
and reasonableness. 

• Coordination relationships with other organiza
tions and agencies. 

• Demonstrated needs, past performance, 
vehicle maintenance, history of reliable service, 
cost per mile, technical capacity, technology, 
and willingness to participate in training. 

If necessary, preference in the allocation of funds 
shall be given to the transit provider that is best 
suited to serve areas which do not currently have 
access to public transportation, as well as to 
providers serving the needs of the general public, 
seniors and individuals with disabilities. NDDOT 
does not allocate Section 5311 funding for con
struction, renovation , or similar projects due to 
the need for capital purchase of buses, vans, and 
associated equipment. It is the intent of NDDOT 
to fund operating, administration, Intercity Transit 
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Systems, RTAP and capital maintenance in the 
5311 program. It is the intent of NDDOT to fund 
vehicle purchases with the 5339 and 5310 grants. 

North Dakota's three urbanized areas of 
Bismarck-Mandan, Fargo-West Fargo, and 
Grand Forks-East Grand Forks receive funding 
through the Section 5307 Urbanized Area For
mula Program and provide fixed route/paratransit 
services. 

Capital fund requests are completed with an an
nual application process that is reviewed by the 
grant review committee. 

FTA program funds for vehicles are allocated 
based on need, with the following considerations: 

• Vehicle age, mileage and condition based on 
FTA Useful Life Standards in Appendix B (page 
13). 

• Vehicle replacement versus expansion. 

• Service to new areas. 

FTA program funds requested for facilities, facility 
improvements, mobility manager's salary, and 
other substantial capital items are allocated 
based on the documentation of need by the 
agency. 

FTA Section 5310 - Transportation 
for the Elderly Persons and Persons 
With Disabilities 

Section 531 O program funds may be used for 
capital and operating expenses in rural and 
urban areas to support transportation services 
to meet the special needs of the elderly persons 



and persons with disabilities. These funds are 
generally used to purchase vehicles and to fund 
Mobility Manager positions. These are 80% 
federal funds requiring a 20% local match. 

Projects selected for funding under Section 531 O 
must be derived from a locally developed, coor
dinated public transit/human services transporta
tion plan. These plans identify the transportation 
needs of individuals with disabilities, elderly 
persons and individuals with low incomes to 
provide strategies for meeting these needs. 

Section 5310 grant funding is available for the 
year in which it is appropriated plus an additional 
two years (for a total of three years). 

Examples of capital expenses include, but are 
not limited to: 

• Buses and vans. 

• Radios and communication equipment. 

• Vehicle shelters. 

• Wheelchair lifts and restraints. 

• Vehicle rehabilitation or overhaul. 

• Extended warranties which do not exceed the 
industry standard. 

• Computer hardware and software. 

• Initial component installation costs. 

• Introduction of new technology into public 
transportation. 

• Transit related intelligent transportation sys
tems (ITSs). 

• Supporting new mobility management and 
coordination. 

FTA Section 5311 - Rural and Small 
Urban Areas 

Section 5311 provides an annual apportion-
ment of federal transit funds to North Dakota 
to support and improve public transit service 
in the rural areas (areas and localities under 
50,000 in population). The funds may be used for 
capital, operating and administrative assistance 
to local public bodies, Native American tribes, 
nonprofit organizations and operators of public 
transportation services. Section 5311 funds are 
administered by NDDOT and are used to support 
public transit in the small cities and rural areas of 
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the state. 

Section 5311 grant funding is available for the 
year in which it is appropriated plus an additional 
two years (for a total of three years). 

Operating expenses are 50% federal funds 
requiring a 50% local match and are considered 
those costs directly related to system operations. 
At a minimum, the following items must be con
sidered operating expenses: 

• Fuel/oil. 

• Drivers' and maintenance salaries and fringe 
benefits. 

• Rent and utilities. 

• Licenses and fees. 

• Maintenance, repairs and parts. 

• Advertising/marketing. 

• Training and development. 

• Office supplies and postage. 

• At a minimum, operating revenues must 
include fare box revenues. Fare box revenues 
do not include payments made directly to the 
transit provider by human service agencies. 

A cost allocation plan must be submitted and ap
proved before indirect costs can be reimbursed. 
This plan can be one prepared for a different 
federal agency or one prepared for the FTA 
program. (OMB Circular 2 CFR 225, FTA C 
6100.1C Page IV-5, DHHS brochureASMB C-10 
are references you may use in preparing the cost 
allocation plan.) 

Administrative expenses are 80% federal funds 
requiring a 20% local match and are eligible 
project administrative expenses including general 
administrative expenses such as: 

• Salaries and fringe benefits of the director, 
secretary and bookkeeper. 

• Vehicle and building insurance. 

• Audit expenses. 

• Drug and alcohol testing. 

• Legal. 

• Travel. 

Capital Expenses are 80% federal funds requiring 
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a 20% local match and are the same as those 
listed under the Section 5310 program, with the 
addition of these capital items such as. 

• Paratransit vehicles. 

• Vehicle rehabilitation, remanufacture or 
overhaul. 

The above list is by no means comprehensive as 
additional small capital items are also eligible. 

State administration is available to the state for 
use in transit administration such as consultant 
services. 

FTA Section 5311(B) - Rural Transit 
Assistance Program (RTAP) 

Section 5311(b) (3) RTAP is administered in 
conjunction with the Section 5311 program. It 
was established under the Federal Mass Trans
portation Act of 1987. RTAP provides an annual 
apportionment of federal funds to the state for 
transit training, technical assistance and other 
support activities to enhance transit operations 
and services in the state's rural areas. These are 
100% federal funds with no local match required. 

The NDDOT uses RTAP funds to deliver training 
and technical assistance needed by all rural 
providers of public transportation, and not only to 
subreciepients of the Section 5311 program. 

RTAP funds may be used to support transit activi
ties in the following categories: 

• National, regional and state conferences and 
workshops. 

• Technical assistance. 

• Training. 

• Research. 

• Related support services. 

• Purchase of equipment to support any of the 
above activities. 

FTA Section 5311 (F) - Intercity Bus 
Program 
NDDOT administers 5311 (f) program funds 
in accordance with the Federal Intercity Bus 
Program. According to the Intercity Bus As
sistance Program, NDDOT may contract with 
private providers of the intercity bus service to 
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support intercity bus routes for the provider, or 
make grants to political subdivisions to support 
intercity bus service routes. Intercity bus service 
is defined as, "regularly scheduled public bus 
services that operate with limited stops between 
two urbanized areas or connects rural areas to 
an urbanized area." 

NDDOT awards funding for operating at 50% 
federal funds with 50% local match, and admin
istration and capital funds at 80% federal funds 
and 20% local match. 

Through this program, NDDOT conducts out
reach with the FTA required goal of obligating 
15% of all annual 5311 funds for intercity bus 
projects. Service is requested through a grant 
application process with the intent of funding 
projects that meet the following objectives: 

• The service has meaningful intermodal 
connections. 

• The service project improves connectivity 
to or between major metropolitan areas that 
currently lack convenient or direct intercity bus 
service. 

• The contractor demonstrates that they have the 
technical capacity, financial stability, marketing 
plan and requisite experience to be rectpients 
of federal funds. 

The reporting of financial information and 
reimbursement for services will be performed 
on a quarterly basis using the same provider 
controls and procedures as the 5311 program. 
The NDDOT has two intercity operators in North 
Dakota, Jefferson Lines and Standing Rock 
Public Transit. 

FTA Section 5339 - Bus and Bus 
Facilities 
Section 5339 is a program used to provide· capi
tal assistance for new and replacement buses, 
related equipment and facilities. Federal funds 
under this program are annually apportioned to 
the states. These are 80% federal funds requiring 
a 20% local match. Section 5339 grant funding is 
available for the year in which it is appropriated 
plus an additional two years (for a total of three 
years). 

Section 5339 program funds may be used for 
capital projects in both rural and urban areas of 
the state. Examples of capital expenses incl.ude, 

• 
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but are not limited to: 

• Acquisition of vehicles for fleet. 

• Rehabilitation of buses (requires bus to be kept 
in service for 24 additional months beyond 
renovation date). 

• Construction and renovation of bus mainte
nance and administrative facilities. 
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• Transfer facilities, transportation centers, inter
modal terminals and park-and-ride stations. 

• Purchase of replacement vehicles, vehicle 
rebuilds and vehicle preventive maintenance. 

• Purchase of passenger amenities such as pas
senger shelters and bus stop signs. 

• Purchase of accessories and miscellaneous 
equipment such as mobile radio units, fare box-

Unexpended Federal Grant Funds 
Section 5311 funds not expended by the local 
transit agency recipients during the current state 
fiscal year (July 1 to June 30) will revert to the 
respective grant program fund. 

Sections 5339, 5310 and/or programs that occur 
when a transit agency fails to implement a project 
or make a requested vehicle purchase require 
a written request for additional time before the 
contract expiration date and it must state the 
reason for requesting the action. If the contract 

period ends without written request, the funds 
are forfeited . If the request is for additional time, 
NDDOT may accept or deny the request de
pending on the reason provided. Once a transit 
agency has relinquished funds, NDDOT is free to 
reallocate the funds for another purpose. 

Any grant funding remaining after a transit 
agency has fully completed implementation of a 
funded project or capital purchase, automatically 
reverts to the grant program for reallocation. 

Local Share and Local Funding Requirements 
The local applicant will provide the required local 
matching share for capital and operating as
sistance projects. The local matching share shall 
be cash from sources other than the U.S. Depart
ment of Transportation funds. All transit providers 
must provide proof that local match funds are 
from an allowable source to match federal funds 
and are not being obligated in another way. 

The matching share for project administration, 
capital and operating costs may be from a 
source that includes state, local government, 
unrestricted federal or private funds. Applicants 
eligible for public transportation assistance may 

receive NDDOT awarded transit state aid funds 
to match their federal funds up to 50% of the 
deficit after the allotted federal funds. Applicants 
not eligible to receive NDDOT awarded transit 
state aid funds may provide the local match with 
a combination of unrestricted federal funds and 
local cash funds. Examples of local match that 
may be used for the local share include local 
appropriations, other non-federal Department of 
Transportation funds, dedicated tax revenues, 
private donations, revenue from human service 
contracts, and the net income generated from 
advertising and donations. 

Conclusion 
NDDOT along with the Transit Agencies work 
together to provide statewide public transporta
tion that is accessible and affordable to the gen
eral public, elderly, and people with disabilities 

throughout the state. Federal and state funding is 
essential to maintain current services and allow 
for future system improvements. 
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Appendix A. Transit Provider Services 

DIVIDE BURKE BOTIINEAU 
WiKiston Council on Aging Souris Basin Transportation 

RENVILLE 
SourisBHln 
T11msportalion 

Nutrition United Transportation 
Souris Basin Transportation 

WILLIAMS 

MOUNTRAIL 

McHENRY 
._ __ -I Souris Basin Tranton Indian Services 

Wiidrose Public Transportation 
WiKlston Council on Aging Souris Basin Transportation 

WARD 
City of Minot 

Transportation 

McKENZIE 
WilUston Council on Aging 

GOLDEN 
VALLEY 
Goklln 
Valley 
Council 
on Aging 

BILLINGS 
Golden Valley 
Councll on Aging 

DUNN 
West River Transit 

STARK 
St11k County Public Transit 

Kenm111 Meals & WhHls 
Souris Basin Transportation 

Hazan Busing 
st River Transit 

West River Transit 

MORTON 
BiHlanT,...sit 
City of Glen Ullin Transportation 
Standing Rock Pubftc Tl'lltait 

Wnt Rlvw Tr11111t 
.......... ..._~~.._~-....~~~~~~........,GRANT 

HETTINGER Wiit River Transit SLOPE 
Southwest Transportation Southwest Transportation 

BOWMAN ADAMS 
SouthMst TraMportation Southwest Transpori.lion 

ROLETIE 
Nutrltlon Unttad 
Transportation 

Turtle Mouni.ln 
Transit 

TOWNER CAVALIER 
Cll1-0o Cavalier Transit 
Transportation 

RAMSEY WALSH 

PEMBINA 
Pembina County 
Transportation 

Devils Like Transit Walsh County Transpori.tion 

SHERIDAN 
James RivOf 
Public Transit 

BENSON 
Sanson County 
Transportation 

Spirit Lake Public 
Transportation 

WELLS 
Sanson County 
Transportation 

James River 

EDDY 
Devils Lake Transit 

NELSON 
Nelson County 
Transportation 

GRAND FORKS 
Grand Fortis CAT 2 
Grand Forlts Cities 
Area Transit 

Nelson Co. Transportation 
Valley Sanlor SeMcea 

GRIGGS STEELE 
Public Tntnsit 1-F-O_S_T_E_R-----1 South Central Valley Senior 

South Central Adult Services Services 

TRAILL 
Valley Senior 
Sarvicff 

KIDDER 
Kidder Senior 
Services 

LOGAN 

Adult Services 

STUTSMAN 
City of Jamestown 
James River Public Transit 

LaMOURE 

BARNES 
South Central 
Adult Services 

CASS 
FargoMAT2 
Fargo Mitro Arla Transit 
Handi WhHll 
Transportation 

Valley Sanior Sarvices 

RANSOM 
South Cantral Adult 
Sarvk:H 

South Central Adult Services Valley Senior SOfvices 
RICHLAND 
Yallay Senior 
Sarvic .. 

MclNTOSH 
South Central Adult 
Servicas 

DICKEY 
Dickey County T1111sportation 

SARGENT 
Valley Sanior Services 
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Appendix B. FTA Useful Life Standards 

North Dakota DOT Category 

A Large, Heavy-Duty Transit Bus 

B. Medium-Size, Heavy-Duty Transit Bus 

C. Medium-Size Duty Chassis Cutaway 

-~' 
-~.;___ .. 0 

D. Medium-Size Light Duty Chassis Cutaway 

E. 1. Small Cutaway 
E. 2. Modified Van 
E. 3. Modified Minivan 

E. 4. Vans 
E. 5. Minivans 

Approx. 
GVWRin 

lbs. 

33,000 -
40,000 

26,000-
33,000 

10,000-
26,000 

10,000-
16,000 

6,000-
14,000 

6,000-
14,000 

No. of 
Seats 

35-40+ 

24-35 

16-30 

18-16 

3-14 

3-12 

Approx. 
Length 

35-40 ft. or 
greater 

30-65 ft. 

25-30 ft. 

20-25 ft. 

E 1 20-22 ft. 
E 2 < 20 ft. 
E 3 < 20 ft. 

< 12 ft. 

Useful Life 
Minimum 

12 yrs. or 
500,000 miles 

10 yrs. or 
350,000 miles 

7 yrs. or 
200,000 miles 

5 yrs. or 
150,000 miles 

4 yrs. or 
100,000 miles 

4 yrs or 
100,000 miles 
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<: 
0 

S: 
t:J 
Q) 

2012 Total 
2012 Total 

2013 Total 
2013 Total 

2014 Total 
2014 Total 

2015 Total 

Transit Agency County Served Elderly & Elderly& Elderly & Elderly & 
2015 Total 

Rides Rides Rides Rides 
Disabled Disabled Disabled Disabled 

Benson County Transportation Benson 2,723 3,025 2,867 3,247 2,504 2,996 2,683 3,278 a-
iii 
t:J 
~ 
Q) 

Bis-Man Transit 
Burleigh 151,000 

324,701 
112,880 

439,368 
129,936 

302,012 
96,748 

290,316 
Morton 43,000 57,120 14,429 64,498 

CANDO Towner 4,160 4,160 3,550 4,000 4,665 5,321 3,999 6,332 

Cavalier County Sr. Meals Cavalier Co 3,311 3,727 3,726 4,229 4,088 5,069 4,941 6,474 ~ 
City of Glen Ullin Morton 1,077 1,081 1,245 1,081 756 791 855 905 (!) 

::i ..... 

~ 
0 ...... 
;;l 
Qi 

C'" ::i - f5 
CD 0 

6l-
~ a-

::i 

::0 -· 

City of Jamestown (Taxi) Stutsman 1,580 8,055 1,650 7,060 - 1,891 8,560 

City of Minot Ward 30,617 126,437 26,153 126,037 25,971 131,568 19,108 131,640 

Dickey County Senior Citizens Dickey 5,750 5,800 5,600 6,095 4,708 5,224 4,691 5,138 

Dickinson Public Transit (Stark County 
Stark 22,170 60,110 9,846 33,822 24,985 46,093 16,610 42,110 

Council on Aging/Eldercare) 

Fargo Metro Transit Cass 476,822 2,092,299 476,822 2,092,299 212,133 1,709,481 218,565 1,794,640 

Golden Valley Council on Aging 
Billings - 53 190 199 

Golden Valley 
3,149 3,592 2,929 3,261 

3,090 747 2,512 2,158 

Grand Forks Public Transit Grand Forks 122,472 360,401 122,472 360,401 199,537 397,791 81,881 371,067 

Handi-Wheels Transportation Cass 11,896 15,380 9,276 13,405 8,388 12,806 7,656 10,266 c. 
Hazen Busing Mercer 3,076 20,726 3,750 20,750 4,111 26,724 3,203 23,298 CD .., 

tn 
::::r -· 

Sheridan 58 25 10 5 

James River Sr Citizens Stutsman 37,630 79,994 33,144 75,017 32,923 68,925 32,904 69,157 

Wells 3,994 2,539 3,227 3,158 

Kenmare Meals & Wheels Ward 4,108 6,008 2,016 4,390 2,835 7,457 5,586 8,470 ""C 
C'" 
'< 
)> 

Kidder/Emmons Senior Services Kidder 9,845 9,998 6,805 6,590 7,077 8,665 5,907 7,199 

Nelson County Transportation 
Grand Forks 155 439 308 749 

888 1,154 4,695 4,981 
Nelson - 3,252 3,161 

Nutrition United Rolette 3,653 4,639 3,661 3,639 3,013 5,353 5,680 10,025 

Pembina County Meals & Transportation Pembina 5,350 7,400 4,924 6,330 3,299 6,722 4,227 6,101 (Q 
Royal Coach Ramsey 3,400 4,300 5,200 7,600 - CD 
Devils Lake Transit I Senior Meals and Eddy County 4,046 8,297 3,706 8,982 3,656 11,233 2,934 10,743 ::::s 

n 
'< 

Services Ramsey 14,231 18,461 12,850 17,950 12,445 18,752 14,583 20,449 

Burleigh 8 138 263 218 

Sitting Bull College Morton 17,773 28 17,663 349 9,184 453 7,657 

Sioux 1,020 912 1,053 1,194 

Bottineau 6,460 5,840 5,116 3,118 

Burke 1,556 966 820 528 

McHenry 2,420 1,540 847 742 

Souris Basin Transportation Mountrail 1,590 84,315 685 80,225 293 80,824 233 86,707 

Pierce 11,100 8,275 8,272 4,010 

Renville 1,344 897 420 251 

Ward 44,350 44,350 53,407 65,423 

continued on next page 
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• 
2012 Total 

2012Total 
2013 Total 

2013 Total 
2014 Total 

2014 Total 
2015 Total 

2015 Total 
Transit Agency County Served Elderly & 

Rides 
Elderly & 

Rides 
Elderly & 

Rides 
Elderly& 

Rides 
n:.~hln .. Di·~hl<>d n:.~hla" Di•~hl"d 

Barnes 21,188 22,236 19,059 21,911 

Emmons 9,892 10,214 7,747 5,434 

Foster 4,525 4,340 2,175 5,237 

South Central Adult Services Griggs 3,408 92,898 3,196 102,274 3,571 104,758 3,165 117,829 

LaMoure 3,727 2,238 1,020 1,171 

Logan 6,224 4,670 3,383 1,979 

~ 
tT -Mcintosh 9,958 11,924 11,771 11,144 CD 

Adams 12,979 8,550 5,705 2,394 -Ii. 
Bowman 10,575 6,890 4,037 2,509 

Southwest Transportation Services 25,000 19,250 15,814 7,810 
Hettinger 996 263 261 161 

Slope so 47 48 21 
::0 -· Spirit Lake Nation Benson 326 4,841 321 5,434 600 3,635 691 899 

Tioga Senior Citizens Public Transit Williams - 816 - - - -
Trenton Indian Services Area Williams 3,380 3,380 2,515 2,815 3,803 4,060 2,417 4,443 

a. 
CD ., 
en 

Turtle Mountain Transit Rolette 6,038 11,202 2,551 5,353 1,572 2,303 1,802 3,035 ::J" 
Cass - r/u 42,075 2,112 38,452 43,447 -· 
Grand Forks 210 181 302 361 "'C 
Ransom 5,850 5,624 3,542 4,319 tT 

Valley Senior Services (Fargo) Richland 5,850 57,890 6,860 23,030 3,859 44,821 6,321 66,078 '< 
Sargent 632 1,096 476 643 

Steele 1,158 1,101 778 812 

Traill 2,090 1,606 1,426 1,725 

Walsh Co Transportation Walsh 7,556 9,500 7,754 9,324 6,600 8,717 6,120 7,356 

Burleigh 2,556 2,054 2,527 2,398 

Dunn 154 2,240 613 1,054 

Grant 2,114 1,700 1,723 1,673 

West River Transit Mclean 10,959 33,979 10,470 30,554 9,347 29,420 7,452 24,676 

Mercer 2,930 2,930 3,137 2,419 

Morton 4,865 4,374 4,235 3,013 

Oliver 5,004 4,726 5,444 3,361 

Divide 243 131 203 
Wildrose Senior Transportation 243 120 203 216 

Williams - 187 

)> 
cc 
CD <: 
::s 0 

n s 
'< 0 

Q) - a 
n Qi 

0 0 

::s ~ 
Q) 

r+ §-. - <D 
::J ...... 

Divide 3,831 3,891 3,897 1,391 0 ...... 
N/W Dakota Public Transit - Williston McKenzie 4,389 40,041 6,013 46,844 3,192 44,083 2,563 36,108 ~ 

Williams 19,190 20,345 10,337 13,248 

TOTAL RIDERSHIP 1,253,984 3,550,914 1,141,860 3,589,924 946,640 3,128,429 847,293 3,197,224 

::J 

~ 
0 
ii} 
a-
::J 



North Dakota Department of Transportation 

Table 2. Ridership by County • 
Transit Agency County 

2012 Total Rides 2013 Total Rides 2014 Total Rides 2015 Total Rides 

Per County Per County Per County Per County 

Southwest Transportation Services Adams 13,225 8,980 6,577 3,032 

South Central Adult Services Barnes 49,156 54,434 52,223 66,631 

Benson County Transportation Benson 

Spirit Lake Nation 
7,866 8,681 6,631 4,177 

Benson 

Golden Valley Council on Aging Billings 8 56 201 352 

Souris Basin Transportation Bottineau 7,869 7,100 6,060 5,506 

Southwest Transportation Services Bowman 10,725 9,950 8,848 4,554 

Souris Basin Transportation Burke 1,820 1,150 892 711 

Bis-Man Transit Burleigh 

West River Transit Burleigh 256,590 222,889 239,784 179,743 

Sitting Bull College Burleigh 

Fargo Metro Transit Cass 

Handi-Wheels Transportation Cass 

Nelson County Cass 2,149,793 2,107,825 1,751,135 1,849,536 

South Central Adult Services Cass 

Valley Senior Services (Fargo) Cass 

Cavalier County Sr. Meals Cavalier 3,727 4,229 5,069 6,474 

Dickey County Senior Citizens Dickey 5,800 6,095 5,224 5,138 

Wildrose Senior Transportation Divide 

N/W Dakota Public Transit - Williston Divide 
5,029 5,796 6,674 3,273 

West River Transit Dunn 174 2,752 640 1,202 • Devils Lake Transit I Senior Meals and 
Eddy 8,297 8,982 11,233 10,743 

Services 

South Central Adult Services Emmons 17,204 15,280 17,009 13,320 

South Central Adult Services Foster 832 5,006 4,697 7,355 

Golden Valley Council on Aging Golden Valley 3,141 3,536 2,728 2,909 

Grand Forks Public Transit Grand Forks 

Nelson County Grand Forks 361,413 361,741 398,868 372,457 

Valley Senior Services (Fargo) Grand Forks 

West River Transit Grant 2,266 1,910 2,281 2,216 

South Central Adult Services Griggs 3,853 3,416 3,771 3,554 

Southwest Transportation Services Hettinger 1,000 271 341 203 

Kidder/Emmons Senior Services Kidder 9,998 6,590 8,665 7,199 

South Central Adult Services LaMoure 5,795 4,302 4,165 4,280 

South Central Adult Services Logan 937 5,230 5,148 5,918 

Souris Basin Transportation McHenry 2,900 2,100 1,117 1,398 

South Central Adult Services Mcintosh 15,041 14,556 17,745 16,437 

N/W Dakota Public Transit - Williston McKenzie 4,794 8,283 7,816 5,543 

West River Transit Mclean 11,987 10,866 9,931 8,582 

Hazen Busing Mercer 
24,120 24,144 30,305 26,404 

West River Transit Mercer 

continued on next page 
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North Dakota Department of Transportation 

Table 2. Ridership by County (cont.) 

Transit Agency County 
2012 Total Rides 2013 Total Rides 2014 Total Rides 2015 Total Rides 

Per County Per County Per County Per County 

Bis-Man Transit Morton 

City of Glen Ullin Morton 

Sitting Bull College 
84,356 227,806 74,589 120,224 

Morton 

West River Transit Morton 

Souris Basin Transportation Mountrail 1,871 900 407 316 

Nelson County Nelson 72 6 3,920 3,960 

West River Transit Oliver 5,257 5,068 5,745 3,749 

Pembina County Meals & Transportation Pembina 7,400 6,330 6,722 6,101 

Souris Basin Transportation Pierce 13,750 13,150 9,931 9,042 

Royal Coach Ramsey 

Devils Lake Transit I Senior Meals and 22,761 25,550 18,752 20,449 

Services 
Ramsey 

Valley Senior Services (Fargo) Ransom 5,850 6,624 4,842 5,583 

Souris Basin Transportation Renville 1,555 1,275 440 393 

Valley Senior Services (Fargo) Richland 5,850 9,784 7,253 11,951 

Nutrition United Rolette 

Turtle Mountain Transit 
15,841 8,992 7,656 13,060 

Rolette 

Valley Senior Services (Fargo) Sargent 632 1,448 715 967 

James River Sr Citizens Sheridan 58 2 10 8 

Sitting Bull College Sioux 13,510 13,981 4,856 4,732 

Southwest Transportation Services Slope so 49 48 21 

Dickinson Public Transit (Stark County Council 
Stark 60,110 33,822 46,093 42,110 

on Aging/Eldercare) 

Valley Senior Services (Fargo) Steele 1,158 1,151 1,151 1,107 

City of Jamestown (Taxi) Stutsman 

James River Sr Citizens Stutsman 79,578 74,254 60,595 68,799 

South Central Adult Services Stutsman 

CANDO Towner 4,160 4,000 5,321 6,332 

Valley Senior Services (Fargo) Traill 2,090 1,710 1,710 1,805 

Walsh Co Transportation Walsh 9,500 9,324 8,717 7,356 

City of Minot Ward 

Kenmare Meals & Wheels Ward 186,995 184,977 201,002 209,451 

Souris Basin Transportation Ward 

James River Sr Citizens Wells 8,493 7,871 8,320 8,910 

Mercy Rides Williams 

Tioga Senior Citizens Public Transit Williams 

Trenton Indian Services Area Williams 34,657 35,700 33,856 31,951 

Wildrose Senior Transportation Williams 

N/W Dakota Public Transit - Williston Williams 

TOTAL RIDERSHIP 3,550,914 3,589,924 3,128,429 3,197,224 
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North Dakota Department of Transportation 

Table 3. State Funding Awarded • FY2012 Total FY2013 Total FY2014 Total FY 2015 Total 

Transit Agency County Award per Award per Award per Award per 

Agency Agency Agency Agency 

Benson County Transportation Benson $ 28,659 $ 28,771 $ 45,039 $ 54,091 

Bis-Man Transit 
Burleigh 

$ 295,733 $ 297,548 $ 525,989 $ 698,662 
Morton 

CANDO Towner $ 31,264 $ 31,264 $ 46,987 $ 54,458 

Cavalier County Sr. Meals Cavalier Co $ 35,981 $ 35,981 $ 55,845 $ 65,703 

City of Glen Ullin Morton $ 7,932 $ 6,363 $ 14,226 $ 12,197 

City of Jamestown (Taxi) Stutsman $ 10,696 $ 11,102 $ 21,453 $ 27,381 

City of Minot Ward $ 72,876 $ 68,454 $ 110,646 $ 97,512 

Dickey County Senior Citizens Dickey $ 39,480 $ 39,480 $ 62,415 $ 74,045 

Dickinson Public Transit (Stark County 
Stark $ 90,537 $ 90,537 $ 158,289 $ 195,769 

Council on Aging/Eldercare) 

Fargo Metro Transit Cass $ 369,581 $ 401,268 $ 657,874 $ 791,417 

Golden Valley Council on Aging 
Billings 

$ 57,050 $ 57,050 $ 83,687 $ 95,854 
Golden Valley 

Grand Forks Public Transit Grand Forks $ 188,388 $ 188,015 $ 343,790 $ 437,961 

Handi-Wheels Transportation Cass $ 15,363 $ 13,984 $ 37,411 $ 37,372 

Hazen Busing Mercer $ 24,249 $ 25,368 $ 42,025 $ 50,894 

Sheridan 
James River Sr Citizens Stutsman $ 128,400 $ 127,994 $ 220,351 $ 264,023 

Wells 

Kenmare Meals & Wheels Ward $ 17,051 $ 13,029 $ 22,649 $ 37,942 

Kidder/Emmons Senior Services Kidder $ 31,775 $ 31,775 $ 47,945 $ 55,674 • Nelson County 
Grand Forks 

$ 61,168 $ 61,584 $ 63,837 $ 77,340 
Nelson 

Nutrition United Rolette $ 30,278 $ 37,388 $ 64,234 $ 88,106 

Pembina County Meals & Transportation Pembina $ 45,215 $ 45,215 $ 73,184 $ 87,717 

Devils Lake Transit I Senior Meals & Eddy County 
$ 87,757 $ 87,757 $ 141,349 $ 169,062 

Services Ramsey 

Burleigh 
Sitting Bull College Morton $ 51,125 $ 51,409 $ 80,698 $ 92,378 

Sioux 

Bottineau 

Burke 

McHenry 

Souris Basin Transportation Mountrail $ 329,384 $ 337,828 $ 572,037 $ 723,664 

Pierce 

Renville 

Ward 

continued on next page 
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North Dakota Department of Transportation 

Table 3. State Funding Awarded (cont.) 

FY2012 Total FY2013 Total FY2014 Total FY 2015 Total 

Transit Agency County Award per Award per Award per Award per 

Agency Agency Agency Agency 

Barnes 

Emmons 

Foster 

South Central Adult Services 
Griggs 

$ 251,356 $ 251,356 $ 398,837 $ 478,714 
LaMoure 

Logan 

Cass 

Mcintosh 

Adams 

Southwest Transportation Services 
Bowman 

$ 124,285 $ 124,285 $ 186,499 $ 215,989 
Hettinger 

Slope 

Spirit Lake Nation Benson $ 14,523 $ 14,411 $ 24,327 $ 28,780 

Tioga Senior Citizens Public Transit Williams $ 8,400 $ - $ - $ -

Trenton Indian Services Area Williams $ 17,456 $ 15,053 $ 42,408 $ 35,316 

Turtle Mountain Transit Rolette $ 32,552 $ 25,442 $ 42,026 $ 41,607 

Cass - r/u 

Grand Forks 

Ransom 
Valley Senior Services (Fargo) Richland $ 269,463 $ 239,113 $ 496,010 $ 610,358 

Sargent 

Steele 

Traill 

Walsh Co Transportation Walsh $ 55,221 $ 55,221 $ 91,973 $ 111,573 

Burleigh 

Dunn 

Grant 

West River Transit Mclean $ 195,415 $ 192,356 $ 321,999 $ 354,780 

Mercer 

Morton 

Oliver 

Wildrose Senior Transportation Williams $ 12,934 $ 12,782 $ 18,320 $ 15,034 

Divide 
N/W Dakota-Public Transit - Williston McKenzie $ 120,048 $ 131,004 $ 170,746 $ 268,096 

Williams 

TOTAL AWARDED PER YEAR $ 3,151,595 $ 3,150,188 $ 5,285,105 $ 6,449,468 
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<: 
FY2012 Total FY2012 Total FY2013 Total FY2013 Total FY2014 Total FY2014 Total FY 2015 Total FY 2015 Total 

Transit Agency County Served Award per Award per Award per Award per Award per Award per Award per Award per 

Agency County Agency County Agency County Agency County 

Southwest Transportation Services Adams $ 31,526 $ 31,526 $ 31,526 $ 31,S26 $ 47,479 $ 47,479 $ S5,082 $ 55,082 
South Central Adult Services Barnes $ 5S,078 $ S5,078 $ 55,078 $ 55,078 $ 91,705 $ 91,705 $ 111,232 $ 111,232 
Benson County Transportation Benson $ 28,659 

$ 43,182 $ 28,771 
$ 43,182 $ 4S,039 

$ 
$ 54,090 

$ 
Spirit Lake Nation Benson $ 14,523 $ 14,411 $ 24,327 

69,366 
$ 28,780 

82,870 

Golden Valley Council on Aging Billings $ 27,314 $ 27,314 $ 27,314 $ 27,314 $ 39,570 $ 39,570 $ 45,040 $ 45,040 
Souris Basin Transportation Bottineau $ 42,558 $ 42,558 $ 42,558 $ 42,558 $ 68,195 $ 68,195 $ 81,383 $ 81,383 

0 

S: 
t:J 
Q) 

";} "'" 0 
iii 

C'" t:J 
CD - -0 

(I) Q) 

~ 
§-
CD . :::i ..... 

Southwest Transportation Services Bowman $ 33,708 $ 33,708 $ 33,708 $ 33,708 $ 51,576 $ 51,576 $ 60,283 $ 60,283 
Souris Basin Transportation Burke $ 30,514 $ 30,514 $ 30,514 $ 30,514 $ 45,578 $ 4S,578 $ 52,668 $ 52,668 
Bis-Man Transit Burleigh $ 224,266 $ 223,750 $ 41S,433 $ 522,934 
West River Transit Burleigh $ 12,054 $ 244,732 $ 12,319 $ 244,732 $ 19,715 $ 447,832 $ 25,964 $ 563,380 

Sitting Bull College Burleigh $ 8,411 $ 8,663 $ 12,684 $ 14,482 
Fargo Metro Transit Cass $ 369,581 $ 401,268 $ 657,874 $ 791,417 
Handi-Wheels Transportation Cass $ 15,363 $ 13,984 $ 37,411 $ 37,372 
Nelson County Cass $ 6,300 $ 429,601 $ 6,300 $ 429,601 $ - $ 819,903 $ - $ 1,004,121 

en 0 -.. ... ;I 
Q) Q) 

:::i ... 
~ (I) 0 

)> ~ ..... a· c. :::i 

South Central Adult Services Cass $ - $ - $ - $ 10,000 )> 
Valley Senior Services (Fargo) Cass - r/u $ 38,356 $ 8,049 $ 124,618 $ 165,332 
Cavalier County Sr. Meals Cavalier $ 35,981 $ 35,981 $ 35,981 $ 35,981 $ 55,845 $ 55,845 $ 65,703 $ 65,703 
Dickey County Senior Citizens Dickey $ 39,480 $ 39,480 $ 39,480 $ 39,480 $ 62,415 $ 62,415 $ 74,045 $ 74,045 

:E 
Q) .., 

N/W Dakota Public Transit - Williston Divide $ 12,934 
$ 30,792 

$ 12,782 
$ 30,792 

$ 18,320 
$ 

$ 53,331 
$ 

Wildrose Senior Transportation Divide $ 17,858 $ 18,010 $ 27,780 
46,100 

$ 
53,331 

-
c. 
(I) 

West River Transit Dunn $ 34,747 $ 34,747 $ 34,747 $ 34,747 $ 53,528 $ 53,528 $ 62,761 $ 62,761 c. 
Devils Lake Transit I Senior Meals & 

Eddy $ 31,640 $ 31,640 $ 31,640 $ 31,640 $ 47,692 $ 47,692 $ 55,352 $ 55,352 
Services 

... 
0 

South Central Adult Services Emmons $ 34,785 $ 34,785 $ 34,785 $ 34,785 $ 53,599 $ 53,599 $ 62,851 $ 62,851 
South Central Adult Services Foster $ 34,226 $ 34,226 $ 34,226 $ 34,226 $ 52,549 $ 52,549 $ 61,519 $ 61,519 
Golden Valley Council on Aging Golden Valley $ 29,736 $ 29,736 $ 29,736 $ 29,736 $ 44,118 $ 44,118 $ 50,814 $ 50,814 

-4 .., 
Q) 

Grand Forks Public Transit Grand Forks $ 188,388 $ 188,015 $ 343,790 $ 437,961 :::::s 
Nelson County Grand Forks $ 8,628 $ 205,725 $ 9,044 $ 205,725 $ 12,388 $ 368,556 $ 17,218 $ 470,384 tn 
Valley Senior Services {Fargo) Grand Forks $ 8,709 $ 8,665 $ 12,378 $ 15,205 -· ... 
West River Transit Grant $ 31,664 $ 31,664 $ 31,664 $ 31,664 $ 47,738 $ 47,738 $ 55,410 $ 55,410 
Nelson County Griggs $ 12,600 

$ 31,734 
$ 12,600 

$ 31,734 
$ -

$ 
$ -

$ 
South Central Adult Services Griggs $ 19,134 $ 19,134 $ 48,869 

48,869 
$ 55,578 

55,578 

Southwest Transportation Services Hettinger $ 31,888 $ 31,888 $ 31,888 $ 31,888 $ 48,158 $ 48,158 $ 55,944 $ 55,944 

Kidder/Emmons Senior Services Kidder $ 31,775 $ 31,775 $ 31,775 $ 31,775 $ 47,945 $ 47,945 $ 55,674 $ 55,674 

South Central Adult Services LaMoure $ 36,375 $ 36,375 $ 36,375 $ 36,375 $ 56,585 $ 56,585 $ 66,643 $ 66,643 

)> 
cc 
(I) 
:::::s 
(") -· South Central Adult Services Logan $ 30,573 $ 30,573 $ 30,573 $ 30,573 $ 45,689 $ 45,689 $ 52,810 $ 52,810 (I) 

Souris Basin Transportation McHenry $ 39,767 $ 39,767 $ 39,767 $ 39,767 $ 62,953 $ 62,953 $ 74,728 $ 74,728 (/) 
South Central Adult Services Mcintosh $ 32,784 $ 32,784 $ 32,784 $ 32,784 $ 49,842 $ 49,842 $ 58,082 $ 58,082 
N/W Dakota Publ ic Transit - Williston McKenzie $ 42,372 $ 42,372 $ 42,372 $ 42,372 $ 67,845 $ 67,845 $ 80,939 $ 80,939 
West River Transit Mclean $ 49,397 $ 49,397 $ 49,397 $ 49,397 $ 81,037 $ 81,037 $ 97,688 $ 97,688 

continued on next page 
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• 
FY2012 Total FY2012 Total FY2013 Total FY2013 Total FY2014 Total FY2014 Total FY 2015 Total FY 2015 Total 

Transit Agency County Served Award per Award per Award per Award per Award per Award per Award per Award per 

Agency County Agency County Agency County Agency County 

~ 
C'" -Hazen Busing Mercer $ 24,249 

$ 47,945 
$ 25,368 

$ 47,945 
$ 42,025 

$ 78,310 
$ 50,894 

$ 
West River Transit Mercer $ 23,696 $ 22,576 $ 36,285 $ 43,332 

94,225 

Bis-Man Transit Morton $ 71,467 $ 73,799 $ 110,556 $ 175,728 

CD 
~ . 

City of Glen Ullin Morton $ 7,932 
$ 99,372 

$ 6,363 
$ 97,964 

$ 14,226 
$ 174,878 

$ 12,197 
$ 216,831 

Sitting Bull College Morton $ 6,300 $ 6,333 $ 11,359 $ 11,164 
en ,.... 

West River Transit Morton $ 13,673 $ 11,469 $ 38,737 $ 17,742 

Souris Basin Transportation Mountrail $ 45,917 $ 45,917 $ 45,917 $ 45,917 $ 74,502 $ 74,502 $ 89,391 $ 89,391 

Nelson County Nelson $ 33,640 $ 33,640 $ 33,640 $ 33,640 $ 51,449 $ 51,449 $ 60,122 $ 60,122 

West River Transit Oliver $ 30,184 $ 30,184 $ 30,184 $ 30,184 $ 44,959 $ 44,959 $ 51,883 $ 51,883 

D> ,.... 
CD 
)> 

Pembina County Meals & Transportation Pembina $ 45,215 $ 45,215 $ 45,215 $ 45,215 $ 73,184 $ 73,184 $ 87,717 $ 87,717 

Souris Basin Transportation Pierce $ 36,964 $ 36,964 $ 36,964 $ 36,964 $ 57,690 $ 57,690 $ 68,046 $ 68,046 

Devils Lake Transit I Senior Meals and 
Ramsey $ 56,118 $ 56,118 $ 56,118 $ 56,118 $ 93,657 $ 93,657 $ 113,710 $ 113,710 

Services 

Valley Senior Services {Fargo) Ransom $ 39,934 $ 39,934 $ 39,934 $ 39,934 $ 63,267 $ 63,267 $ 75,127 $ 75,127 

Souris Basin Transportation Renville $ 31,869 $ 31,869 $ 31,869 $ 31,869 $ 48,123 $ 48,123 $ 55,899 $ 55,899 

c. 
)> 
:e: 
D> .., 

Valley Senior Services (Fargo) Richland $ 69,267 $ 69,267 $ 69,267 $ 69,267 $ 118,347 $ 118,347 $ 145,058 $ 145,058 c. 
Nutrition United Rolette $ 30,278 

$ 62,830 
$ 37,388 

$ 62,830 
$ 64,234 

$ 106,260 
$ 88,106 

$ 129,712 
Turtle Mountain Transit Rolette $ 32,552 $ 25,442 $ 42,026 $ 41,607 

CD c. 
Valley Senior Services {Fargo) Sargent $ 35,538 $ 35,538 $ 35,538 $ 35,538 $ 55,013 $ 55,013 $ 64,647 $ 64,647 ,.... 
James River Sr Citizens Sheridan $ 28,767 $ 28,767 $ 28,767 $ 28,767 $ 42,297 $ 42,297 $ 48,503 $ 48,503 0 
Sitting Bull College Sioux $ 36,413 $ 36,413 $ 36,413 $ 36,413 $ 56,656 $ 56,656 $ 66,733 $ 66,733 

Southwest Transportation Services Slope $ 27,163 $ 27,163 $ 27,163 $ 27,163 $ 39,286 $ 39,286 $ 44,680 $ 44,680 

Dickinson Public Transit {Stark County 
Stark $ 90,537 $ 90,537 $ 90,537 $ 90,537 $ 158,289 $ 158,289 $ 195,769 $ 195,769 

Council on Aging/Eldercare) 

Valley Senior Services {Fargo) Steele $ 30,533 $ 30,533 $ 30,533 $ 30,533 $ 45,613 $ 45,613 $ 52,713 $ 52,713 

City of Jamestown {Taxi) Stutsman $ 10,696 $ 11,102 $ 121,124 $ 148,439 

James River Sr Citizens Stutsman $ 63,074 $ 82,170 $ 62,668 $ 82,170 $ 21,453 $ 142,577 $ 27,381 $ 175,820 

South Central Adult Services Stutsman $ 8,400 $ 8,400 $ - $ -

CANDO Towner $ 31,264 $ 31,264 $ 31,264 $ 31,264 $ 46,987 $ 46,987 $ 54,458 $ 54,458 

Valley Senior Services {Fargo) Traill $ 47,127 $ 47,127 $ 47,127 $ 47,127 $ 76,773 $ 76,773 $ 92,275 $ 92,275 

Walsh Co Transportation Walsh $ 55,221 $ 55,221 $ 55,221 $ 55,221 $ 91,973 $ 91,973 $ 111,573 $ 111,573 

City of Minot Ward $ 72,876 $ 68,454 $ 110,646 $ 97,512 

Kenmare Meals & Wheels Ward $ 17,051 $ 191,723 $ 13,029 $ 191,723 $ 22,649 $ 348,292 $ 37,942 $ 437,002 

Souris Basin Transportation Ward $ 101,796 $ 110,239 $ 214,997 $ 301,548 

James River Sr Citizens Wells $ 36,559 $ 36,559 $ 36,559 $ 36,559 $ 56,929 $ 56,929 $ 67,080 $ 67,080 

N/W Dakota Public Transit - Williston Williams $ 59,818 $ 70,622 $ 75,121 $ 133,826 
Tioga Senior Citizens Public Transit Williams $ 8,400 

$ 
$ -

$ 
$ -

$ 
$ -

$ 
Trenton Indian Services Area Williams $ 17,456 

85,675 
$ 15,053 

85,675 
$ 42,408 

117,529 
$ 35,316 

184,176 

Wildrose Senior Transportation Williams $ - $ - $ - $ 15,034 
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TOTAL AWARDED PER YEAR $ 3,151,596 $ 3,151,596 $ 3,150,188 $ 3,150,188 $ 5,285,105 $ 5,285,105 $ 6,449,468 $ 6,449,468 
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2013 
Total per SFY 2012 SFY 2013 

Unexpended 
SFY2014 SFY 2015 

Transit Agency 
Unexpended Unexpended Unexpended Unexpended Agency 

Addi SA 

Benson County Transportation $ 122.28 $ 122.28 

CANDO $ 11,944.24 $ 21,276.93 $ 33,221.17 

Cavalier County Sr. Meals $ 25,410.85 $ 17,344.00 $ 10,411.00 $ 53,165.85 

City of Glen Ullin $ 1,768.08 $ 1,963.00 $ 3,731.08 

Dickey County Senior Citizens $ 6,604.00 $ 6,604.00 

Golden Valley Council on Aging $ 12,725.50 $ 21,139.00 $ 28,118.33 $ 61,982.83 

Hazen Busing $ 7,810.56 $ 7,810.56 
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James River Sr Citizens $ 118.91 $ 118.91 

Nelson County $ 11,693.00 $ 11,693.00 en ..... 
Nutrition United $ 3,016.77 $ 1,879.55 $ 4,896.32 D> ..... 
Devils Lake Transit/ Senior Meals and 

$ 2,757.00 $ 34,799.63 $ 33,844.72 $ 37,269.45 $ 108,670.80 
Services 

C'D 
)> 

Sitting Bull College $ 4,767.00 $ 4,767.00 Q. 
Southwest Transportation Services $ 2,120.20 $ 23,828.28 $ 25,948.48 

Tioga Senior Citizens Public Transit $ 521.28 $ 521.28 ~ 
Trenton Indian Services Area $ 1,523.00 $ 1,523.00 ..... 

D> 
Turtle Mountain Transit $ 11,183.00 $ 21,291.00 $ 1,259.77 $ 33,733.77 

Walsh Co Transportation $ 7,948.05 $ 5,266.59 $ 2,661.50 $ 15,876.14 

West River Transit $ 2,133.22 $ 2,133.22 

-tn 
C'" 
'< 

Wildrose Senior Transportation $ 6,769.87 $ 4,289.00 $ 11,058.87 

N/W Dakota Public Transit - Williston $ 100,070.77 $ 100,070.77 
)> 

(Q 
TOTAL AWARDED PER YEAR $ 64,517.49 $ 44,627.23 $ 50,982.08 $ 104,985.75 $ 222,536.78 $ 487,649.33 C'D 
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North Dakota Department of Transportation 

Table 6. Distribution of Unspent State Aid 
by Agency 

Unspent SA Unspent SA Unspent SA 
Total per Agency 

Transit Agency County Distributed SFY Distributed SFY Distributed SFY 
2013 2014 2015 

From 2013-2015 

Benson County Transportation Benson $ 17,918 $ 1,429 $ 19,347 

Bis-Man Transit 
Burleigh 

$ 248,229 $ 
Morton 

15,494 $ 34,999 $ 298,722 

CANDO Towner $ 13,256 $ 13,256 

Cavalier County Sr. Meals Cavalier Co $ 17,344 $ 2,258 $ 19,602 

City of Glen Ullin Morton $ 3,415 $ 3,415 

City of Jamestown (Taxi) Stutsman $ 4,656 $ 4,656 

City of Minot Ward $ 58,546 $ 3,266 $ 6,970 $ 68,782 

Dickey County Senior Citizens Dickey $ 20,376 $ 20,376 

Dickinson Public Transit (Stark County Council on 
Stark $ 64,626 $ 4,085 $ 9,179 $ 77,890 

Aging/Eldercare) 

Fargo Metro Transit Cass $ 316,844 $ 18,722 $ 42,321 $ 377,887 

Golden Valley Council on Aging 
Billings 

$ 21,763 $ 21,763 
Golden Valley 

Grand Forks Public Transit Grand Forks $ 158,657 $ 10,321 $ 23,312 $ 192,290 

Handi-Wheeis Transportation Cass $ 9,855 $ 875 $ 1,958 $ 12,688 

Hazen Busing Mercer $ 14,096 $ 934 $ 15,030 

Sheridan 

James River Sr Citizens Stutsman $ 78,987 $ 5,293 $ 84,280 

Wells 

Kenmare Meals & Wheels Ward $ 10,164 $ 1,025 $ 11,189 

Kidder/Emmons Senior Services Kidder $ 13,698 $ 13,698 

Cass 

Nelson County Transportation Grand Forks $ 24,179 $ 24,179 

Nelson 

Nutrition United Rolette $ 19,321 $ 2,531 $ 5,664 $ 27,516 

Pembina County Meals & Transportation Pembina $ 25,346 $ 1,543 $ 3,429 $ 30,318 

Devils Lake Transit I Senior Meals and Services 
Eddy County 

$ 48,376 $ 48,376 
Ramsey 

Burleigh 

Sitt ing Bull College Morton $ 22,395 $ 1,429 $ 3,134 $ 26,958 

Sioux 

Bottineau 

Burke 

McHenry 

Souris Basin Transportation Mountrail $ 197,813 $ 13,300 $ 29,052 $ 240,165 

Pierce 

Renville 

Ward 
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North Dakota Department of Transportation 

Table 6. Distribution of Unspent State Aid 
by Agency (cont.) 

Unspent SA Unspent SA Unspent SA 
Total per Agency 

Transit Agency County Distributed SFY Distributed SFY Distributed SFY 

2013 2014 2015 
From 2013-2015 

Barnes 

Emmons 

Foster 

South Central Adult Services 
Griggs 

LaMoure 
$ 123,268 $ 7,380 $ 16,273 $ 146,921 

Logan 

Mcintosh 

Stutsman 

Adams 

Southwest Transportation Services 
Bowman 

$ $ 
Hettinger 

52,353 52,353 

Slope 

Spirit Lake Nation Benson $ 5,666 $ 5,666 

Tioga Senior Cit izens Public Transit Williams $ 2,667 $ 2,667 

Trenton Indian Services Area Williams $ 10,516 $ 10,516 

Turtle Mountain Transit Rolette $ 21,291 $ 21,291 

Cass - r/u 

Grand Forks 

Ransom 

Valley Senior Services (Fargo) Richland $ 156,261 $ 11,240 $ 25,074.00 $ 192,575 

Sargent 

Steele 

Traill 

Walsh Co Transportation Walsh $ 34,018 $ 34,018 

Burleigh 

Dunn 

Grant 

West River Transit Mclean $ 99,007 $ 6,419 $ 16,289.00 $ 121, 715 

Mercer 

Morton 

Oliver 

Wildrose Senior Transportation Williams $ 734 $ 1,600 
$ 

Divide $ 4,289 
6,623 

Divide 

N/W Dakot a Public Transit - Willist on McKenzie $ 78,669 $ 78,669 

Williams 

TOTAL AWARDED PER YEAR $ 1,997,865 $ 104,995 $ 222,537 $ 2,325,397 
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North Dakota Department of Transportation 

Table 7. Awarded Transit Federal Funding Breakdown 
5311 Funds 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 
Rural $ 4,011,786 $ 5,003,801 $ 5,112,158 $ 5,098,273 

RTAP s 86,659 s 97,168 s 97,798 s 96,527 

$ 4,098,445 $ 5,100,969 $ 5,209,956 $ 5,194,800 

5310 Funds 

FY2012* FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 
Rural $ 405,621 $ 229,083 $ 218,389 $ 218,002 

Urban s - s 363,829 $ 359,004 $ 358,408 

$ 405,621 $ 592,912 $ 577,393 $ 576,410 

*these funds are statewide 

5339 Funds 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 

Statewide $ 302,076 $ 1,247,500 $ 1,250,000 $ 1,250,000 

Urban s - s 460,713 $ 466,605 $ 466,604 

$ 302,076 $ 1,708,213 $ 1,716,605 $ 1,716,604 

JARC 5316 Funds 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 

Rural $ 162,540 N/A N/A N/A 

Urban $ 213,849 N/A N/A N/A 

$ 376,389 

New Freedom 5317 Funds 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 

Rural $ 78,237 N/A N/A N/A 

Urban $ 125,918 N/A N/A N/A 

$ 204,155 

SOGR 5309 Funds 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 

Statewide $ 3,704,453 $ - $ - $ -

TOTAL $ 9,091,139 $ 7,402,094 $ 7,503,954 $ 7,487,814 

* The 5311 , 5310 and 5339 funds have remained consistent throughout the study years. However 
due to funding changes in 2013, 5317 funding was rolled into 5310 and 5316 funds were rolled 
into 5311 funding. State of Good Repair (SOGR 5309) funds are discretionary funds awarded 
directly from FTA through an application process. 
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North Dakota Department of Transportation

Table	8.	Rural	Transit	Expenses
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Rural Transit Expenses 

Table 8. 

  

Rural Transit Reimbursements 

Table 9.

Expenses FY 2011 - 2012 FY 2012 - 2013 FY 2013 - 2014 FY 2014 - 2015
Operating 8,028,898$                           7,899,000$         8,046,209$           9,043,967$         

Capital 1,220,105$                           1,876,456$         1,363,717$           1,697,749$         
Total Expenses 9,249,004$                           9,775,456$         9,409,925$           10,741,716$       

 $‐

 $2,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000

FY 2011 ‐ 2012 FY 2012 ‐ 2013 FY 2013 ‐ 2014 FY 2014 ‐ 2015

Rural Transit Expenses

Operating Capital

Reimbursements FY 2011 - 2012 FY 2012 - 2013 FY 2013 - 2014 FY 2014 - 2015
Federal Aid 4,048,188$         4,812,076$           4,687,254$          5,519,577$            
State Aid  2,478,630$         3,166,437$           3,605,603$          4,294,004$            
Total Reimbursements 6,526,818$         7,978,513$           8,292,857$          9,813,581$            

 $‐

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

FY 2011 ‐ 2012 FY 2012 ‐ 2013 FY 2013 ‐ 2014 FY 2014 ‐ 2015

Rural Transit Reimbursements

Federal Aid State Aid
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Rural Transit Reimbursements 
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Expenses FY 2011 - 2012 FY 2012 - 2013 FY 2013 - 2014 FY 2014 - 2015
Operating 8,028,898$                           7,899,000$         8,046,209$           9,043,967$         

Capital 1,220,105$                           1,876,456$         1,363,717$           1,697,749$         
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 $‐

 $2,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000

FY 2011 ‐ 2012 FY 2012 ‐ 2013 FY 2013 ‐ 2014 FY 2014 ‐ 2015
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Reimbursements FY 2011 - 2012 FY 2012 - 2013 FY 2013 - 2014 FY 2014 - 2015
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State Aid  2,478,630$         3,166,437$           3,605,603$          4,294,004$            
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 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000
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Rural Transit Reimbursements

Federal Aid State Aid



North Dakota Department of Transportation 

Table 10. Urban Transit Expenses 

Expenses FY 2011 - 2012 FY2012-2013 FY2013 - 2014 FY2014 - 2015 
Operating $ 
Capital $ 

Total Expenses $ 

$5,000,000 

$4,000,000 

$3,000,000 

$2,000,000 

$1,000,000 

$-
FY 2011 - 2012 

4,778,444 $ 3,215,622 $ 3,737,445 $ 3,249,377 

- $ 49,532 $ 362,639 $ 1,059,522 

4,778,444 $ 3,265,153 $ 4,100,084 $ 4,308,898 

Urban Transit Expenses 

FY 2012 - 2013 FY 2013 - 2014 FY 2014 - 2015 

• Operating • Capital 

Table 11. Urban Transit Reimbursements 

Reimbursements FY2011 - 2012 FY2012 - 2013 FY2013 - 2014 FY2014 - 2015 

Federal Aid $ 447,416 $ 465,505 $ 143,127 $ 955,076 

State Aid $ 853,700 $ 1,429,467 $ 1,689,457 $ 1,928,040 

Total Reimbursements $ 1,301,116 $ 1,894,972 $ 1,832,584 $ 2,883,116 

Urban Tra nsit Reimbursements 

$2,000,000 

$1,500,000 

$1,000,000 

$500,000 

$-
FY 2011 - 2012 FY 2012 - 2013 FY 2013 - 2014 FY 2014 - 2015 

• Federa l Aid • State Aid 
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North Dakota Department of Transportation 

See pull-outs for: 

Table 12. Transit Agency Operating and Capital Costs 

Table 13. Transit Agency Operating and Capital Costs -
Federal Funding 

Tabel 14. Transit Agency Operating and Capital Costs -
Total Funding 
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North Dakota Department of Transportation 

Table 12. Transit Agency Operating and Capital Costs - State Funding 
2012 ,.,, 2014 2015 

STAT!AID STA1tAID COMMrTT!D TOTAL COSTS STAT!AID STATE AID COMMfT'T!D TOTAL COSTS STATE AID STATfAID COMMrmD TOTAi.COSTS .,...,. STAT!AID STAT!AI> COMMl'TTED TOTAL CDSTS 
AGl!:NC'f STATE FUNDS OP!RAT1NG CAPITAL ADDLSA COMMm!D/ STAT! PUNDS OP!MT1NG CAHTAL ADDLSA COMMmtD/ STAT! RJNDS OPfMT1NG CAPITAL ADDLSA COMMITT!D/ 

FUNDS 
Ol'f:RAT1NG CAPn'Al ADDLSA C<lMMITTtD/ 

com com D'.P!NDmJllES SUIMrrTm com com ECJOfNOITU..S SUBMITTED com com EXPENDmJIES SUIMIT'TtD com CDSTS !Xl'f:NDITUltB SU8MmtD 

Benson CaunrYTranspott'M'.lon s 46-577 3U46 m s 14 279 'i 
"' 7J 

43"02 15 800 7602 I 'i 43 402 s 45039 s 28,579 ~ 16.'60 45D39 54091 44 703 9265 s 53 Q68 
~f,.ManTranSk. !5 295733 $ 295 731 s s 295,731 s 54S l16 S 545 776 s 545 176 525 989 s 525.989 s 525.9119 698,662 698.662 s s 698,662 
CANDO s 44520 s 38241 5 2.986 s 9963 SlUO S 11~~ 30 071 '2 30164 469S7 12,lAS s 2.B95 351143 54.458 33180 s s 13.180 
c.av.Uer Count" Sr. Meals 10570 10-570 10 70 5].]25 21844 21844 55 845 28-.156 17 71l .... ,. 65 703 65148 155 65 703 
OtvolGlen lM., s 7.932 s 7.932 s 7,912 s 9178 1il> 7A.&2 14226 12-263 12-263 12 197 12 1!17 s s 12.197 
ON of Jam1mown rraxn s 101i96 s 10.&96 s l01i!l6 s 15758 15 758 15 158 2l.453 21..453 s 21.453 27381 27 381 s s 27.381 

OtvofMlnot 12 A76 12.A76 72A76 S 121 000 127 000 121 000 110646 110,64.6 110-"6 97 512 97 512 97 lill 
CommunlCVActlon s s - s - ' - s s 
Ditk!v SentorO"tlient s 59.856 s 42.1)49 s s 17 807 59.856 s 59156 53 698 53 698 62415 55.811 s SS.Ill 74 046 59 OOi s 15 000 s ,.,,.. 
Dickinson Publk Tranlst {Stark County Coon ell on 
Al:1n11:1Eldertafl! s 90537 s 90537 5 s 90537 s 155163 s 155163 s s 155163 s 158289 s 158289 s s 158.289 s 195169; s 195 769 s s 195 769 
Fiith in Action s 
Farto Metro TranSlt s 369.581 s 369,581 s s 369 581 s 692194 689 194 1noo 692 794 657 874 6571t74 s 657.874 s 791417 s 791417 s s 79l..417 
GMn11:•Ll!amln1 s s s s s - s s - s - s s - s s - s s 
IGoklen vanev Council on At.Im: s 44325 s 44325 5 s 44.325 7Ul3 5 65..&89 5 s 65 689 s 81687 s 62.548 s s 62.548 95 854 67 736 s 67 736 
Grand Forb Public Transit 188 388 188 381 s 183 388 146 672 1908!17 155 775 346 672 343 790 22, .633 117.157 s 143790 437.961 .4]5.913 2 049 s -437.962 
Handl-WheelsTranmortltion 15363 15363 15363 UA39 23B38 23 838 37 41.1 37.411 37.AU 37 372 37 372 37 '172 
HaienBuslno s 24 49 242(9 m s 24i;72 39.A.64 37597 1,867 " .42025 3&.904 5,121 < 42 025 50894 43 083 5 3 356 s s "''"' Heartl.Nlni s s s - s s 
amesftM!rSr.Cltlztns s 207.317 153154 - s 5"233 s 207 317 206910 182 :230 13 939 19& lH 220351 220.351 s 220.351 2&4.023 263 70I s 196 s 20.904 
effl!!rsonUnH s s $ s s 

Kenmn Mealt& Wheels s 17.051 s 17.DSl s 17,051 s 23193 23.lU s s 23193 s 22~9 22.649 s s 22649 s 37 942 37 373 S&9 s 37.942 
!Odder/Emmons Senior SeN1ces 31775 31775 31175 45.473 39 913 s 39 981 -47 945 12J18S !SJl60 s 479-45 s 55 67-4 54867 807 s 551>7-4 
UJtheran Home ot the.Good Shep.ard s s s ' - ' s s 
Ni!!ISon CountvTransoortatlon s 61..168 s 61.161 s 61.168 5 857&3 46 623 5 s 46623 63,837 52'~ s s su .. s 7J 140 77 340 s s n~ 

N·ewrown Bus s s s - s ' $ - s s 
NOtrltton United 30.176 27.161 27 61 61.567 42461 l582 45 ()(3 .. ,'.!( 52.DOO 12 16 64.21& 881()5 79 985 9476 s 89-"'1 
~mbln• C0tint\I Meals & TrtincrwvTMJOn s 70.561 s 45.215 - IS ,,,.. 58,459 5 70561 s &9 75'9 l!O s 70,469 nl8< $4.Q31 32735 87666 11111 16923 794 s 17 717 
RMf Coath s s - s s s - s ' Dtvlls Uike Tran Sit Senior Meals and se:N1tes s 81 757 84..A17 181 8SDOO 136133 56.169 45 80I s 11)1911 141349 11)7.229 s m 1075 1)4 169..Df>2 89 703 49 510 s 139 13 
Sittfn BullC.One•e s SI 25 s SI 25 51 25 7U04 73.904 71804 s 80698 80,698 c;; 801>98 92 378 92378 s 92.378 
Sollris Basin TransPOl"atlon s 526,813 s 3rv;.939 gqn s 131624 -454535 s 535 &40 s 441521 11 ua s 475 339 c;; 572 037 -492..R.15 s 19 22 57l 037 723 664 522.109 201.555 s n•.664 
South Central Adult Si!!rvltl!!s s 3G2 033 S 3&2 033 - s 12601 374.634 s 314623 s 367 152 7..482 s 174.614 s 398837 391.837 s 398.837 471114 ...... ,. 12280 s -47B.71-4 
Southwen Tl"anspon:atfon Sen.ices s 124 285 s 124 285 s s 124285 s 1'6637 s 150315 26,322 s 17& 631 s 186-499 5 128504 s 15 975 s 144.479 215 989 5 139..669 s 52492 s 192.1&1 
Spirit LI~ Nadon 14523 14,S23 14523 20,077 20 077 20077 s 24327 s 24.327 s 24.327 28 180 20 860 7 919 s 28 779 
11noa SenlorCltltens Public Transit s 8.&00 7•79 7R79 $ 2667 s - s s s s s 
rentoo lndlan Services An!a IS 17.45& s 17.45& s s 17,45& s 25.569 5 22179 s s 22 179 5 42409:5 42,408 s s 42408 35 316 s 35 316 s s 35.316 
un le Mountain Transit s 32552 s 21369 5 s 21.369 s 467)3 s 20627 s s 20 627 s 42 026 s 41.955 s s 41.955 s 41607 s 40347 s s 41),147 
a1l~Si!!nlorServlces 425124 315637 - s 100087 415724 4211510 375 016 315 016 496010 491>1)10 s 496D10 610 58 610359 610 551 

Walsh CountvTranmortltlon 89739 60555 - ' 28684 89.139 89239 75 956 8 " ..... !ill 973 71 &4 s 15.c;(l 86 705 111573 99 748 9163 108 11 
IWenRlve:rTranstt s 195415 s 193 282 s s 193 282 s "'363 s 21L611 S 59 730 s 291363 5 321.999 s 270,953 s 511« s 3219gg s 354 780 s 321527 s 16238 s 337765 
!Wiidrose Senior TransDOrtatlon s 12.934 s ·~ .. s s 6.164 s 17.071 s 10-400 5 s 10 -400 s 11320 s 18.320 s s 11.320 s 15 0]( s 15,034 s s 15"" 
NIW Dakota Publlc Transit- WllUston 198717 14 Ge.a s 1&722 s 57 669 s 217439 209&73 188 ,73 s ' 188 673 170746 s 170 746 ~ s 1701-46 s 268.096 l&a.025 s 168.025 

Al 3A453'115 uas.no ~ 3 ~Ja !i 445191 !i 3.753.949 5.1:15...1.llO 44!1. :n !i ' ' - . 4.804_g91 52&5105 = s ,....., s 5 54.611 .. 5...l.U024 moZA !i - ~ "' ...... 1)118 

TotalO ratln cons 18 28113 .... 
TotalC Ital Costs s 1,171302 '" TOTAL COSTS 19 99 415 , .... 
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North Dakota Department of Transportation 

Table 13. Transit Agency Operating and Capital Costs - Federal Funding 

FY2DU FY2:0U FYZ014 FY 1015 

FEDERAL TOTAL FtDERAI FEDERAL TOTALFtDERAL FE:DE.RAL TOl"AL FEDERAL 
TOTAL 

FEDERAi. 
FEDERAL RDERAL 

COMMrTT'ED COSTS FEDERAL 
Fm ER.Al FEDERAL 

CDMMrTTED COSTS FEDERAL 
FEDERAL FEDERAL 

COMMFTTB> FEDERAL COST. FEDERAL 
FEDERAL FEDERAL 

COMMITT!D 
FEDERAL 

AGEHCY OPERATING CAPITAL OPfRATIHG CAP""L OPERATING CAPITAL OPERATitrlG CAPITAL COSTS 
FUNDS com CDSTS 

CAPITAL COMMmtD/ AJNDS cos·TS COSTS 
CAPITAL CO~MITTED/ FUJl!DS 

COSTS COSTS 
w mu. COMMFTTB>/ FllPilDS 

COSTS COSTS 
CAPITAL 

CCll.1Mrmo, 
EXPENDITURES SUBMmm EXPENDITURES SUBMITTED EXPEND11UR£S SUBMmtD EXPENDSTURES sua111rm:o 

enson CountvTranspor1:_atlon s 90,400 s 33,756 t; 1,405 s 54 400 89,561 10 215 c:: 3a,.197 55 lDS 93.31)2. s ...... s 39 761 ; 1,598 s 41359 s 76 995 s 47, 598 s 222!j2 s s 69.890 
jj-Man Tr,anslt s 40,000 s 37.560 s - s 37,560 s 116,560 s 42,198 44 500 s 15351 s 102 ()4.9: s '40.351 - s s 385.000 s 38S llnll S 1 025.951 s 24, 893 s 610 7H s 67,071 s 702 760 

:ANDO s 12.800 s 12,800 s 12,800 s 32,000 s 30.453 12-467 : 5 - s 42,9io s 38,950 36, 09() s s 36090 s 71140 s 35, 598 • s 30 400 s 65 -~98 

~_,,,lier Countv Sr, Meals s 25.000 s 16423 s 16 .. 423 27 .. 500 s 2L842 s - s 21,8:42 s 71,060 32 177 37 182 s s 69 359 39.103 39102 s s 39 02 
tvd.GlenUllrn s s _,, s s s s s s IS 
tv al-Jamesr:ownITIUd) 29,000 s 29000 s . ' 29,000 16,.136 s 16,136 s s 16,136 20,000 13,672 s 13,672 s s . s s 

Cltvr:JMlnot s 294.184 s 269,999 i 5 50.882 s 320: 881 5 750,481 s 280:081 32 549 s 32.t 256 s 636,886 s 374.109 299,249 308 739 is 607.918 5 1 031..005 s 355 099 5 43 978 5 590,000 s 989 077 
:Ommunltv Act ion s 27,400 s 25866 5 1444' . ' 27.310 s 66 696 s 58.179 . s 8517 5 66696 5 28,754 s 19 027 s . s 19 027 s s 
lc~ senlorOthens IS 5000 s 5 000 5000 s 000 s .. - ' 2_000 IS 949 s 949 47000 s 1 417 5 45, 000 5 • s 46 ,417 
11:ktnt0n Public Tranlu (Staric County counctl on s 596,602 s 290, 692 s 154.242 s s 444.934 s 573,000 s 360,028 s 96,716 s 35,000 s 491,744 s 483,650 s 390,575 s 96,430 s s 487,005 s 594,750 s 397,455 s 21.600 s 111.100 s 530,155 AJ!.ln.l/Eldercare 
Ith In Action ' - s 7 500 s 7 500 5 IS 7.500 S s s 

. ro:oMetro.Trantlt 177 00 177 500 'ii - s 177 500 169 071 s 104911 ' 9880 s - s 114,791 279,600 67 225 s 216,769 s 283994 1 949 38 s 47,775 161 993 5 1400 000 s 1609 768 
Mnv +Leamlri '95 495 ~ 495 - • s s 

Gold en vallev Councn on Al.In! 16.850 5 16 850 5 16,850 33 700 s 33 700 s - s . s 3l 7QO £0..318 40 318 . s 40 318 5 43,255 43 255 s 43-155 
3rand Forks Publ.k Transit 170900 5 170900 s . s 170 900 207 034 s 179 594 s 27440 5 . s 107,014. 75902 45 711 30 191 75 902 355-516 69 r.26 40 000 s 613990 'ii 723616 
andi-Wheel.sTrao'°ottatlon - s s s s 
azenBuslna 93600 'ii 42M J 2 435 ..... 133 060 53 143 , ... , 51 200 lll 803 661>70 50617 51 200 101.817 s 382.1>6& 47871 67 119 s 312 668 5 427658 

ieartUVlna s - s - s 2500 s 2 500 s - s - s 2.SOO • s - IS 
ames River Sr. Citizens 331 013 s 316 166 5 45569 5 361 735 s .. 04, 657 5 264301 s 95 891 s 360.192 332.798 s 248,055 s 6..393 s s 2S4,A48 s 315.909 s 286,199 s 32, 835 'ii s 319034 
effersonunn 470,000 s 386.908 83 092 s .. 70000 470,000 s 313 489 s s . s 313,4&9 528.981 253,136 s 133161 s 386 97 s 610ASA. 'ii -413.024 142 684 s 625 708 
enmare Meals & Wheefs 30.000 s 2US4 21,.454 17,035 s 26.532 s s 26.~2 26,562 ' 26,322 s 26 322 I S 32,909 s 301M S 2.271 ' 32.980 
~dder/Emmons senior Sei:-Aces s 104 000 s 39 0 02 s s 6S 000 104.002 s .. 2 685 ~ 36.685 s 1300 s ' ' 37.9,85 s 38.046 s 34,046 s 61,066 s 95,112 s 42.560 5 35 103 s 3,218 s 38 21 
utheran Home rJ, the Good Sheoard s 8000 s - s S,000 s &.000 s s - s s s s s s - 1 s s . s 

'lelson CountvTransoortatlon s 37200 s 35.199 s s 35.199 s 48 lll 5 41.342 5 s 41.34.l s 78.792 s 42.792 29 682 s 72474 s 49,190 s 49.190 s 49 90 
l!WTown Bus 4.7000 s 28.063 s s s 28.063 s s . ' s s s s s 

'lutrltlon Unl,ted s 40000 s 32 884 32.8i4 45 640 s 44,2M S s 44.209 s 57,125 s 55 725 358 s 56 083 129,89& s 67 638 s 33,592 ' 101 30 
emblna Coontv Meals & Transportation s 70.100 s 67.100 s 67,100 77 730 s 74,980 000 s &4000 s 140.980 88.446 s 86.446 59 922 s 146.368 301250 s 94,049 3 173 s 200.000 s i97 · 22 
oval Coach 32 000 s JU65 s 835 s 321>00 32 000 'ii 28 296 2421 s s 30.717 s s s s s 
evils Lake Transit I Senior Meals and Services s 61 QOO s 62.169 s 731 s 62,900 s 69 782 s .. 82 39 200 s 1.07.782 s 118,300 81.701 1fl99 s ., 800 s 141,.937 s 8 700 s 39888 s 4'7,937 s §16,515 
ttlnR Bull CoHer:e s 232 500 s 197 825 s s . s 197 825 s 232 500 s 192 S56 S· 192.SS6 S 269607 s 217 323 43 721 s '4,000 s 305uu. S 409.236 s 250400 s 77 754 s 328,154 

Souris B¥ .1n Transporatlon ' SM200 s ;gs 810 s 47328 s . s .443,138 5 617 567 s 438 167 s 115 576 s 78 000 s 671,743 s 632.717 s 522 627 s 96 760 s 619.387 s 830.431 s 485.131 5 187.238 s 52.800 5 725.169 
South Central Adult Servlt"es s 483400 s .. 13 .. 93 5 s 473 .. 93 5 718175 5 496 106 s 185 911 s 682.017 s 624,037 s 495 616 5 2526 5 124621 s 622 763 5 647.610 s 538,609 s 156.785 s 695.394 
iOuthwest:Transoortatlon Services $ 28,500 s 285 00 s s 28.500 84, 260 s 29 622 s s '8 800 s 78,422 $ 66.040 s 63,560 50155 5 s 113 715 s 1241"Wl. 5 77 444 44661 s 122 05 

hi t Lake Nation s 98 000 s 53DOD 45000 98DOO 53 000 s 47166 s s 47.166 s s s . s 90.133 s 40515 3 676 32 320 10 .. 11 
a SenlorCltlzens PubllcTranSlt • s s s s s s 

re.ot on Ind tan Services Area 25 000 25 0 00 25 0 00 25.000 'ii 2S 000 s 25,QOO 30,000 s 30 000 s 30.000 26,500 26.500 s 26,.500 
urtleMountatn_Translt s 2000[) s 20000 20.000 20 000 s 20.000 s s 20 000 s s 29133 19259 $ 19,259 
alley SenlorSeNlces s 154500 s 154,.490 s 154,490 262.922 15s 9n s 74178 5 32.822 s 262 921 s 162.500 s 162.500 s 162,500 331.500 181 056 s 29681 5 18 763 s 299,500 

Walsh CountvTran!Oortatlon s 62 000 s 60.902 s 60.902 60000 58000 s 737 s 58 737 5 113..UO S , ...... 18 965 s . s 105- 79400 71 400 5 2000 s . s 79 •~ 

NestRlverTranstt s 555 750 s 226 722 'ii 18368 'i 244000 439.090 221. 725 208 725 s 302189 s s 510,91,4 s 387,075 s 257,521 79 655 ' 54932 s 392.108 717 69 331 786 s ..... 350,167 746,797 
Mldrose Senior TtansMttatlon. ' . ' . ' 
'11 1w OakOl':a Publlc lnin.slt- Wlllltton s 470 750 5 243 054 s 75.089 ' s 77 000 395 }.43 361007 232 132 s 4A. 776 s 276908 s l 84.D60 s 184060 s 184.D60 3()4..876 l7Sl19 S 59 362 s 44 695 s 179 176 
ITDTAL s 5..451.644 s 4.017.820 s 406.32l!!S 568.492 s 5rvt,iu.o 5 tH.•t9 '"''"" s 1150296 s 557.945 ' s 587&.St& s s 709.964 s J .873241 s 985.542 s 9<8Al!3 s 5.817 366 s 1Qll01JM S 4.366920 s 1 9 24.43) s 3 941 911 S10.lJ3 U1 

Total 0 ratln Costs 16 38 255 "" To.tal C Ital Costs 4466 699 "" TOTAL COSTS 20,804,954 100l6 
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North Dakota Department of Transportation 

Table 14. Transit Agency Operating and Capital Costs - Total Funding 

FY 20U FY2013 FY20l4 FY 201S 

FEDERAL 
TOTAL 

FEDERAL 
TOTAL FEDERAL TOTAL RDERAL FEDERAL TOTAL 

TOT Al FEDERAL TUT AL TOTAL OOMMITTED TOTAL COSTS 
FEDERAL& 

TOTAL TOTAL COMMITTED TOTAL COSTS 
FEDERAL& 

TOTAL 
TOTAL CAPITAL CDMMITTID 

TOTAL CXJSJS 
FEDERAL& 

TOTAL TOTAL 
OOMMITlED com 

AGENCY &STATE OPERATING CAPITAL CAPfTAl.& CDMMrTnD/ 
STATE 

OPERATING CAPITAL CAPITAL& co-.mo/ 
STATE 

OPERATING 
COSTS CAPITAL 

OOMMITltD/ 
STATE 

OPERATING CAPITAL 
CAPITAL COMMITTlD/ 

FUNDING com com ADDL SA SUBMlmD 
FUNDING 

com COSTS ADDL SA SUBMITTED 
FUNDING 

COSTS 
EXPENDAURES 

SUBMITTB> 
FUNDING 

com com 
EXPEl'EmJRei SUBMITTED 

EXPENOITIJOES EXPENOtnJRES 

Benson County Transportation 136,977 $ 65,702 $ 1,757 5 68,679 $ 136,138 $ 145,617 $ 73,997 $ 62,707 $ $ 136,704 $ 93,943 $ 68,340 $ 18,058 $ 86.398 $ 131,C86 $ 92,300 $ 31,557 $ $ 123,858 

Bis.Man Transit $ 335,733 $ 333,291 $ $ $ 333.291 $ 662~36 $ 587,974 $ 44,500 $ 15,351 $ 647.825 $ 966,~o $ 525,989 $ $ 385,000 $ 910,989 $ 1,n 4,611 $ nl.sss $ 610,789 $ 67,078 $ 1,401,422 
:ANDO $ 57,320 $ 51,()41 $ 2,986 $ 9,963 $ 63,990 $ 63,264 $ 60,525 $ 12.559 $ $ 73,()84 $ 85,937 $ 68,238 ::; 2,895 $ 71,133 $ 125,798 $ 68,778 $ $ l0,400 $ 99,178 
:avalier County Sr. Meals $ 35,570 $ 26,993 $ $ $ 26,993 $ 80,825 $ 43,686 $ $ $ 43,686 s 126,905 $ 60,433 $ 54,360 $ $ 114,793 $ 104,806 $ 104,450 $ 355 $ 104,805 

::ityofGlt:nUllin $ 7,932 s 7,932 s $ $ 7,932 s 9,n8 $ 7,442 s $ $ 7,442 s 14,226 $ 12,263 $ $ 12,263 IS 12,197 $ 12,197 $ $ 12,197 

:JtyofJamestown(ra,d) s 39,696 5 39,696 $ . s 39,696 31,894 31,894 s • IS • IS 31.894 41,453 $ 35,125 5 s 35,125 $ 27,381 i 5 27,381 5 s 27,381 

::itvofMinot s 367060 $ 342,875 $ 50 882 $ $ 393,757 $ 877,481 $ 407081 $ 32,549 $ 324,256 $ 763.M.6 $ 484 755 $ 409895 $ 308 739 s 718 634 $ 1128517 $ 452,611 $ 43.978 $ 590000 $ 1,086,589 

Communitv Action $ 27.400 $ 25,866 $ 1,444 $ $ 27.310 $ 66.696 $ 58.179 $ $ 8,517 $ 66,696 $ 28.754 $ 19,027 $ s $ 19,027 $ $ $ $ 
Dickey Senior Ot izens $ 64,856 $ 47049 $ $ 17,807 $ 64856 $ 64,856 $ 53,698 $ s $ 53,698 s 64,415 s 56,760 s $ 56,760 $ 121,046 $ 60,463 $ 60,000 s $ 120,463 
Dickinson P\Jb11c Tr<inlst {Starit County C.OuncH on 
Aging/Elde~ilre $ 687,139 s 381,229 $ 154,242 $ $ 535,471 $ n8,163 $ 515,191 $ 96,716 $ 35.000 $ 646,907 $ 641,939 s 548,864 $ 96,430 $ $ 645,294 $ 790,519 $ 593,224 s 21,600 $ 111,100 $ 725.924 

Faith in Action $ $ $ $ $ $ 7,500 s 7,500 $ $ $ 7,500 $ s $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Far110Metro Translt s 547,081 $ 547.0Sl $ $ $ 547,081 s 861,865 $ 794,705 $ 12.880 s s 807,585 s 937,474 s n5,099 $ s 216,769 s 941,868 $ 2,740,555 s 839,192 $ 161,993 $ l ,400,000 $ 2.401.185 

ivin11r+l.zarnin. $ 495 $ 495 s s s 495 s $ $ $ $ $ $ s $ s $ $ $ 
o lden Vallev Counc!I on $ 6 1,175 $ 6],]75 s s s 61.175 $ 112.513 s .. ~. s s $ 99.389 s 124,005 s 102,866 s $ s 102,866 $ 139,109 s 110,991 s $ 110,991 

3rand Forlcs Public Transit $ 359,288 $ 359288 $ $ $ 359288 $ 553,706 $ 370,491 $ 183,215 $ $ 553706 $ 419,692 $ 272 344 s 147348 s 419 692 $ 793 '!i/7 $ 505539 $ 42,()49 $ 613 990 $ 1161,578 

Handi·Wheels Transoortat ion $ 15,363 $ 15.363 $ $ $ 15,363 $ 23.839 s 23.838 $ s $ 23.838 $ 37,411 $ 37,411 $ s 37,411 $ 37,372 $ 11,1n s $ 37.372 
Hazen 8usln1t $ 117.849 $ 66,322 $ 2,758 s $ 69080 $ ln,524 $ 90,740 $ 9,327 $ 51,200 $ 151,267 $ 108 695 $ 87,521 s 56,321 $ 143.M2 $ 432,962 $ 90,954 $ 70475 $ 312668 $ 474.()97 

HeartLHinlll $ s s $ $ $ 2,500 $ 2,500 $ $ $ 2,SOO s s $ $ $ $ $ s s 
ames River Sr.Citizens $ 538,400 s 469320 $ 45,569 s 54.233 $ 569122 s 611,637 $ 446.531 s 109,830 $ s 556361 s 553149 s 468406 s 6.3'3 s $ 474 799 $ 579.932 $ 549907 $ 33031 $ s 582,938 

efferson Unes $ 470,000 $ 386,908 $ $ 83,092 $ 470,000 $ 470,000 $ 313,489 s $ $ 313,489 s 528,981 $ 253,136 $ s 133,161 $ 386,297 $ 670,454 $ 483,024 $ 142,684 $ 625,708 

Kenmare Meals & Wheels $ 47,051 $ 38,505 $ $ $ 38,505 $ 50~28 $ 49,ns $ $ $ 49,n5 $ 49,211 $ 48,971 s $ 48.971 $ 70,851 $ 67,482 $ 2,840 $ 70.322 
K'"idder / Emmons Senior Services $ l35ns $ 10TT1 $ $ 65,000 $ n 5 1n s BB 158 $ 76 "68 $ 1,300 s $ n,%8 $ 85,991 s 66,931 $ 76,126 $ 143,057 $ 98,234 $ 89970 $ 4,025 $ $ 93,995 

Lutheran Home cf the Good Shecan:I $ 8,000 $ $ 8.000 s $ 8,000 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ s $ $ s $ $ 
Nelson Coumv Transportation $ 98,368 $ 96,367 $ s s 96367 $ 134,044 s 87,965 $ $ s 87,965 $ 142629 $ 94,936 s 29,682 $ 124618 $ 126.530 $ 126,530 $ $ 126.530 

NewTown 8 us s 47,000 s 28,063 s s s 28,063 s $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Nutrition Unitrd $ 70,278 $ 60,145 $ $ $ 60,145 $ 107,207 $ 86,670 $ 2,582 $ $ 89,252 $ 121,959 $ 107,725 $ 12.574 $ 120,299 $ 218003 $ 147623 $ 43068 $ 190,691 

Pembina Counrv Meats & Trau oon atlon $ 140,761 $ 112,315 $ $ 13,244 $ 125,559 $ 148,291 $ 144,739 $ 2,710 $ 64,000 s 211,449 $ 161,630 $ l41,3 n $ 92.657 $ 234,034 $ 388,967 $ t8o,9n $ 3,.967 $ 200,000 $ 384,939 

NnvJI] C.Oach $ 32,000 $ 31165 $ 835 $ $ 32000 $ 32,000 $ 28,296 $ 2,421 s $ 30,717 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Devils Lake Transit /Senior Meals and Servk:es $ 150,657 $ 146.986 $ 914 $ $ 147.900 $ 205,915 $ 124,751 $ 85,008 $ $ 209.759 $ 260,149 $ 188,930 $ l ,374 $ 190.304 $ 311,999 $ 98,403 $ 89.398 $ 47,937 $ 235,738 

·u1n 8ullC.Olle e s 283,625 $ 248,950 $ s $ 248.950 $ 306,304 $ 266,360 $ $ $ 266,.360 $ 350,305 $ 298,021 $ 41,n1 $ 44,000 $ 385 742 $ 501,614 $ 342,778 $ n ,154 $ 420,532 

iouris Basin Transporation $ 1,036,013 $ 702,749 $ 57,300 $ 137,624 $ 897,673 $ 1,223.207 $ 919,688 s 149.394 $ 78.000 $ 1.147,()82 $ 1.204.824 $ 1,015,442 $ 175,982 $ 1.191,424 $ 1,554,095 $ 1,007.24(1 $ 388,793 $ 52,800 $ 1,448.833 

iouth Cent ral Adult SeNices $ 845,433 $ 835.526 $ $ 12601 $ 848 127 s l ,CS2,798 $ 863,258 $ 193,393 $ $ 1,056,651 s l 022 874 $ 894,453 s 2 26 $ U4,621 $ 1,021600 $ 1126 324 $ irv....043 $ 169.D!iS $ 1.174108 

>outhwest Transoortation Services $ 152,785 $ 152,785 $ $ $ 152,785 s 260,897 $ 179,937 s 26,322 s '8,800 $ 255,059 $ 252,539 $ 192,064 s 66,130 $ $ 258,194 $ 340,037 $ 217,113 $ 97,153 $ 314,266 

pitit Lake Nat ion $ 112,523 $ 67,523 $ $ 45,000 $ 112,523 $ 73.0n $ 67,243 $ s s 67 43 $ 24.327 $ 24,327 $ $ 24,327 $ 118.913 $ 61,375 $ 39,595 $ 32,320 $ 113,290 

10113 Senior Citizens P\Jbllc Transit $ 8,400 $ 7,879 $ $ $ 7,879 $ 2,667 $ $ $ s $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
renton Indian Services Area $ 42,456 $ 42,456 $ s $ 42,456 $ 50.569 $ 47,179 $ $ $ 47,179 $ 72,408 $ 72,408 $ $ n ,408 s 61,816 $ 61,816 $ $ 61,816 

un le Mountain Transit $ 52,552 $ 41,369 $ $ s 41,369 $ 66.733 $ 40,627 $ $ $ 40,627 $ 42026 s 41955 $ $ 41.955 s 70740 $ 59,606 $ $ 59r.o6 

IVal!ev Senior Services $ 580,224 $ 470,127 $ s 100,087 $ 570,214 $ 684.112 s 530,938 s 74,178 $ 32.822 $ 637.938 $ 658,510 $ 65S,510 $ $ 658,510 $ 941,858 $ 791415 $ 29,681 $ 88,763 $ 909,859 

Naish Countv Transoonation $ 151,239 $ 121457 $ $ 28,684 $ 150 141 $ 149,239 $ 133.956 s 8,869 $ $ 142,825 $ 205 413 $ 147,604 $ .. ..,. $ $ 192 110 $ 190973 $ 177148 $ 11,163 $ $ 188311 

Wt':stRIYerTransit $ 751,165 s 420,004 $ 18,368 $ 244,000 $ 682,3n $ 513,088 $ 440,358 $ 361,919 $ $ 802,277 $ 709,074 $ 528,474 s 130,701 $ 54,932 $ 714,107 $ l ,071,949 $ 653,313 $ 81,082 s 350,167 $ 1.084,562 

Wildrose Se.nior TransDOrtat ion s 12 934 $ 6164 s $ $ 6,164 $ 17 071 $ 10400 $ $ $ 10,400 $ 18,320 $ 18320 s $ 18,320 $ 15034 $ 15,034 $ $ 15.D34 

N/W Dakota P\Jbllc Transit • Willlston $ 669,467 $ 384,102 s 93,811 $ 134,669 $ 6U,582 $ 570.680 $ 420,805 $ 44,776 $ $ 465,581 $ 354,806 $ 354,806 $ $ 354,806 s 5n,g12 $ 343,144 $ 59,362 $ 44,695 $ 447,201 

ITT1TAL $ 9,298,040 $ 7,313,040 $ 438,866 $ 1,014,683 $ 8 ,766,589 s 11,323.279 $ 8.508,413 $ 1,517.155 $ 657.946 $ 10,683,514 $ 10,995,069 s 8,646,971 $ 1.366,523 $ 958,483 $ io.s11.m $ 17,340,832 $10,197,944 $ 2,315,457 $ 3 ,941,918 $ 16,455.319 

Total Ope r.-:ina Costs 1$ 34,666,368 86% I 
Total capita l Costs 1$ 5,638,001 14% I 
TOTAL COSTS $ 40,304,369 100% I 
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